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BEFORE THE PUBLI C SERVI CE COWM SSI ON OF THE

DI STRI CT OF COLUMBI A

IN THE MATTER OF:
THE PROPOSED MERGER OF : FC 1142
ALTAGAS LTD AND WGL HOLDI NGS,
I NC.
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - x VOLUME VI
Washi ngt on, D. C.
Tuesday, December 12, 2017
The hearing in the above-captioned matter
began at 10:20 a.m, at the Public Service
Comm ssion of the District of Colunbia, 1325 G
Street, Northwest, Washington, D.C.
BEFORE: BETTY ANN KANE, CHAI RMAN
Rl CHARD BEVERLY, COWM SSI ONER
W LLIE L. PHILLIPS, COMM SSI ONER
REPORTED BY: Ryan K. Bl ack, RPR, CLR

PAGES: 1462 - 1753
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APPEARANCES

of the Joint Applicants:

DONALD R. HAYES, ESQUI RE

PAUL BUCKLEY, ESQUI RE

JOHN DODGE, ESQUI RE

Washi ngton Gas Li ght Company

101 Constitution Avenue, Northwest

Washi ngton, D.C. 20080

J. JOSEPH CURRAN, I11, ESQUI RE

W LLI AM F. DUBOI S, ESQUI RE

CHRI STOPHER GUNDERSON, ESQUI RE
Venabl e LLP

600 Massachusetts Avenue, Northwest

Washi ngton, D.C. 20001

(Appearances continued on the next page.)
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On behalf of Office of the People's Counsel:

ARI CK R. SEARS, ESQUI RE

Of fice of the People's Counsel

1133 15th Street, Northwest

Washi ngton, D.C. 20005

(202) 727-3071

JASON T. GRAY, ESQUI RE

Duncan Wei nberg Genzer & Penmbroke

1615 M Street, Northwest
Washi ngton, D.C. 20036

(202) 467-6370

ADRI ENNE CLAI R, ESQUI RE
Thompson Coburn LLP

1909 K Street, Northwest
Washi ngton, D.C. 20006

(202) 585-6900

(Appearances continued on the next

page.)
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APPEARANCES (conti nued):

On behal f

of Apartment and Office Buil ding

Associ ation of Metropolitan Washi ngton:

On behal f

FRANN G. FRANCI S, ESQUI RE

Apartment and Office Buil ding
Associ ati on of Metropolitan
Washi ngt on

1050 17th Street, Northwest

Washi ngton, D.C. 20036

(202) 296-3390

of District of Columbia Government:
SCOTT H. STRAUSS, ESQUI RE

PETER J. HOPKI NS, ESQUI RE

ANJALI G. PATEL, ESQUI RE

Spi egel & McDiarmd, LLP

1875 | Street, Northwest

Suite 700

Washi ngton, D.C. 20006

(202) 879-4000

(Appearances continued on the next page.)
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APPEARANCES (conti nued):

On behalf of District of Colunmbia Government:
(Conti nued):
BRI AN R. CALDWELL, ESQUI RE
Assi stant Attorney General, Public
Advocacy Section, District of
Columbia Office of Attorney General
441 4th Street, Northwest
Washi ngt on, D.C. 20001

(202) 272-3400

On behal f of the Departnment of the Army, United
States Department of the Defense and All O her
Federal Executive Agencies:

EMLY W MEDLYN, ESQUI RE

Depart ment of the Arny

United States Arny Legal Services

Agency
9275 Gunston Road
Fort Belvoir, Virginia 22060

(Appearances continued on the next page.)
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Housi ng Trust
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of National Consumer Law Center, the

ANDREW G. Pl ZOR, ESQUI RE

Enterprise Preservation:

Nati onal Consunmer Law Center

1001 Connecticut Avenue, Northwest

Suite 510

Washi ngton, D.C. 20036

of OPEIU Local 2, AFL-CIO
W LLI AM R. W LDER, ESQUI RE

Baptiste & W I der, P.C.

1150 Connecti cut Avenue, Nort hwest

Suite 315
Washi ngton, D.C. 20036

(202) 223-0723
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Good nor ni ng.

Back on the record in the evidentiary
hearings in Formal Case 1142, and it is Tuesday,
Decenber 12th, 2017. It is 10:20 a.m

Bef ore we proceed with our next
Wi tness, or resume with our witness, are there
any prelimnary matters of any of the parties?

MS. FRANCI S: Yes, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ms. Franci s.

MS. FRANCIS: Very briefly, in lieu
of cross-exam ning Dr. Goins, we only had one
or two questions, we have agreed with the
Departnent of Defense to put in a data request
in his response. That was filed with the
Comm ssion this norning. That response is on
our today's cross-exam nation exhibit |ist.

So at this time I would just |ike
to identify what has been pre-identified as
AOBA 33, which is the DOD/ FEA response to
AOBA Data Request 1. | would like to have that
mar ked for the record as AOBA 23 and adm tted

into the evidence.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: |t is so marked.
(Exhi bit No. AOBA 23 marked.)
MR. Pl ZOR: Your Honor, one ot her
simlar --
CHAI RMAN KANE: First, let me ask DOD
to confirmif they agree?
MS. MEDLYN: No objection.
CHAI RMAN KANE: No obj ection?
Thank you.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes. \Who's next?
MR. Pl ZOR: Your Honor, | guess we can
toss a coin.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes, sir.
MR. PIZOR: NCLC has a sim |l ar
exhibit. In lieu of bringing in Asa Hopkins, we
agreed to submt witten cross-exam nation. And
we've filed that and we would |ike that marked
as NCLC Exhibit Number 8 and noved into evidence
CHAI RMAN KANE: It is so marked, and
it is noved in, if there is being no objection?
(Exhibit No. NCLC 8 marked.)

(Exhibit No. NCLC 8 adm tted.)
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

Al right. And then the Conmm ssion
has a ruling. |If you recall |ast Friday,
OPEI U sought to introduce the testinmny of
Al an Lanier that was admtted in the Col unbi a
Gas rate case in Maryland. And according to
Page 1131 of the December 8th, 2017, hearings
transcript fromthis hearing, OPEIU s argunent
is that the testinmony, which was proffered as
Exhi bit Number 9, is not being offered, quote,
to bind the joint applicants, but it is being
offered as illustrative of industry practice,
feasibility and the benefit to custoners of the
i n-sourcing of the custoner call center by
anot her gas utility in the region.

The joint applicants objected to the
i ntroduction of that exhibit on the grounds of
rel evance.

We're ruling that since the purpose of
the testinony is for illustrative purposes only,
we don't believe it's necessary for it to be

i ntroduced in the record in order to permt

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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citation of the testinony in OPEIU s brief,
and, therefore, we deny adm ssion of the
cross-exam nati on Exhi bit Nunmber 9 because
OPEIU is free to cite it in their brief.

All right. W're going to start,
NCLC, with your w tness.

MR. Pl ZOR: Thank you, Your Honor,
NCLC would Iike to introduce M. Ned Hopkins as
their w tness.

CHAI RMAN KANE: M. ?

MR. Pl ZOR: Excuse me. Todd Nedw cKk.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Todd Nedw ck. Thank
you.

MR. PIZOR: As far as | know, there is
no Ned Hopki ns.

CHAI RMAN KANE: | thought we had a
surprise witness here, you know, like in Perry
Mason when the door opens.

* * *
Wher eupon - -
TODD NEDW CK,

called to testify, having been first duly sworn
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or affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
follows:

MR. Pl ZOR: Your Honor, M. Nedw ck's
testimony has previously been admtted, and he's
avai |l abl e for cross-exam nation.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. FRANCI S:
Yes. Good norning, M. Nedw ck.
A. Good nor ni ng.
Q Most of your testinony --

CHAI RMAN KANE: M. Nedw ck, would you
be sure, number one, that your green light is on
on your m crophone, --

THE W TNESS: Okay. Now it is.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

-- and to speak up. You have a soft
voice. | can tell already.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

BY MS. FRANCI S:
Q M. Nedw ck, nmopbst of your testinony

focuses on affordable multifam |y housing. Is

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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there anything in your pre-filed testinony

t hat defines what you include in affordable
mul tifamly housi ng?

A. | don't think explicitly there is,
but, generally, we define affordable nmultifamly
housing in a couple of ways. One being, if
t here's any sort of, you know, city or federal
rent restrictions as a result of subsidies, or
if it's housing that has rents that are
af fordabl e to househol ds maki ng 80 percent
of the area nedian income or |ess.

Q So there's no specific definition

applicable to the DC area in your testinmony,

ri ght?
A. No. No, there's not.
Q Am | correct that your pre-filed

direct testinmony provides no definition of the
criteria that you use to identify affordable
mul tifam |y housing structures in the District
of Col unmbi a?

MR. PIZOR: Objection; vague.

MS. FRANCI S: ' m sorry?

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1476

MR. PI ZOR: Objection as to vagueness;
definition of structure?
MS. FRANCI S: Buildings. Buildings.
BY MS. FRANCI S:
Q Am | correct that your pre-filed
direct testinmony provides no definition of the
criteria that you used to identify affordable

mul ti-housing [sic] buildings in the District of

Col unbi a?
A. Well, in terms of defining
multifamly, | believe in the testinmony it

says five-plus units in a structure. As to

affordability, as | just nmentioned, there's

vari ous ways to define affordability. | don't

think we explicitly, you know, focused on

that -- selected one approach in the testinony.
Q Now, is there a m ni num nunber or

a percent of tenants in a building that must

qualify as low or limted-inconme before a

building is classified as affordable multifamly

housi ng?

A. There are vari ous approaches to that.

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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think in DC the DCSCU, in their |ow-income
prograns, uses a threshold of 66 percent for the
building to be considered affordable.

Q Now, at Page 29, Line 9 through 10 of
your direct testinmony, and again at Page 39,
Lines 13 through 15, you advocate that $31.6
mllion, or $200 per custoner, should be
provi ded as direct and tangi ble benefits to
Washi ngton Gas's DC custonmers. Am | correct
that the math supporting that recomendation is
t here shown in your Footnote 29 on Page 29 of
your direct testinony?

A. Yes. That's correct.

Q. Now, in Footnote 29 on Page
29 of your direct testinony, you show the
mul tiplication of 158,000 custoners by $200
per customer, and that yields 31.6 mllion.
Am | correct that the 158,000 custoners you use
in that footnote approxi mates the total number
of DC custoners that Wtness Chapman shows in
his Exhibit JAD 1?

A. Yes. | believe that -- | believe

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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that's the case.
Q Ckay. Now, W tness Chapman shows
158, 255 custoners, so is that difference between
t hat nunmber and your 158,000 nunmber of custoners
simply a matter of roundi ng?
A. Yes.
Q So where Wtness Chapman's Exhibit JAD
that's fromhis direct testinony shows total
rate credits of 12 mllion 25 -- $12.25 mllion
for all DC ratepayers, you believe that anpunt
shoul d be increased to 31.6 mllion, an increase
of 19.35 mlIlion or 158 percent; is that
correct?
A. Can you just repeat the question?
Q So where W tness Chapman's Exhi bit
JAD 1 shows total credits of $12.25 mllion for
DC rat epayers, you believe that anount shoul d be
increased to $31.6 mllion, which is a $19.35
mllion increase or 158 percent increase; 1S
t hat correct?
A. Well, the 31.6 mllion refers to al

benefits, and | assune that the credits are a

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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subset of that, so I'"mnot -- | don't think
we' re suggesting that the rate credits should
total 31.6 mllion.

Q Now, could we | ook, please, at Wtness
Chapman's conputed rate credits by class in his
Exhi bit JAD 1, and |I'm going to ask you to first
| ook at the colum | abel ed GVMA greater than
3,075 therms.

MR. PIZOR: | believe that m ght be
-- there should be a notebook in front of you
t hat has the tabs Adrian Chapman's testinony in
there, do you see that?

THE W TNESS: Rebuttal testinony
or --

MS. FRANCIS: You can use either one,
either the top chart on the rebuttal testinony
or the direct. It doesn't matter.

MR. PIZOR: The exhibit shoul d be at
t he back of the testinony.

THE W TNESS: Okay.

MR. PIZOR: Do you see -- have you

found it?

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1480

THE W TNESS: Yeah. Could you just
repeat the exhibit number?
BY MS. FRANCI S:

Q The exhibit nunber is JAD 1, or you
can use JA 2D-1.

A. Okay. | have it.

Q Now, please focus on the top chart,
if you're using JAD 2D-1, and | ook at the colum
headed GMA greater than 3,075 thernms. Do you
see that?

A. Yes.

Q Now, | ooking at that Wtness Chapman's
conmputed rate credits by class, we see the GVA
heating is greater than 3,075 therns of $786 per
custonmer. |Is it your position that those
accounts would receive only $200 per custonmer?

A. You know, | don't think we've -- [|'ve
taken a position in ny testinony on, you know,
getting that specific in terns of the
met hodol ogy of distributing the credits.

Q So your testinmony does not suggest a

reduction in the group netered apartnment greater

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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than 3,075 thermclass fromtwo -- from $786 per
credit to $2007
A. No.
Q Based on the nunmber of custonmers shown

by class in Exhibit JAD-1, for each of the GVA
cl asses would you agree that the GVA heating
greater than 3,075 therns represents nore than
hal f of all GMA accounts?

A. This is the first tinme |I'm |l ooking at

this chart, so it's alittle bit challenging.

Q Well, would you accept that, subject
to check?

A. Yes.

Q Could you tell -- tell us where in the

record of this proceeding the Conmm ssion woul d
find the number of residential dwelling units
in buildings that are served under each of
Washi ngton Gas's group netered apart nent
rate classifications in the District?

A. | don't know if that was in.

Q Can you cite to any docunent in the

record that identifies the nunber of dwelling

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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units in group netered apartnent buildings that

are occupied by lowincome or |imted-incone
t enant s?

A. No, | cannot.

Q Can you cite to any docunent in

the record that identifies the nunmber of
dwelling units in individually metered apartment
bui |l di ngs that are occupied by | owinconme or
limted-incone tenants?

A. No, | cannot.

Q |f we sumthe nunmbers of customers
in all of the group netered apartnent and
i ndi vidually metered apartnent classes and
multiply by $200 per custoner, would you accept,

subject to check, that the result is |less than

$3 mllion and I ess than 9.4 percent of the
total 31.6 mllion of direct benefits that you
propose?
A. Yes. Subject to -- subject to check.
Q Now, please turn to Page 29 of your
t esti nony.

Now, at Page 29, Lines 11 through 15,

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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you suggest that 15 percent of the total direct

mer ger benefits, or approximately $5 mllion,
shoul d be dedicated to funding investnents in
energy efficiency for affordable nmultifamly

housi ng, do you see that?

A. Yes.
Q. | f the equival ent of |less than $3
mllion would be assigned to multifam|ly housing

structures served by Washi ngton Gas based on
$200 per custonmer, where do you propose to
derive the bal ance of your proposed $5 mllion
of funding for multifam |y housing?

A. So maybe if | can just clarify one
thing: The $200 figure was to estimte the
total anount of benefits that the utilities
shoul d make available. | wasn't saying that the
credit value should be $200.

Q Ckay. So you're not advocating taking
doll ars away from the group netered apartnment
class to make up the difference?

A. No.

Q When you referenced energy efficiency

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
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I nvestments for affordable nultifamly housing,

woul d that funding be distributed to building
owners or their tenants?

A. | would say both. | think some of
t he successful progranms address both the -- the
-- the energy use of the owners as well as the
t enants.

Q. Now, what types of energy efficiency
investments do you perceive that tenants in
multifamly housing that use gas service would
be able to inplenent?

A. Well, if they are using gas for

cooking, more efficient appliances.

Q. Li ke?

A. Li ke more efficient stoves.

Q. That woul d be cooking, correct?
A. Yeah. Correct.

Q. What el se?

A. I mean, | think that, to the extent
t hat you, you know, weatherize a buil ding,
i mprove the shell, you know, inmprove the

i nsul ation, there are benefits to residents
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beyond even just any financial benefits or
heal th benefits.

Q. Are those the benefits that tenants
are capable of inplenmenting thenselves?

A. No.

Q Coul d the energy efficiency
i nvestments that you envision be replacenment of
| ess-efficient boilers in older group netered
apartnment buil di ngs?

A. Coul d you repeat that question? |'m
sorry.

Q The energy efficiency investnents that
you envi sion, --

A. Yeah.

Q -- woul d they include replacenents of
| ess-efficient boilers in older group netered
apartnment buil di ngs?

A. Yes. Yes. |'d say so.

Q What types of energy efficiency
I nvestnments do you perceive that tenants in
i ndi vidually metered gas service apartnents

woul d be able to inplement?
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MR. PI ZOR: Objection. Asked and
answer ed.

MS. FRANCI S: No. Actual ly, the first
time | asked about group netered apartnents.
Now | ' m aski ng about individually netered
apartnments.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yeah. 1'IIl allowit.
BY MS. FRANCI S:

Q Shoul d I ask the question again?

A. Yes, please.

Q What type of energy efficiency
i nvestnents do you perceive that tenants in
i ndi vidually metered gas service apartnents
woul d be able to inplenment?

A. So | thought | did address this, but
in terms of -- so | -- yeah, | guess -- | guess
it would be the owners that would be making the
decisions to i nmplenment energy efficiency
i nvest ment since the owners, you know, own
t he appliances and --

Q M. Nedwi ck, now |I'm going to ask you

to take a | ook at two of AOBA's premarked
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exhi bits.

A. All right.

MS. FRANCI S: First, Your Honor, |

woul d i ke to mark what's been prelimnarily
identified as AOBA 28, which is a -- a page
fromthe internet for the DCSCU. That was
pre-identified as AOBA 28. |1'd like to have it

mar ked for the record as AOBA 24.

(Exhi bit No. AOBA 24 marked.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: It will be so nmarked.

BY MS. FRANCI S:

Q And turn to the next tab, M. Nedw ck,

and you can see that there's sonme sel ected pages
fromthe Apartment Hunters Program searching for

energy savings in multifam/ly buildings.

A. Can you -- |'m not sure where that

where those exhibits are, actually.

MR. PIZOR: Did you provide thent
MS. FRANCI'S: Several days ago.
You don't have those exhibits?

CHAI RMAN KANE: I f counsel woul d help

t he witness, please.
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MS. FRANCI S: They are Nunbers 28 and
29.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Aren't they up on the
wi t ness stand?

MS. FRANCI'S: Unl ess counsel posted
them | can show himny exhibit.

CHAI RMAN KANE: AOBA cross-exam nation
W tness -- excuse me, exhibits. All of the
cross-exam nati on exhibits should be up there.

MS. FRANCIS: May | hand these to the
Wit ness?

CHAI RMAN KANE: No. His counsel can
find them Thank you.

MR. PI ZOR: Could you repeat the
nunmber s?

MS. FRANCI'S: They're 28 and 29.

Why don't you give the w tness that
whol e book? Are you going to cite other --

MS. FRANCIS: No. Just these two.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's fine.

MS. FRANCIS: And |I'm al nost wr appi ng

up.
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Your Honor, | would |Iike to nmark what

has been prelimnary identified as AOBA 29.
There's sel ected pages from the Apartnent
Hunt ers Program searching for energy savings
in multifamly buildings done by the American
Council for Energy Efficiency Economy. [|'d like
to mark that for AOBA 25.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So mar ked.

(Exhi bit No. AOBA 25 marked.)
BY MS. FRANCI S:

Q M. Nedw ck, do you have those two
exhi bits?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. Ckay. Now, just briefly, on Page 15
of your direct testinony, --

A. Yes.

Q -- you do cite the Anerican Counci l
for Energy Efficiency -- for Energy Efficiency
Econony, do you not, on Line 12?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. So you're famliar with that

or gani zati on?
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A. Yes.

Q |f you could just take a mnute to
yourself briefly | ook at AOBA Exhi bit 28, and,
pl ease, you may want to just read for yourself
Par agraphs 8 and 10 on Pages 5 and 6 of what was
now mar ked as AOBA 25.

A. Can you repeat the pages?

Q |f you take a | ook, just briefly at
what was prelimnarily identified as AOBA 28, it

is a one-page copy of sonething fromthe DCSCU.

A. Yes.

Q You are famliar with the DCSCU?
A. Yes. | see that.

Q. Now turn to the next exhibit.

A. Yep.

Q And |'m going to ask you to take a

| ook, these are sel ected pages, take a | ook at
Page Little 5 -- Roman Nuneral 5 from the bottom
of the page, and just briefly read to yourself
Par agraph 8 and Paragraph 10.

A. Okay.

Q. And while you're reading, M. Nedw ck,
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the question that |'m going to ask you is, am
correct that the DCSCU al ready offers at |east
two progranms for improved energy efficiency in
multifam |y housing structures, and we can see
t hose referenced in Paragraphs 8 and 107

A. Yes, that's true. | see that.

Q. Okay. Now, if you take a | ook back
one page, little Roman Numeral 3, you can see
t hat Paragraphs 8 and 10 are under the section,
t he best practices and exanpl es of prograns
using themare ... so that the DCSCU has been
cited for two prograns that are consi dered best
practices, would you agree with that?

A. Yes. Yes, | woul d.

Q. What data or studies have you
presented that identify and quantify needs for
addi ti onal prograns and/or additional funding
for energy efficiency in nultifamly housing in
the District?

A. Well, I -- | would -- | would just
poi nt out that, although DCSCU does adm ni ster

t hese prograns that are consi dered best
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practices, | think the challenges of the |evel

of resources are |ow, considering just how many
multifamly rental househol ds are cost burdened
in the District.

Q. Have you quantified that number of
how many DC rental -- how many DC properties
-- affordable -- how many units are
cost-burdened in the District anywhere in
your testinony?

A. Yes. In nmy direct testinmny, Page 8,
it says, about half, 46 percent of the renters
in the District, are housing cost-burdened,
meani ng they pay nmore than 30 percent of their
mont hly income for conbined rent and utilities.

Q. Do you have the nunmber of househol ds
or just a percent?

A. Just -- just the percent. | would
need to | ook at the underlying data to provide
t he actual nunbers, but --

Q. M. Nedw ck, why shouldn't the
Comm ssi on assune that the DCSCU wi || address

any further needs for energy efficiency in
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multifamly housing in the District through
its existing ratepayer provided funding?

A. Well, like | said, | think
t he challenge is, you know, DCSCU has a good
infrastructure and they're adm nistering
successful progranms, but | think if you | ook at
t he nunmber of units that DCSCU can address in a
year, it's sonething -- it's less than one
percent of the housing stock in the District.
So | think the challenge is that there's a need
for additional resources in addition to those
rat epayer funds that are currently avail able.

Q But there is no specific study
in the record in this case that identifies and
gquantifies the need for the additional prograns
or the additional funding; isn't that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Are you recomendi ng that any funding
provided by AltaGas for nultifamly affordable
housing to obtain nerger approval should be used
to reduce funding currently provided through the

SCU t hrough rates charged to Washi ngton Gas
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custonmers?
A. No. |'m suggesting that it be
increnental to the existing funding sources.

MS. FRANCI S: Your Honor, that's the
only questions | have of M. Nedw ck.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

MS. FRANCIS: Since |I'mthe only one
who has questions, can | nmove nmy two exhibits at
this time?

CHAI RMAN KANE: | just had a coupl e of
foll ow-up questions, M. Nedw ck.

MS. FRANCIS: Oh, |I'msorry.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's okay.

|f you turn to Page 10 of your
testimony, your direct testinony starting at in
Line 6, --

THE W TNESS: Mm hnm

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- you cite here
an exanple: The NHT Enterprise conpleted
the retrofitted Channel Square, a 223-unit
af f ordabl e- housi ng conpl ex in sout hwest, and

descri bed all the things that were done, the

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1495

heating, the ventilating, the air conditioning,
donmestic hot water up to higher efficiency

| evel s, and resulted in a 60 percent reduction
in natural gas consunption.

Do you know, what was the cost of
that retrofit or those things that were heating,
ventilation, air conditioning and hot water
syst ent?

THE W TNESS: You know, | don't -- |
don't have that data off the top of ny head.

' mcertainly happy to provide it. | would have
to check with sonmeone in ny organi zati on who
woul d know t hat .

CHAI RMAN KANE: | asked that question
because on Page 18 of your testinony you say
that the $2,000 per unit, which the joint
applicants are proposing, while you say it's a
| ong-term benefit -- the investnent would be a
| ong-term benefit, you say it's not enough
nmoney. So |I'm | ooking for --

THE W TNESS: Ri ght .

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- real exanples in
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the District, the one you cited, where 223

units were upgraded and there was a 60 percent
reduction in natural gas. If $2,000 is not
adequate, what -- are you recommendi ng a

speci fic nunber?

THE W TNESS: Yeah. | mean, so in
reference to the 2,000 per unit, you know, that
relates to the Affordabl e Housing Natural Gas
Initiative, which would provide incentives to
install natural gas infrastructure in buildings.
And ny point there was saying --

CHAI RMAN KANE: ['m sorry to interrupt
you. The 2000 per unit, this was for new
construction?

THE W TNESS: | believe the intent
was for the programto be new construction,
yeah, and to, basically, incent devel opers to
use natural gas.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Then | et nme ask you
to turn to Page 29 of your testinmony on Line 11,
where you recommend that the ampunt be increased

to $5 mllion per year -- excuse ne, not per
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year, $5 mllion one time, and again |I'm asking
how many units would that do?
THE W TNESS: | mean, it depends on

how t he programis structured, you know, what

| evel of conprehensiveness is there, in terns
of, you know, the -- you know -- you know, I'd
say, in a ballpark, a conprehensive programthat
addresses both gas and electric would be maybe
in the range of $3,500 per unit, just sort of
bal | par k.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. And if you can
provide, if it's available, the -- the cost for
t he Channel Square --

THE W TNESS:  Sure.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- of 220, because
there are specific things that you cited were
done and a specific result.

Let me ask you, in general, are you
aware of the, 1'll call it, one-tinme paynent
prograns that are available to | ow-incone
custoners in the District, gas custoners,

for help with their bills?
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THE WTNESS: |'m generally aware.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Such as LI HEAP, such
as the Fuel Fund, such as the Urban League
Progr anf?
THE W TNESS: Yes.
CHAI RMAN KANE: And are you aware of
t he ongoi ng di scount program the Residenti al
Essentials Services Programthat this Conmm ssion
has required funded by ratepayers?
THE W TNESS: Yes, | am aware.
CHAI RMAN KANE: And you're aware that
t hat provi des about a 25 percent discount on the
overall bill?
THE W TNESS: Yes.
CHAI RMAN KANE: You're aware of that?
THE W TNESS: Yes.
CHAI RMAN KANE: I n your work
working with | owincone housing and working wth
retrofits, energy efficiency, et cetera, do you
or do the organizations that you represent have
a view on the value, the benefit of one-tine

assi stance programs, enmergency assistance,
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versus long-terminvestnents, such as you've

cited in Channel Square?

THE W TNESS: We woul d say they

wor k together, that you need both good energy

assi stance prograns, especially to help

househol ds that m ght be -- m ght have acute

needs and need help right away, but you al so

want to invest in energy efficiency to ensure

t hat, over tinme, you're reducing energy

consunpti on and saving -- saving noney over

t he | ong run.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. Those are
all nmy questions.

MR. Pl ZOR: Your Honor, --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Redirect?

MR. PI ZOR: Sorry.

No redirect. Just clarification:

My guess is, the data on Channel Square, is that

a Comm ssion data request?

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes. W would like to

get that, obviously, as soon as possible, yeah,

to get it into the record.
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Thank you.
Al right. No redirect?
Al right. Exhibits?
MS. FRANCIS: Your Honor, |I'd like to

nove in AOBA Exhibits 24 and 25.

CHAI RMAN KANE: They are in.

(Exhi bit No. AOBA 24 admtted.)

(Exhi bit No. AOBA 25 admitted.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: The testinony is
already in the record.

Thank you. You nmay be excused.

Al right. Who's next? Joint
applicants?

MR. CURRAN:  Your Honor, | believe we
were calling Ms. Luanne Guternouth to the stand.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ri ght.

MR. DODGE: Good norning, Your Honor.
One prelimnary matter:

Yesterday we had a discussion
regardi ng one or two data requests and the
responses being noved in as a supplenent to

JA 3. | believe we reached resol ution on that
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| ssue, subject to check with all counsel here at

the table. DCG has proposed the inclusion of
OPC Response 17-19 in a package of exhibits, |
bel i eve, and that would satisfy Joint
Appl i cants.

CHAI RMAN KANE: M. Strauss, coment
on that?

MR. STRAUSS: | don't think that was
t he proposal from us.

MR. DODGE: We're going to need a few
m nut es, because the representation to nme was
DCG had included that in a list that it provided
to joint applicant's outside counsel. So if we
could just have a m nute?

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes.

(Recess taken.)

MR. DODGE: Your Honor, | believe
M. Strauss is going to clarify for the record
what's goi ng on.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

M. Strauss.

MR. STRAUSS: |'mgoing to try.
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We have a stipulation that includes

t he adm ssion of the docunent that M. Dodge
mentioned. | believe it's OPC 17-19. And we
have agreenment fromthe joint applicants to
have t hat docunent, and a nunber of others,
stipulated into the record. The confusion was,
the way M. Dodge explained it this norning, |
t hought it was sonme sort of quid pro quo
involving this witness's testinony. | think
it's just a separate arrangement we have with
t he Joint Applicants.

Apol ogi es for the confusion.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So the docunments you
have a stipulation on are OPC --

MR. STRAUSS: 17-19, | believe, is the
only docunent.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's the only one?

MR. DODGE: That's the one relevant to
this w tness.

MR. STRAUSS: That's the one relative
to right now. There are a nunmber of others.

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. You may
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proceed.
MR. DODGE: W th that, Ms. Guternouth
Is avail able, again, for cross-exam nati on.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.
MS. CLAIR: Mor ni ng, Your Honor.

Thank you.

Wher eupon - -
LUANNE GUTERMOUTH,
called to testify, having been previously first
duly sworn or affirmed, was exam ned and
testified as foll ows:
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. CLAIR:
Q Ms. Guternmouth, You have your rebuttal
testinmony on the stand, --
A. | do.
Q -- Exhibit 2H?
Did you write your rebuttal testinony?
A. | did.
Q And then if you turn to Pages 2 and 3

of that rebuttal testinony, beginning at Line 15
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you were answering the question about whether or
not you have any updates to report regarding the

merger integration planning. And can you just
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t ake a nonment and review the question

and answer

t hat starts at Page 2 and goes over to Page 3,

think it stops at Page 3, and confirmthat in

t hose pages there aren't any exhibits that are
referenced there, are there?
A. No. Because | believe we had al ready

provi ded the functional work team plans in

m d- Novenber.

Q Ckay. I n the docunent that

was |

guess introduced yesterday, but it's Exhibit

-- | nmean, it's OPC 17-19, --

A. Correct.

Q. --and | think it -- can you repeat
why you wanted to have this included? You said
it yesterday, but | mssed it, so do you m nd,
pl ease?

A. Not at all. | think there were sone
comments on Friday that the -- excuse me, the

applicants had not provided updates on our
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I ntegration planning process, and | wanted to

make sure that we were clear that not only had
we provided DCG 6-60 in July, we suppl emented
that in August. |In August we also referred OPC
to that set of documents in OPC 9-9, and then
in Novenmber we provided OPC 17-19, which
provides nmore detail around the integration
process.
Q. And the first page of what is -- is

this -- | think it's JA 3, is that what it is?

VMR. DODGE: 6- 60.

MS. CLAIR: So this exhibit that is
the response to OPC 17-19, it's Exhibit JA 6.
It's been marked as that, so I'll refer to it
that way, so I'Il stop saying 17-19.

MR. DODGE: Tinme out. JA 3 is JCG
6-60. | don't think we have a designation yet
for 17-109.

MS. CLAIR: We did it yesterday.

MR. DODGE: It was not admtted as
t hat yesterday. Pursuant to stipulation with

DCG just described a few m nutes ago, that wil
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be going in, | believe, as DCG exhibit. We're
happy to label it as a JA exhibit. |1'mnot sure

if it makes any difference.

MS. CLAIR: It doesn't matter to ne.
| was trying to make sure the record is clear.
| thought yesterday it was marked for
identification as JA 12 or sonething. \Whatever
we should call it, | just want to nake sure the
record is clear.

CHAI RMAN KANE: W'l |l check with the
secretary.

Was this exhibit marked yesterday?

THE SECRETARY: No.

CHAI RMAN KAI NE: We don't have it
mar ked yesterday. |t was just referred to.

MS. CLAIR: Thank you. What should |
call it?

MR. DODGE: How about referring to it
by its original designation, 17-19, or JA 12.
We're happy to make it JA 12.

CHAI RMAN KANE: It needs to be

prelimnarily marked so we know what we're
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t al ki ng about.

MR. DODGE: Let's mark it as JA 12.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Prelimmnarily marked
as JA 12, formerly known at OPC 17-109.
MS. CLAIR: Thank you, Your Honor.
(Exhibit No. JA 12 marked.)
BY MS. CLAIR
Q So, Ms. Guternmouth, on the first page
of the docunent that has been marked for
identification as Exhibit JA 12, there's a date
of September 29th, 2017. Do you see that?
A. | don't have that docunment in front of
me. Should it be?
Q Maybe your counsel -- it's the
docunment you said should be in yesterday.
' m sorry.
MR. DODGE: Counsel is approaching.
THE W TNESS: Sept enber 29t h.
BY Ms. CLAIR:
Q ' mgoing to back up a step. |I'm
sorry. The docunment marked as JA 12 is the

document which yesterday, when you were on
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t he stand, your counsel suggested should be
i ncluded, and | think you expl ai ned why you
t hought it should be this nmorning; is that
correct?

A. Correct.
Q OCkay. On the first page of that

docunment, JA 12, do you see the date September

29t h, 20177
A. Yes.
Q And that is prior to the subm ssion of

rebuttal testimony in this proceeding; is that
correct?

A. That's nmy under st andi ng.

Q And this docunent, to be clear,
was not included with the Joint Applicant's
rebuttal, was it?

A. It was not an exhibit.

Q Thank you.

A. It was provided, though, in response
to the data request.

Q If you'll turn to the response to

17-19, so the first page of JA 12, it's subpart
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Are you there?

A. Yes.

Q OCkay. The response to Subpart B, in
part, the very last clause in it says to see
Subpart A, and then it says, and produced as
DGCG 6-60 Attachment 5. Do you see where |I'm
readi ng?

A. | do.

Q And do you have on the stand the
response to OPC 6-60, which |I believe was

Exhi bit JA 3?

A. | do not.

Q DCG. Excuse ne. | keep saying OPC
It should be -- thank you.
If you'll let me know when you have

t hat before you, Ms. Guternmouth?
A. | do.
Q Thank you.
And that's -- Exhibit JA 3, which is
t he response to DCG 6-60, is a two-page exhibit

that references ot her docunents, but the exhibit
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Itself that was admtted here is the two-page
docunent; is that correct? 1Is that what you
have before you?

A. | have a docunent that's significantly
nore than two pages.
Q Ckay. So can you go to Subpart D of
the answer itself, not the attachnents?
If you'll | ook at Page 2, there's a
Subpart D that says, information for the May 3rd
t hrough 5th, 2017, meeting, please refer to ...
and it goes on.
Do you see where |'m readi ng?
A. | do.
Q And it references Attachments 2, 3 and
4. Do you see where |'mreadi ng?
A. | do.
Q Ckay. And the stack of docunents
t hat you just said you had up there, does that
i nclude Exhibits 2, 3 and 4?
Whil e you're doing that, just so
| don't waste your tinme, the question is

going to be whether that's the entirety of the
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docunment s

t hat were attached that hadn't been identified
in the response itself?

A. Okay. Well, | see Attachment 3,
Attachment 1. They seem to be out of order.
Attachment 5. It |ooks |like Attachnment 4.
Attachment 6. | don't think | said 2.

So, in sumary, | see three, one and

sonme of the tops of the documents aren't shown,

so it mght be that I'm just m ssing

desi gnation. Four.

t he

MR. DODGE: Your Honor, | may be able

to help clarify.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Do you know what the

title of the document 1s?

MR. DODGE: JA 3, which was

i ntroduced and moved into evidence earlier,

is the supplenental response, dated J
2017, and includes only one attachmen
i ntegration update. That's all we in
provi de.

So | believe counsel has pr

uly 13,
t, the

tended to

ovi ded t he
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entirety of the original response to the w tness
on the stand, but we are happy to live with our
earlier subm ssion of the skinnier docunment that
includes only the integration update itself.
| "' m now i nformed that the Secretary's
copy may include everything. One nonment.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Is it a confidenti al
docunent ?
THE SECRETARY: Yes.
MR. DODGE: | think we've identified
t he source of the confusion, and | apol ogize to
OPC and the Bench. |t appears that what we
passed out to at |east OPC, and maybe the rest
of the parties, did not include all attachnents.
Again, while the official copy in
front of the Secretary includes all attachnents,
we're happy to withdraw all but Attachnment 05,
which is the actual integration update itself,
i f that hel ps nove things al ong.
MS. CLAIR: Your Honor, | apol ogize,
but | need just a nmonent to figure out what

we' ve got versus what's m ssing and how to
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question on a docunent that |'m not sure which
version is in front of you or ne or the wtness.
If I could have just a few nonments to figure
this out?
CHAI RMAN KANE: Attachnent 05, you
sai d, Counsel?
MR. DODGE: That's correct, Your
Honor. That's, apparently, what was passed
out, and we'll have to live with that if
everybody did not receive the full exhibit
package.
CHAl RMAN KANE: | have Attachnment O06.
How many pages are in Attachnment 05?
MR. DODGE: | apol ogize, Your Honor?
CHAI RMAN KANE: How many pages are in
Attachment 057
MR. DODGE: One nonment.
| believe 20.
My count by Bates stanp is 20.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Per haps, OPC, if
you could also give us sonme indication of the

pur pose of this line of questioning so we know
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what the inportance of the docunent is?

MS. CLAIR: Certainly. [I'mfirst
trying to figure out what integration process
or plan documents have been either introduced
t hrough direct, supplenmental direct or rebuttal,
of which | don't think there are many. And then
the witness consistently says, we gave you that
in discovery and noved into evidence a copy of
some docunent that she said is helpful to
under st and i ntegrati on pl anni ng.

| just want to understand what's in
front of us, what's in the record versus what
they' re asserting they've given us in discovery
versus what's now been noved in that | don't
have in front of me, all of which goes to the
i ssue of integration planning, which OPC
believes is critical and which the w tness,
in her cross-exam nation on direct, agreed was
critical.

So it is about integration planning.
l"mjust a little handi capped right now on

figuring out which documents we have.
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VR. DODGE: Agai n, Your Honor, | wll
repeat, if it is our m stake that we did not

pass out all attachnments to DCG 6-60, we wl|
live with what was passed out, which was
Attachnment 05, which was the integration

pl anni ng updat e.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And when was t hat
done?

MR. DODGE: That was introduced
t hrough Ms. Guternmputh's redirect and admtted
on that same day.

MS. CLAIR: So here's our problem
| believe, Your Honor. The document that is
attached to JA 3 -- there was a Di scovery
Response 6-60.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ri ght.

MS. CLAIR: And there were certain
attachnents to that, which Ms. Gutermuth had on
t he stand, and, absolutely, she's reading the
ri ght exhibit nunmbers fromthose. There's
certain attachnments. Nunmber 5 is one that she

did not indicate was -- was on the stand, |
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It is on

MS. CLAIR: Okay. It is on the stand.

Good.

THE W TNESS: Nunmber 5 is on the

stand. Nunber 2 is what's m ssing.

MS. CLAIR: Thank you.

Nunmber 5 itself is not |listed on the

response to 6-60. There's no reference to an

Attachment 5 on that docunment. And so counse

said the suppl enental response was dated July

13th, | thought you said?

VR. DODGE: That's correct.

MS. CLAIR: That's what |'m | ooking

at, and ny copy doesn't -- maybe |I'm m ssing

somet hi ng.

THE W TNESS: | believe there was an

update in August of 6-60.

MS. CLAI R We don't have that.

MR. DODGE: We don't have to go that

far.
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One nore nmonent, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yeah. We're going to

take a recess -- this is ridiculous, playing
this out for the public -- to figure it out.
We' Il be back in 10 m nutes.

(Recess taken.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. Get this
strai ghtened out?

MR. DODGE: Yes, Your Honor. Thank
you for your patience. M. Clair and | have
agreed to three things: First, that | confused
everybody; second, that she and | knew
i medi at el y what was goi ng on, even though |I had
confused everybody; and, third, we have worked
out what JA 3 will look like in the official
record. It will include the suppl enmental
response, which is two pages, dated July 13th,
2017, and only what was pre-marked as Attachnent
05. And joint applicants will make a filing
wth the Comm ssion clarifying that the other
attachments, which may or may not have been

associ ated, will be w thdrawn.
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CHAl RMAN KANE: And is that a
confidential docunment?

MR. DODGE: It is, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So when questions are
asked - -

MR. DODGE: We apol ogize. We believe
we handed out something different than was
handed with the Secretary. So, again, we
WIIl live with the shorter docunent. And |
apol ogi ze, again, and thank OPC counsel for
accommmodati ng that confusion.

CHAl RMAN KANE: All right. M. Clair.

MS. CLAIR: Thank you, Your Honor.
And thank you to Joint Applicant's counsel for
wor ki ng t hrough my rage.

BY MS. CLAIR

Q | think we stopped with the document
that's been marked as JA 12, and | was asking
Ms. Gutermouth -- no, I'msorry. | was on your
testinony. Forgive ne.

Can you tell me how many people are on

the integration conmmttee now?
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A. We have two - -

CHAI RMAN KANE: M crophones.

THE W TNESS: We have two different
groups, and | want to make sure |I'm being clear
about each of them We have what's been terned
a merger integration commttee. There are siXx
primary members of that. We also have a nore
extensive integration team which includes all
t he functional |eads and other SMEs that are
appropriate, and that group is well over 20.

BY MS. CLAIR:

Q. And PWC -- is PWC still consulting on
merger integration efforts?

A. | believe they are available to
support the AltaGas team as needed.

MS. CLAIR: Your Honor, |I'd like to
mark for identification a document. |t was
pre-marked for identification as Exhibit OPC
70-A, and it is an eight-page docunment titled,
Seven Fundanmental Tenets of Successful
| ntegration. And I'd like to have it marked

as Exhibit OPC 27.
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CHAl RMAN KANE: So mar ked.
(Exhibit No. OPC 27 marked.)

BY Ms. CLAIR:

Q Do you have that before you, Ms.
Gut er nout h?

A. | do.

Q Thank you.

This docunment is one produced by

Pri ce WAt er house Coopers. Can you tell ne,
pl ease, who at Price Waterhouse Coopers you've
been working with on the integration effort?

A. There are individuals out of the PWC
Cal gary office who have been working with the
AltaGas team |'m not aware of their nanes.
Specifically, I've interacted with Todd Jirovec,
who's a witness in this case, and two or three
of his associ ates.

Q Ckay. But you don't know their names?

A. One of themis not with PWC
any longer. | guess | can provide their nanes.
Sena Smith [phonetic], and the other two

gentlemen's nanes | will admt to not having
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in my short-term nmenory currently.
Q Okay. Thank you.
I|f you'll turn to Page 3 of the

docunment, and |let nme know when you're there,
pl ease.

A. | "' m here.

Q Number 2 is titled, define the
integration strategy. And there's a sentence
about halfway in that paragraph that states,
devel opi ng and docunenting an integration
roadmap and set of guiding principles to be used
i n pinpointing and executing a clear integration
strategy is a critical first step.

Do you see where |'m reading?

A. | do.

Q. And has that been done for this

mer ger ?

A. Yes.

Q And is there docunmentation included
in your testinmony or exhibits -- your rebuttal

testi nony or exhibits in this proceeding with

respect to that process?
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A. Yes. It's one of the docunments that
has been provided as part of DCG 6-60.
Q ' msorry. | asked if it was included

in your rebuttal testinmny or exhibits?
A. OCh. |I'msorry.

Q That' s okay.

Was it?
A. That was not specifically addressed in
my rebuttal.
Q And then turning on that sane

docunment, on the sane page, actually,
Page 3, Number 3, under Nunber 3 there are two
sentences, they're quick, so I'll read them just
so they're in the record, and we both know which
ones I'"'mreferring to: Resource workload
[imtations demand that integration efforts be
prioritized, and sharehol der val ue nmust drive
the allocation of resources for nmeeting these
priorities.
Do you see where |' mreadi ng?
A. | do.

Q. And has shar ehol der val ue driven the
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all ocation of resources for the integration

priorities in this proceeding?

A. Well, I'lIl speak personally. M focus
has been on maki ng sure that we have the right
resources represented of the appropriate groups
to develop an integration plan that will allow
us to deliver on merger commtnents and to
deliver on the synergy savings that we've
identified and validated, and will nake for
a successful conbination if the nmerger is
approved.

Q Thank you.

Turning over to Page 4 of the
docunment, Nunmber 4 is titled, Prepare for Day 1.
And the final sentence reads, a detailed plan
shoul d be -- should then be created, excuse ne,
including all actions that will be put in place
on Day 1. And | apologize, it's the penultimte
sentence. |It's not the |last one. | apol ogize.

Has a detail ed plan been created
including all actions that will be put in place

on Day 1 for this nerger?
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A. "Il answer that in two parts:
Firstly, as | nmentioned on Friday, the
functional work teans are in the process of
finalizing their Day 1 plans. W | ook forward
to getting those at some point this nonth so
t hat next nonth, and, perhaps, into February,
they will go through an executive and | egal
revi ew process.

The second part of nmy answer woul d be
that, in response to OPC 17-19, we have provided
a list of Day 1 activities.

Q Thank you.

And so on that first part, the Day 1
pl ans, which you said you explained to ne on
Fri day, those are in the process of
being finalized, is that correct, based on your
answer to nme?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And that was not included -- no
part of that was included in your rebuttal
testimony, was it?

A. No part of what?
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Q. The Day 1 plan which you said is being
finalized?

A. There was no exhibit to ny rebuttal.
| do reference the functional work plans in
process within nmy rebuttal.

Q OCkay. And just so the -- we're clear,
OPC 17-19 was not included in your rebuttal case
either, was it?

A. It was a response to the data request.

Q Was it included in your rebuttal
testimony or exhibits?

A. By reference it was. The specific
docunment was not included as a rebuttal exhibit.

Q. Ckay. | m ssed it.

Can you tell me where you said by
reference it was? Could you identify where in
your rebuttal testimony it was referenced?

A. Page 2, Lines 19 through 22.

Q Ms. Gutermouth, the date of your
rebuttal testinony is October 27th, and the
response to 17-19 was after that date, correct?

A. Subj ect to check.
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Q. It's on -- it should be on the stand
with you. lt's JA 12, Exhibit JAl2. And t he
very first page of it says, OPC data request,
Question Number 19, and at the bottom of it
there's a date, November 14, 20177?

That's correct.

Do you see where |I'm reading?

> o »

| see the date on the response.

Q. Okay. And then the date of your
rebuttal testimny, which | believe was before
t he document that you said was referenced in
your rebuttal testinony is October 27th. It
should be on first page, the cover page to your
testinmony itself.

A. | see that, as well.

Q. Okay. So you're suggesting that your
rebuttal testimony referenced the document that
hadn't yet been provided in discovery?

A. It referenced the fact that the plans
were in the process of being devel oped.

Q. Okay. Going back to the docunment

that's been marked for identification as Joint
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| think we were on Page

A. Just for clarity, it's the docunent

t hat you had identified as 70A?

Q Yes. Yeah.
identification as Exhi

A. All right.

Q. And number -

titled, communicate wi

It's been mar ked for

bit 27.

- Paragraph 5 states -- is

th all stakehol ders.

And it -- the first sentence of that says,

comuni cate early and

often with all

st akehol ders, including custoners, enployees,

i nvestors, suppliers,

vendors, and it goes on.

Have these communi cations been had by

t he Joint Applicants?

A. Oh, absolutely. There's been

significant conmmuni cat

ion starting with the

announcenent, but al so deli berate reach-out

to key stakehol ders, i

menbers of the conmuni

ncl udi ng public officials,

ty, enployees. Certainly,

there is a whole set of communications that are

required to investors,

and those have occurred.
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We' ve reached out to our vendors. We have

conti nued a conmuni cati on process, particularly
to enpl oyees so they're updated about the
process. And, certainly, as | think was
referenced earlier, there have been thousands
of pages provided as a part of the regulatory
process.

Q And | ast question: On Page -- still
on Page 4 of the docunent at Paragraph 6, it
states that early and swift selection of key
management posts for the transition is critical
to mnimze uncertainty, and then it goes on yet
agai n.

Has t hat been done, the early and
swift selection of key managenment posts?

A. For the transition, yes, |
beli eve as early as February Karine Bush Field
[ phonetic] was identified as the integration
| ead for AltaGas, and | was identified as the
i ntegration | ead for Washington Gas, WGL.

Q. Thank you. |'m done with that

document for now.
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You' ve referenced in your response to
some of my questions a noment ago the response
to 17-19, which is marked for identification
-- it's JA 12. 1'll try to keep the record
straight. Can you get that before you and just
et me know when you have it?

A. | have it.

MS. CLAIR: And | would note, Your
Honor, the attachnment to the docunent has been
mar ked as privileged and confidential. ' m
assum ng privilege has been wai ved because
it's shared beyond counsel at this point. Wth
respect to confidentiality, I"monly |Iooking to
counsel to be sure before |I go sonmewhere he
woul d prefer | not.

MR. DODGE: | f you can ask the
guestions so they don't elicit confidential
information in public session, we would
appreci ate that.

MS. CLAIR: Sure. For what it's
worth, | think everybody in the room yesterday

got a copy, but 1"l try -- well, 1"l try.
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BY MS. CLAIR:

Q On Page 2 of the docunent, there's a
-- I"'mgoing to try to do this wi thout saying
anyt hing specific, so there's a -- there's a
hashtag -- |'mon the second chart of the
docunent, the bottom the second half of the
page, and there's a colum that's just a
hashtag. You see that? |It's the second col umm
over fromthe left. Do you see where |I'm
| ooki ng?

A. Yes. The nunber sign? Yeah.

Q. Yes.

And if you go down, there's a -- under

t he hashtag colum, or the nunmber sign col um,
it says F, as from Frank, 13.2. Do you see
where |'m readi ng?

A. Yes.

Q. And there's a nane |listed there as
t he person accountable. And w thout saying the
name, can you identify, | guess by position, who
t hat person is?

A. As | understand it, this individual
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I's responsi ble for some of the gas and/or power

| i nes of business for AltaGas and also for risk
managenent for AltaGas. That's ny
under st andi ng.

Q Ckay. And then going over to where it
says, status of Day 1 items, on that sanme row
there's a -- there's a phrase that starts with
the word, inpact of, and I'I|l stop there so that
| don't describe it with too much specificity.

Do you see where |'m readi ng?

A. | do.

Q And t he person who you just descri bed
is with AltaGas, they're accountable for this
itemwith respect to inpact of; --

A. They are --

Q. -- 1s that correct?

A. They are the AltaGas representative
on this item Now, we have individual s paired,
so while the accountable parties listed here are
Al taGas i ndividuals, each has a counterpart at
Washi ngt on Gas, WGL.

Q. And the action itemthat we're
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di scussing, that | won't read into the record,
has a percentage of zero percent, and this was
as of, | guess, Septenber. Is there an update

to that conpletion percentage?

A. | don't have that on the top of ny
head.
Okay.
A. | apol ogi ze.
Q. Thank you.
Turni ng next to Page 6 of the sanme
document, Item Number 5, it's the first chart

whi ch says, Day 1 major m |l estones in progress,
|tem Number 5, which | won't read into the
record, has a design and build test of Q3 '17.
Is there an update on that? Has that occurred?

A. It has occurred, and it was al so
provi ded as a document update to DCG 6-60.
believe it's the Attachment 6.

Q. Okay. And when was that conpleted?

A. I n Septenber.
Q. I n Septenmber. Okay.
And -- and there's nothing in
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- neverm nd. | already know that. Neverm nd.
Turni ng next, please, to Page 17 of
t he docunent, are you there, or if you'll let ne

know when you get there, please?

A. | am

Q The very |l ast bullet says, submt, and
"1l leave the rest of that out. [|'d like to
under stand what that nmeans, and I'm-- |I'm

| ooking to your counsel, because | don't -- |
don't know if you can --
MR. DODGE: Actually, | think you can
just call it out.
MS. CLAIR:. Can | just say it?
Thank you.
BY MS. CLAIR
Q So the final bullet says, submt
contract request to PWC clean roonf
A. Yes.
Q. |"d just |like to know what that neans?
A. Yes. And | think I nmentioned
this on Friday, but |I'm happy to go into sone

expl anati on today. W have to be careful before

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1534

we're one conpany, assum ng the nerger's
approved, not to share proprietary data.
And we al so know that one of the potenti al
mer ger savings is around econony to scal e,
t aki ng advant age of npbst favorable terns
for our materials and services contracts. So
specifically so that we are able to make sone
progress during the pendency period, but not run
af oul of gun-junping, Washington Gas, WGL, has
provi ded contract information to PWC, which they
are putting in what they call a clean room
Al t aGas has done the sanme thing. W can't see
AltaGas's information. They can't see ours.
But PWC has access to both sets of information.
And with that they're able to identify sone
priority activities for us to pursue once we
do cl ose, assum ng the nerger is approved.
Q Thank you.
Next page, Page 19, and | wll have
guestions that aren't deciphering, but |'ve got
anot her one, can you tell me what EH&S stands

for?
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A. Envi ronnent, health and safety.
Q Thank you.

Turni ng next to Page 31 of the
docunment, and this is a subject area which has
been treated as confidential throughout the
proceeding, so | will ask you if you can review
t he docunent itself -- the page, 31 itself, and
there are several bullets here of action itens.
And the question, if you want to refer -- in
your response, if you'd like to refer to bullets
by nunmbers so that you don't rely anything
confidential, that should be just fine. The
gquestion is whether or not each of these itens

has happened?

A. No. They're in process.
Q. They're in process.
Are they all still in process, or

are there certain of themthat have already
occurred? And for nme -- so nunber one is the
conpar abl e, number two is identify, three is
benchmark, four is should. |[|'ve nunbered each

bullet. And so if you don't mnd, are all of
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those still in process?
A. They're all in process, to ny
under st andi ng.
Q. Okay. Thank you.
On Page 33 of the document, now |
guess this -- there's an acronymthat's on

several pages, so | have to ask what SCM stands

for?
A. Supply chain managenment.
Q. Thank you.
On Page 39, there's a table, and
one of the -- it's the brighter red bar on the
graph, | believe, it's for a certain item

Can you tell me what's included in that itenf?

MR. DODGE: Excuse me, Counsel. You
mean the horizontal axis on the botton?

MS. CLAIR: Yes.

THE W TNESS: Are you tal king about
the vertical bar?
BY MS. CLAIR:

Q. So there's a horizontal at the bottom

-- there are three -- the code -- the key,
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excuse me, to the chart, there are three

di fferent col ors. The tan is for one thing,
the bright red is for a second thing, and the,
sort of, burgundy is for a final category. It's
t he second one, the bright red, that I'd like to
under st and what that includes.
Do you see where |'m readi ng?
A. | do.
Q You do.
Can you tell me what's included in
t hat ?

A. It includes -- I"'mtrying to make sure
| don't run afoul of any confidentiality, but it
i ncludes the cost of services that we procure
from outside parties.

Q. And then turning over to Page 41 of
t he docunent, there have been some questi ons by
Chai rman Kane, and |I'm now | osing track of days,
about, sort of, pre and post-nmerger, Washington
Gas's ability to procure services on its on
behal f, and I'd |like to understand what this

page of the document neans with respect to that
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And so at Page 41 -- I'mtrying to
figure out how to ask you a question w thout
saying a thing about what this says. So at Page
41 there's a first blue rectangle with two words
in it and a nunber of bullets that describe it.
There's a second hash mark or dash that starts
with the word, pricing advantages. |I'd |ike
to understand what that means, what that action
itemis, what will happen in the process for
t hat ?

A. That represents our opportunities to
| ever age econony to scale and achi eve better
pricing for materials, as an exanple, that
woul d be part of the merger savings that
were identified.

Q OCkay. And then the second bl ue
rectangle on the page, it sounds like |I'm
talking to nmy kid, which has two words in it,
the fourth -- the very last bullet in that
section, which says apply volunes, can you

expl ai n what that neans?
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A. When the teans are able to work as one
team assum ng the merger is approved, we'll be

able to | ook at our volunme of spend across the

total organization and | ook at what the -- you

know, the unit cost is on an industry benchmark
basi s and make sure that we are achieving at

| east as favorable as industry benchmarks.

Q And then on the last row of the
docunment, | mean on Page 41, there's a last item
that starts with, integrated supplier. What is
t hat ?

A. | ntegrated suppliers can be used in
di fferent ways. Currently, Washington Gas has
an integrated supply arrangement with Ferguson.
They do warehousing, transport of materials,
so that is an exanple of integrating supplier.

We're | ooking to see how el se we can
t ake advantage of those types of nodels, again,
once we're one entity, assumng the nmerger's
approved.

Q And what does ECI stand for?

A. | don't renenber.
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Q. And, sorry, could you turn to Page 46
of the document? And at the top of the page,
the very first bullet, it starts, success on Day
| think I can read this out |oud, right?

MR. DODGE: | apol ogize. Success on
Day 1, if we could stop, please.

MS. CLAIR: Stop there?

MR. DODGE: Yes.

MS. CLAI R Ckay.
BY Ms. CLAIR:

Q Coul d you explain what is neant by
that? |Is this -- what the remai nder of that
bul l et says, is that your understandi ng of
somet hing that has to happen in order for there
to be success on Day 1?

A. This bullet refers to a regul atory
requirement in Virginia regarding services that
are provided between entities. And so can you
restate your question? | want to make sure |I'm
answering it appropriately.

Q Sure. M question was whet her or not

it's your understanding that this action itemis
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a requirenment in order for there to be success

on Day 17

A. Yes, and then I'lIl refer you to the
header, for appropriate cost allocation.

Q Thank you.

And has that occurred yet? The action
itemthat's contenplated in the penultimte
bullet, it says target to file, and then it
goes on, has that happened?

A. It's well underway.

Q So it has been filed?

A. | know that it's near -- it's either
just been filed or it's nearing its filing date.

Q Ckay. I n the binder of OPC
Cross-exam nation exhibits, there are two
di scovery requests that we had offered to
stipulate, and we hadn't heard back. And I
just thought it would be efficient since
Ms. Guternouth's on the stand to do them now
and not wait.

So if you could turn to the tab that's

OPC 67, please.
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A. ' m there.
Q Do you recognize this --
MS. CLAIR: Ch, I'msorry, Your
Honor. This docunent has been pre-marked for
identification as Exhibit OPC 67, it's the
response to OPC 17-12, and we would ask to have
it marked for identification as Exhibit OPC 28.
CHAI RMAN KANE: So mar ked.
(Exhi bit No. OPC 28 marked.)
MS. CLAIR: Thank you.
BY MS. CLAIR
Q Do you recogni ze this docunent,
Ms. Guternouth?
A. | see the docunent. \What does not
seemto be here is the attachnent.
Q Ckay. Do you recognize this docunment?
A. | do.
Q Thank you.
And if asked these questions today,
you can take a nonent to read the response,
woul d your answer be the same?

A. Yes.
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MS. CLAIR: And then if you could
turn, please, to the tab OPC 16 -- OPC 69,
excuse me, which has been pre-marked for
identification, Your Honor, as Exhibit OPC 69.
It's the response to OPC Discovery Request
17-20, and we would ask to have it marked for
identification as Exhibit OPC 29.
CHAlI RMAN KANE: So mar ked.
(Exhi bit No. OPC 29 marked.)
BY MS. CLAIR:
Q. Ms. Guternouth, do you recognize this
response, as well?
A. | do.
Q. And i f asked today, would your answer
be the same?
A. It woul d, yes.
Q. Yes? Okay.
MS. CLAIR: Those are all of ny
questions. Thank you.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.
Ms. Francis?

MS. FRANCI S: No questions, Your
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Honor .
CHAI RMAN KANE: DC gover nnment ?
MR. STRAUSS: No questions, Your
Honor .
CHAI RMAN KANE: Departnent of Defense?
MS. MEDLYN: No questions, Your Honor.
MR. Pl ZOR: No questions, Your Honor.
MR. W LDER: None. Thank you, Your
Honor .

CHAI RMAN KANE: Redirect?

MR. DODGE: No redirect, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ckay.

MR. DODGE: And | believe Ms.
Gutermouth's rebuttal is already in the record.
And do we want to handle JA 12 now? If so, |
nmove its adm ssion.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Are you noving for its
adm ssi on?

MR. DODGE: We nove for the adm ssion
of JA 12.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So admtt ed.

(Exhibit No. JA 12 admitted.)
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CHAI RMAN KANE: People's Counsel ?
Exhi bits?
MS. CLAIR: Your Honor, nove for
adm ssion of exhibits OPC 27, 28 and 29, please?
MR. DODGE: Your Honor, if | can be
heard. We're not going to object to OPC 28.
wonder if counsel would stipulate to including
the attachment to make it conpl ete?
MS. CLAIR:  Yes.
CHAI RMAN KANE: W th the attachnment,
that is entered into evidence.
(Exhibit No. OPC 27 admitted.)
(Exhibit No. OPC 28 adm tted.)
(Exhibit No. OPC 29 admtted.)
CHAI RMAN KANE: |If there's nothing
further from Ms. Guternmouth, she nmay be excused.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
CHAI RMAN KANE: W'l | take a break.
We' Il conme back at 1:00 after lunch. |If there
are any other stipulations or anything else
you've gotta work out, let's see if we can do

that so we can go nore snmoothly. After |unch
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we wll have M. O Brien, and then the DC

government's got sone brief questions, and the
Comm ssi on has sonme questions for M. O Brien
probably 20, 30 m nutes. Federal governnment has
some questions.

Ckay. Anybody el se? People's
Counsel, do you have any questions of
M. OBrien on rebuttal ?

MS. CLAIR:  No, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

And then we should be able to get
to, certainly, M. Harris, M. Chapman, and,
per haps, M. Ammann this afternoon.

Al'l right. Thank you.

(Lunch recess.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: Good afternoon. W
are resumng with Formal Case 1142. It is 1:05
p. m

Before we start with our next wtness,
| did want to introduce a Comm ssion exhibit.
This was the -- this is, rather, the

suppl emental public response to the Public
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Service Comm ssion's Data Request Nunber 1,

dat ed Decenber 12th, 2017. And this is the

guestion that we asked about including property

tax in the calculation of infrastructure
| ong-term savi ngs.

We'll mark this as PSC Number 2, and

put it into the record.

(Exhibit No. PSC 2 marked.)

(Exhibit No. PSC 2 admitted.)
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Al l

next witness, or unless there

prelimnary itens or
parties, or any parties, |

VMR. CURRAN: Your

to the witness stand M. John

He is avail able for
THE SECRETARY:

CHAI RMAN KANE:  And,

are still under oath.

THE W TNESS: Yes,

MR. GRAY: Your

Honor ,

Honor ,

right. Call your

are any ot her

matters of any other

shoul d say?

we woul d call
O Bri en.

Cross-exam nati on.

He's been sworn.

M. O Brien, you

Chai rman Kane.

OPC does not

M. O Brien.

have any questions at this tinme for
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identified in the list of cross-exam nation
exhibits. And in an effort to stream ine the
hearing, as we indicated yesterday, we're
attenpting to reach stipulations with the joint
applicants so that those docunments can be fil ed,
rat her than asking each witness to identify
every docunent.

We're getting close to the end of
the hearing. W still do not have an answer on
t hose requests for stipulations. So | hope we
can avoid this, and I will continue working with
t he Joint Applicants, and we raised it again
over the lunch hour, but the worst-case scenario
is that we would have to recall every w tness
t hat we waived cross on and go through the
nmoti on of going through those docunents in. So
| just wanted to make the Comm ssion aware of
that, that we're trying to work through the
issue, and | think we can, but as of yet we do
not have any resol ution.

CHAlI RMAN KANE: Joint Applicants?
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MR. CURRAN: Sure. We're continuing
to work with OPC. Sonme of these docunents are
continuing to cone in, and we will review and we
will work with our coll eagues at OPC and ot hers
to get those stipul ations.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

DC governnment, you have sonme questions
for this w tness?

MR. HOPKINS: Thank you, Your Honor.

Yes.

Wher eupon - -
JOHN O BRI EN
called to testify, having been previously first
duly sworn or affirmed, was exam ned and
testified as foll ows:
CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. HOPKI NS:

Q M . Hopkins for DC governnment.

Good afternoon, M. O Brien. How ar e

you?

A. Hey, M. Hopkins. How are you?
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Q. Very good. Thank you.
l'd like to briefly focus on
the Maryl and settlement and a question that
M. Harris suggested m ght be better put to
you. Just to reestablish, you were here for
M. Harris's direct exam nation, correct?

A. | was.

Q Do you recall M. Harris being asked
why the Maryl and settl ement provision concerning
NAFTA appears under the subheadi ng, quote,
ensuring safe and reliable service, unquote?

A. | do recall the question.

Q And M. Harris suggested that you
m ght be able to answer that question. Do you
recall that?

A. | recall that. | know the org chart,
as well. |'d have to answer anyway.

Q Do you know why the Maryl and
settl ement provision concerning NAFTA appears
under the subheadi ng, ensuring safe and relying
service?

A. You know, | apol ogize. | do.
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mean, it's really about drafting, and it was

com ng together late. It probably should have
its own separate title, because it is a separate
provision. So it's nerely a matter of titling

t he docunent. And, certainly, the titles, we
don't think, are the matter of the settlenment.
The actual settlenment | anguage is inportant, so
it probably should have its own separate title.

Q Thank you for that.

And as we sit here today, the joint
applicants have not proposed any commtnent in
this proceedi ng concerni ng NAFTA, correct?

A. That's correct.

MR. HOPKINS: That's all | have.
Thank you.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

Federal governnment?

MS. MEDLYN: Good afternoon. Emlly
Medl yn for the United States Departnent of
Def ense and all other Federal Executive
Agenci es.

Iy
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CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. MEDLYN:
Hell o, M. O Brien.
Good afternoon.

| just a few questions for you.

> O »>» O

Sur e.

Q On Page -- Line -- on Page 1, Line 19
t hrough 23, through Page 20, Lines 1 through 20
of your rebuttal testinony, you state that the
pur pose of your rebuttal testinony is to review
and di scuss many comm tnents that the applicants
have made, which includes discussing clarifying
| anguage that has been incorporated into several
of them

Did | state that accurately?

A. Yes, you did.

Q And included in that is Commtnent 38
of the Commtnents, on Page 17 of 27 of Exhibit
JA3C-1, which is the so-called Hold Harnl ess
Commi t ment .

A. That's correct.

Q Are you famliar with that comm tment?
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A. I am
Q Ckay. Have you al so reviewed John
Reed's rebuttal testinony?
A. l"'mfamliar with M. Reed's

t esti nony, yes.

Q Ckay. And is it up there? | have
some questions, and it m ght be easier if you
have a copy of it.

A. It's probably right in front of nme.

My nother, the librarian, would have
been very upset with that, not finding it.
M. Reed's testinony?
Q. Correct.
| f you could turn to Page 52.
A. Sur e.
Of his rebuttal or his direct?

Q Correct. His rebuttal.

A. Page 52. | got it. Yes.

Q. Okay. If you will |look on M. Reed's
rebuttal testinony, Page 52, Lines 3 through 18,
to Page 53, Lines 1 through 5, particularly, are

you famliar with the clarification | anguage

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1554

that M. Reed discusses regarding Comm tnent 38
in the exceptions cl ause?

A. In terms of the positive changes, the
exception clause, is that what you're referring
to?

Q. Correct.

A. Yes.

Q And | believe it states that custoners
of Washington Gas will be held harm ess for a
peri od of eight years from adverse rate inpacts
due to an increase in Washington Gas's cost of
debt that is caused by the merger with AltaGas
or the ongoing affiliation with AltaGas and its
affiliates after the nerger, except to the
extent that such adverse rate inpacts have been
mtigated by positive changes and any other cost
of capital el enment.

And then he goes on to clarify that
exceptions clause on Page 52, Lines 10 through
15, and he states that that nmeans that
Washi ngton Gas may offset increases in the cost

of debt with decreases in other elenments of the
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cost of capital only when those decreases are

the result of actions taken by AltaGas, WGL
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Hol di ngs or Washi ngton Gas, and not when the

positive change is due to market condition.

|s that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. However, that clarification
| anguage was not added to Comm t nent 38,
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And if this merger were be

to be approved, Commtnent 38, as it

IS written

ri ght now, would allow Washi ngton Gas to offset

i ncreases in the cost of debt with decreases in

ot her elements of the cost of capital

for both

actions taken by AltaGas, WGL Hol di ngs and

Washi ngt on Gas and changes in capital
conditions; is that correct?

A. It could be read that way.

mar ket

Q. Ckay. So but in the future, if the

merger i s approved, someone who is interpreting

and applying Comm tnent 38, if they were not
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aware of M. Reed's rebuttal |anguage, it could
be read for including positive changes in market
condi tions, correct?

A. Yes. | think the record would reflect
that -- well, first of all, if | could, could I
step back for a nonent?

Q. Sur e.

A. If I -- if I -- as a -- if | thought
agai n about drafting this |anguage, instead of
the term except, where it says, except to the
extent that such adverse rate inpact has been
mtigated by positive changes and ot her cost of
capital elements, | probably woul d have used the
term including to the extent. Because | think
except begins to put into people's mnds that we
are trying to do sonething which is not the
i ntent here of the comm tnent.

However, your question is a bit
br oader, and what | -- what | would suggest is
that | was asked on ny first time on the stand
whet her or not we had the burden of proof in

denmonstrating all of this, in ternms of the hold
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harm ess, which we do, we have the burden of
proof before this Conmm ssion to denmonstrate that
we are not harmng custonmers in any way. So it
is, you know, the case that if that |anguage

gi ves some people pause to think that we're
meani ng nore, or we're going nore broadly than
M. Reed, you know, we'd certainly welcome, you
know, others' accepting of |anguage that did not
include that clause. W want to cone before
this Comm ssion and show that we are hol di ng
custonmers harm ess for any change in cost of
debt as a result of this merger.

We believe that, even if we did not
have that clause there, for instance, we would
put together -- we would put forward our case
denmonstrating, if, in fact, there was a harm
in terms of the cost of debt, and, B, anything
that we did to mtigate that, and that would
absolutely be in line with M. Reed's testinony,
t hat we could not take advantage of the fact
t hat there was sone other positive market

change; that we would have to denonstrate that
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we were mtigating that harm wi t hout reliance on
a positive change that customers woul d ot herw se

benefit from

t hat

to just recognize that we, again, under the
Comm ssion having jurisdiction over this matter,
in these matters when we cone back for any rate

case, that, A, we have the burden of proof, but

t hat
f act

t hat

clarification included in M. Reed's rebuttal ?

based on a market condition, we're going to use

a market condition to try and |lean on that. W

want

harm t hrough a mtigation or we're going to hold

, if there were any mtigating circunstances

Page 1558

So if the | anguage causes concern,

is not our intent to do that. We want ed

we are able to put in our case, showi ng, in

we coul d denpnstrat e.
Q Thank you.

So you woul d agree, then, with the

A. | woul d.
Q Ckay.
A. We don't in any way want to say that,

to show that we've either addressed the
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t he custonmers harnml ess for that cost, that would

be denonstrat ed.

And M. Ammann, not to over-vol unteer
peopl e, but M. Ammnn can nmake cl ear again what
| tried to do in nmy earlier testinony, that this
can be a very transparent process, that you can
see by different bond market, either periodicals
or actions that are taken, or S&P review, we
can make very clear what rates our cost of debt
should be for simlarly sized debt issuances by
simlar entities.

So we do believe we can make that case
either way to show that harm or show there is
no harm and then, if the mtigation is there,
it would actually have to be in line with what
M. Reed has testified to.

Q Ckay. And | believe that you said
the joint applicants would be open to revising
Commtment 8 [sic] to clarify --

A. Thirty-eight, yes. Yes.

Q. Al right. Thank you very nuch.

That's all | have.
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A. Absol utely. Thank you.

MR. PIZOR: NCLC has no questions,
Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

The Comm ssion does have sone
questions, M. OBrien, nostly on clarification

First of all, again on Commtnent 38,
and I'mreferring to, of course, Exhibit 1, with
your rebuttal testimny, JA 3C, you have -- the
Joint Applicants have revised Commtnment 38 to
extend the hold harnl ess provision fromfive
years to eight years. It was five years in the
original commtnment, now proposed to be eight
years.

Can you explain in greater detail how
the Joint Applicants plan to denonstrate that
any increase costs in debt are not related to
t he merger?

THE W TNESS: Yes. And, again,
that's why | did volunteer M. Ammann to nmaybe
suppl ement ny answer, Chairman Kane. But |

t hi nk what we woul d be denonstrating, and |
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think M. Ammann earlier in the Maryl and
proceedi ng used an exanmple, for instance, if
an entity went out for a hundred mllion dollar
debt issuance, you can denonstrate, due to the
mar ket conditi ons when that debt issuance is
i ssued, any difference in cost of that debt
bet ween different credit-rated entities. And I
think M. Ammann can give you a nore detail ed
description of the evidence that we would put
forward to show what -- if there was any cost
di fference between debt issuances.

CHAI RMAN KANE: My question, though,
is how you woul d denonstrate that the increased
costs of debt are not related to the merger?
And | think your answer --

THE W TNESS: Oh, I'"msorry.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- went to how you
coul d denmonstrate what the market conditions
were that may have influenced or spurred the
change in the cost in debt.

The question is, how you would

denonstrate, how do you plan to denonstrate,
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t hat any increased costs of debt are not rel ated

to the merger and not as a consequence of the
merger or as a result of the nerger?

THE W TNESS: And, again, 1'Il rely
a bit on M. Ammann and M. Toivanen in this
i nstance, but | do think there could, in fact,
be ot her cost measures that we'd take internally
that we could demonstrate. But | also believe
t hat there could be other market changes that we
coul d denmonstrate that inpact the industry as a
whol e, and, in fact, inpact the cost of debt,
but | would | eave that with M. Ammann and
M . Toi vanen.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. |1'IIl take that
up with them

Then | want to turn to Comm tnment 43,
the revised 43, again, in Exhibit 1 in JA 3Cl
And if you would turn to Page 20 of t hat
exhibit. [It's |abeled 20 of 26.

THE W TNESS: Okay.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And |'m just going

to quote sone things fromit and ask you
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questions on it.
Starting about -- the exhibit doesn't
have any |ine nunbers, --
THE W TNESS: Sorry.
CHAI RMAN KANE: -- but starting about

hal fway down the page, and it's all one great,
bi g paragraph, too, so, at |east your nother
wasn't an English teacher. She was a |ibrarian.
THE W TNESS: Exactly. | apol ogize.
My m ddl e name is run-on.
CHAlI RMAN KANE: About hal fway through
t he page there's a sentence that starts, and
"1l just quote it to you, if Washington Gas is
included in a consolidated group with AltaGas
subsidiaries for the purpose of filing federa
or state inconme tax returns and the ratings for
Al taGas's senior unsecured |long-term public
debt securities without third-party credit
enhancenment i s downgraded to a rating that
I ndi cates new, quote, substantial risks, colon,
paren, below B3 by Mody's, or B mnus by S&P or

Fitch, by, and | want to focus on these words,
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any of these three major credit agencies. And

then little while further down in that sane

par agraph, Washi ngton Gas shall be required to
surrender or release such collateral or security
to AltaGas, colon, one, pronmptly after the
rating of AltaGas's senior unsecured |ong-term
public debt wi thout third-party enhancenent is
restored to a rating above, quote, substanti al
risks, and it's, paren, at or above B3 by
Moody's, B m nus by S&P or Fitch, or B by DBRS.
And then what | want to enphasize is by at | east
two of the four credit rating agencies.

So can you claima difference -- one
time you say any of the three major credit
rating agencies in the case of AltaGas's senior
unsecured | ong-term debt downgrade, and when
you' re tal king about senior unsecured |ong-term
debt upgrade, you use the phrase, at |east two
out of the four credit agencies -- credit rating
agenci es.

Wiy is there -- why does one say, any

of -- | guess that would be any one of the three
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maj or credit agencies for downgrading, at |east
two of the four for upgradi ng?

THE W TNESS: Yes. Well, first of
all, I think any of the four, and, again, | wll
defer a bit to M. Toivanen on this, but --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Correction. It says
any of the three.

THE W TNESS: That's right.

The any of the three is any one of the

t hree.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Ri ght.
THE W TNESS: The restoration
of two of the four, | wll double-check wth

M. Toivanen on this, DBRS is a credit rating
agency in Canada that currently rates on debt,
and is not probably as well-used here in the
US. So | would just double-check with

M. Toivanen as to why we're saying two there.
But it is, in fact, just -- it is one of the
three that we have to put up the protection,
and we have to energe after two of four on

restoring our credit to their appropriate
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ratings.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. And could you
just identify another place you used the word
-- well, in the first quote that | had, you had
the three major credit rating agencies. Are
there other credit rating agencies that aren't
consi dered maj or?

THE W TNESS: | would defer to
M. Toivanen on that. | do believe that mgjor
is modified by that Moody's, S&P or Fitch.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. So ny question

is, who are the major three and who are the

four?

THE W TNESS: Yes. Yeah.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Now, AltaGas is
rated only by one -- is it true that AltaGas is

rated only by one rating agency in the United
St at es?
THE W TNESS: S&P, subject to check
with M. Toivanen, but | believe that's correct.
CHAI RMAN KANE: And so if -- as you

said, since the upgrade requires at |east two
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credit opinions, would it be necessary to obtain
Al taGas ratings from another U. S.-based mgjor
credit agency, such as Moody's or Fitch?

THE W TNESS: No. We in this -- we
are adding the two of the four, which I think is
-- would be one of the U S., plus -- or it could
be two of the U S., or it could be S& and DBRS
in the way we read -- the way this comm tnment is
written.

CHAI RMAN KANE: It could be two of the
four if you're only rated by one in the U S.,
right?

THE W TNESS: Yes. But | think what
happens post-nerger is we will -- | apol ogi ze.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yeah.

THE WTNESS: We will, post-nerger, by
definition, be rated by someone else in the
U S, in addition to the S&P, | apol ogi ze.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Thank you.

Changi ng subjects now, just one quick
gquestion on the Special Entity Purpose, SPE,

excuse me, Special Purpose Enterprise. W have
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information in the record in a confidenti al

filing about the nunmber of people, et cetera, on
t hat board, you know, that would be a board at
SPE. But could you indicate, if it's not
confidential, who would be the chairmn of

the SPE, either which position or if there's a

person already in m nd?

THE WTNESS: | would [eave that to
M. Harris. | don't know that there's a person
in mnd. | do think -- I'"'m-- yes, |I'd |leave it

to M. Harris.

CHAI RMAN KANE: M. Harris. Okay.
Thank you.

And, again, would you clarify
this, maybe M. Harris too, who, and | nean
what position, not the name of the person but
where they would come from would serve as the
chai rperson or chairman of the Board for
Washi ngton Gas, the regulated utility?

THE WTNESS: | will again defer to
M. Harris on that.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Maybe you can

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1569

answer this one: There's information in the
record about the fact that Washington Gas -- the
cash-pooling arrangenent. Could you confirm
t hat Washi ngton Gas, the regulated utility, wl
not participate in a cash-pooling arrangenment
wi t h Washi ngton Gas Light Hol di ngs?

THE W TNESS: Yes, | believe | can
confirmthat.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Can you clarify any
changes which m ght be needed in the regul ated
utilities liquidity position, again, we're
t al ki ng about Washington Gas, the distribution
and default comodity provider, any changes
whi ch may be needed in Washington Gas's
[iquidity position given the currently
contenpl ated ring-fencing neasures?

THE W TNESS: M. Ammann can answer
t hat .

CHAI RVAN KANE: Okay. | hope
M. Ammann i s taking notes, and maybe this
is for him too: To bolster the regul ated

utilities liquidity position as a ring-fenced
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entity, will the Joint Applicants need to
establish a m ni num cash position target for the
utility?

THE WTNESS: | don't believe so, but,
agai n, doubl e-check with M. Ammann.

CHAI RMAN KANE: [t's our information
that the regulated utility has carried a
t housand dol | ar cash position as of the end of
the last two fiscal years despite its current
asset base of approximately $5 billion. W
understand -- would you confirmthat the
regul ated utility has access to an unsecured
credit line of $350 mIlion?

THE W TNESS: | would subject -- |
woul d et M. Ammann confirmthat.

CHAl RMAN KANE: Okay. All the rest
of that.

We'll also be asking to confirmit has
t he capability to issue commercial paper, and
t he question would be, would it be prudent to
establish a m ni num cash position for the

regul ated utility at a nmeaningful |evel, and the
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I mplication being that the thousand doll ars
m ght not be terribly meani ngful.

THE W TNESS: Okay.

CHAI RMAN KANE: I n ternms of the board,
again, one of the clarifications that on one of
the commtnments is to maintain four independent
directors on the board.

THE W TNESS: That's correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Would that be a
per manent | ong-term arrangenent on the board?

THE W TNESS: Yes. The intent would
be that the four nmenmbers -- if one of the four,
for instance, rotated off the board, there
woul d be an attenpt, if there were another WGLH
current board nenber who could come on but net
t he i ndependence test, and, if not, it would
still be an independent menber, nmeaning a
non-WGL -- in other words; if there were a WGLH
current board nenber that was not on the new WG
board, and net the independence test, we would
try for that first, just because of their

knowl edge of the utility and so forth.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Where i s Washi ngton
Gas incorporated, for the record?

THE W TNESS: Del awar e.

Am 1 right? |'mnot right.

M . Ammann.

CHAI RMAN KANE: I'Ill be asking
M. Ammann, then, about, obviously, anmendnents
to articles of incorporation.

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Comm t ment Nunber 60
has to do with costs relate to disaffiliation
and divestiture.

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Could you clarify
-- let me ask you to clarify the responsibility
for any costs related to just any potential or
future disaffiliation or divestiture provision,
such as divestiture, spin-off, re-registration
with the SEC, and, specifically, will the
regul ated utility be responsi ble or would the
regul ated utility be responsible for such costs?

THE W TNESS: No. Qur intent is that
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we woul d have to be responsi ble for those costs.

CHAI RMAN KANE: You?

THE W TNESS: ALA, AltaGas.

CHAI RMAN KANE: AltaGas.

In the final Virginia merger
and acquisition approval order, there's a
reference to safety requirenents. Are you the
person who can clarify the extent to which
t hose safety requirements that are in the final
Virginia order would be adopted in both DC and
Maryl and, | mean, given that the conpany
operates as one systenf?

THE WTNESS: | believe they would be,
but | want to make sure, when M. Chapman is up,
to make sure that that is correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. And you may
direct this one -- you nmay decide to direct
this to M. Chapman, too, but Washi ngton Gas
in the District has a FMCSA, a Federal DOT
desi gnati on as a high-consequence utility given
its location.

The question is, will the Joint
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Applicants include any additional commtments

regardi ng gas safety and reliability
specifically in the District given t
hi gh-consequence desi gnati on?

THE W TNESS: | would -- |
sure with M. Chapman that we answer
correctly.

CHAI RMAN KANE: | have a ¢
about project pipes, but probably th
M. Chapman, too?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Goi

hat

woul d make

t hat

uestion

at's for

ng back

gquickly to Commtment 38, there is a hold

harm ess provision in there?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And there
addi tional conditions and caveats wh
added in the revised Comm t ment 38.
alittle bit nmore, given that the re
utility is going to be ring-fenced,
to be ring-fenced, and there will be

Pur pose Entity, and although we have

are sone

Ich were
Expl ai n

gul at ed

or proposed
a Speci al

n't gotten
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an answer, but presum ng that the liquidity

position of the regulated utility would be

bol stered, why did you feel there was a
necessity for the additional conditions and
caveats regarding all the changes in credit
ratings, which was ny first question? | should
have asked them together; in other words, the
one of three, the two of four?

THE W TNESS: Well, just stepping
back, | think that we wanted to make sure that,
you know -- | think stepping back when we fil ed
this application, Chairmn Kane, we recognized
t hat AltaGas may not be a household nane in
terms of the energy industry. And | think that
we wanted to make sure that people knew -- from
a protection-of-the-customer profile or
position, that we wanted to nake sure that we
were representing to all three Conm ssions that
we would -- that we're a strong conpany and that
we would al so provide commtnents to make sure
t hat there would be no inpact because we are at

a Triple B credit rating and the utility is at a
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hi gher credit rating.

And so we wanted to make sure that
-- and, again, M. Harris talked a little bit
about the combination of the two utilities and
why we believe, at the end of that day, that's
strong, because, you know, you have both the new
ener gy econony of advanced technol ogy or changes
in policy, but you also want to make sure that
you maintain the stability of the utility.

So we put in commtnents here
to ensure that we were protecting, and could
denmonstrate to the Comm ssion that we were
protecting customers from any possi bl e inmpacts
on the credit rating differential.

| think when the application
began, for instance, we m ght have tal ked,
for instance, about two of the credit agencies,
i nstead of one. But we recognize -- and there
are an anomalies that can happen in credit,
there are exanples of credit rating agencies
doi ng things that m ght be anomal ous, and that's

why we said two instead of one. But we
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recogni zed throughout this process that it

continued to be a concern, so we wanted to
denmonstrate that we had no fear of that concern,
and we wanted to make sure the customers were

pr ot ect ed.

So there may be changes you see in
terms of one to two, in ternms of credit rating
agencies tied to certain commtnents. W' ve,
| " m not sure lessened is the right term but we
wanted to make sure that we tried to answer sone
of the intervenor's concerns.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. Let ne
just follow up two things on that, particularly
in the context of the revised ring-fencing --

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- provisions.

Have you recei ved any advanced or
any direct guidance fromany of the major credit
rati ng agencies, the ones we've been talking
about, as to their views regarding the potenti al
i npact on the credit rating -- excuse ne, credit

ratings of the utility in consideration, in
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| i ght of the proposed ring-fencing nmeasures?

THE W TNESS: No; however, M. Harris
has been nmore direct than | have in his neetings
with the credit agencies. Wat | would say is
that, froma | egal perspective, | believe one
of the commtnments that is inportant here is the
need to get a non-consolidation opinion. So one
of the commtnments in our Special Purpose
entity commtnents is that we have to get a
non- consol i dation opinion that certifies that
we have nore than adequately created the
ring-fencing protection. And that is a -- a
docunent that will be before all of the
Comm ssi ons, nunber one, and nunmber two, then,
if, for any reason there were changes down the
road in ternms of organizational changes in the
conpany, we would have to denonstrate to this
Comm ssi on that the non-consolidation opinion
still applied and we were neeting the standards
of an SPE.

|f there are nore direct conversations

that M. Harris can speak about in terns of the
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rating agencies, then | would defer to him on
t hat.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. And what
| specifically wanted to focus on is, again, in
Comm tment 38, | guess it's, like, the third
or fourth sentence in, it says, in any rate
proceeding for this eight-year period after the
merger closed, any increase of Washi ngton Gas
cost of debt for which rate recovery is sought
will be supported by docunentation show ng that
either the increase is a result of factors not
associ ated with the merger, or the post-nmerger
operations of AltaGas and its Washi ngton Gas
affiliates, or that the increase has been
m tigated by positive changes in other costs
of capital elements.

And the question is, given the
ring-fencing, | guess I'mtrying to find out,
again, have you gotten any gui dance from
the rating agencies that if these revised
ring-fencing provisions were to be put in place

that it would influence how they rated the

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1580
conpany?

THE WTNESS: | believe that, yes, and
| believe that M. Harris can be nore direct in
how we have either -- described our proposal to
t he rating agencies, either pre or post-filing,
but | think that that's best for himbecause
he's actually talked with them

CHAI RMAN KANE: Maybe | didn't listen
correctly, but | thought you had said that you
had not sought any such gui dance?

THE W TNESS: | apologize. | don't
know t hat we sought guidance. | don't -- what
| would like is for M. Harris to explain it and
whet her or not there's been any briefing or
di scussion with the rating agenci es.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

| think |I have just one nore
guestion: Let's assunme there is a near-term
credit rating downgrade of at |east two notches,
that's been tal ked about as a possibility, could
you clarify the potential effects of any

deterioration on the regulated utility's
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fl exi ble access to capital in a down market

regardl ess of the cost of such debt? So what
l'"mgoing to is, you said AltaGas is Triple B
Washi ngton Gas right nowis A mnus. And
Washi ngt on Gas -- does Washi ngton Gas now have
any difficulty raising capital?

THE W TNESS: No

CHAI RMAN KANE: No.

Woul d you agree that when a conpany's
rating is downgraded, its access to capital may

become nore difficult or nore expensive?

THE WTNESS: | think -- there are two
things. | don't think that -- | think -- first
of all, AltaGas has not had any trouble getting

access to capital at a Triple B. And | think
t hat when we're tal king about either one of
t hose ratings, there is not a trouble getting
access to capital.

There could be a cost differential,
and, again, M. Ammann is best to give you a
coupl e exanmpl es of what that differential m ght

be. So Comm tment 38 recognizes there could
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be a cost differential, but in ternms of both
conpani es before you today, there has not been a
difficulty of getting access to capital.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And | guess then ny
guestion goes, there's a cost differential, --

THE W TNESS: There m ght be.

CHAI RMAN KANE: There m ght be.

-- so that the rate that you'd have to
pay as a Triple B conpany m ght be higher than
what you woul d be paying as Triple AL So if
there were to be a two-notch downgrade on the
regul ated utility, am1l correct in assum ng
t hat, then, they would be paying nore for their
borrow ng, --

THE W TNESS: Again, they m ght be --

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- all other things
bei ng equal ?

THE W TNESS: All other things being
equal , there could be an increase in cost.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Who woul d make up that
cost ?

THE WTNESS: We in 38 are saying we
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would, if that was the -- because that's a
result of the nerger.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And for eight years?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: But what happens after
ei ght years? Who makes it up?

THE W TNESS: Well, what we -- we
don't believe, based on what we believe we put
into the record is, if you | ook at Washi ngton
-- WGLH as a standal one, --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes.

THE WTNESS: -- five years hence,
that, in fact, where WGLH is going will not be
much of a credit rating differential than ALA is
t oday, at the parent level. So that we -- we,
A, believe, and we started out at five years,
and we got these questions in Maryland, that we
i ncrease the nunber of years, but we believe
that we will show at a period ending in five
years, as our original commtnent was, or in
ei ght years, that there would not be this

differential as a result of the merger.
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If there is, and if we cannot show
t hat has changed, we -- we are in front of -- we
al ways are in front of the Conm ssion and the
Comm ssion's jurisdiction to denonstrate, if
we have, in fact, satisfied this commtnent.
And if we have not, we fully expect that this
Comm ssion would recognize that in any future
rate case.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And - -

We believe the time is -- | apol ogi ze,
Chai rman Kane.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Finish your sentence.

THE W TNESS: No. We believe that the
time period is a reasonable amount of time to
get to what a conbined entity with a credit
rating would be that is a strong credit rating
and that recognizes and reflects the combi ned
entity as simlar to where WGLH woul d be by
itself in five to eight years. But if there is
an inpact to the custoners, we fully recognize
t hat either you, directly as the Comm ssion, or

i ntervenors would raise that. And we woul d

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1585

ei ther have to denpbnstrate that we mtigated
or erase that harm or we recogni ze that the
Comm ssion could take action on that.

CHAI RMAN KANE: As a result of -- so
you're saying -- interesting question. Wre
there not to be a nerger, you're saying that the
direction that Washi ngton Gas Hol di ngs i s headed
by expandi ng into unregul ated areas, their
credit rated is headed down anyway?

THE WTNESS: |'msaying it could be.

CHAI RMAN KANE: It coul d be.

THE W TNESS: Because, in fact, |
believe it's in the record, but there is an
agency that, basically, downgraded WGLH
-- there's reference nade to the nmerger, but, in
fact, 1t's because of the unregul ated busi ness.
And | think that, when you look at it, Triple B
as -- you know, there are many conmpanies in our
i ndustry that are at Triple B, and we believe
it's a very strong credit rating. But we do
bel i eve five years' hence that WGLH will go from

70/ 30, in terms of earnings or revenue out of
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the utility, to about 50/50. And when you | ook

at that, a credit rating agency wl

t ake

that into account when it | ooks at a rating.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And a Comm ssion to

take that into account, too, both in how it

separates -- | nean, it could -- it

separate out -- | nean, let's talk

coul d

t heoretically, if the Comm ssion saw that a

conmpany that it was regulating, that

its

credit rating was goi ng down, presumably, the

Comm ssion would have authority to say, get out

of that business or separate -- not

get out of

t hat business, I'msorry, | don't have that

authority, but keep the -- separate
regulated utility fromthe unregul at

activities, in ternms of operations,

out the
ed

in terns

of borrowing, in terns of, therefore, rates.

THE W TNESS: Yes. And |
what we are |aying the beginnings of

combi nati on.

think that's

in this

| f you take the Special Purpose

Entity, and, again, there are sone questions
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t ake the Special Purpose Entity to make sure you
are ring-fencing the utility, protecting the
stability of the utility, you are, de facto,

ri ght now, beginning to nake sure that the

ut i

happen on the unregul ated side of the business.

t hi

busi ness that we are tal king about is fairly

wel

generation that WGLH has, or the power business
t hat we have or the m dstream busi ness that we

have.

are before you today with very strong credit

rat

trying to paint is that this conbined entity,
and the comm tnments we have put in seeking your

approval, begin to protect that utility in a way

it

Pur

Page 1587

| have deferred to M. Ammann, but if you

lity is protected from anything that m ght

Now, again, when we | ook at

s conmbi nati on, the unregul ated side of the

| -contracted business, either the distributed

So we still believe both conpanies

i ngs, but we do -- the -- the picture we are

I's not protected today, with the Speci al

pose Entity and the other conmm tnents.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: But there won't be
separate Washi ngton Gas stock, --
THE W TNESS: That's correct.
CHAI RMAN KANE: -- or separate stock
for the regulated utilities as a group?
THE W TNESS: That's correct.
But in ternms of debt and capital,
we' ve made comm tnents as to Washi ngton Gas and
t hat separ at eness.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. That's ny
guesti ons.
MR. CURRAN: No redirect, Your Honor.
CHAl RMAN KANE: No redirect?
And no exhi bits because, everything
was already in the record, correct?
MR. CURRAN: Correct.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you, M.
O Brien.
THE W TNESS: Thank you, Chairman
Kane.
Thank you, Conm ssioners.

MR. DUBOI S: Your Honor, WIIliam
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Duboi s for Joint Applicants. Could I offer one
non- substantive clarification on the discussion
on Condition 43A?

CHAI RMAN KANE: Can you offer that?

MR. DUBO'S: Yes. It's not something
the witness, | think, could have answer ed.
It's, again, non-substantive.

To the extent there are questions
about some of the contents or the nmeani ng of
words in that conmm tment, applicant wi tnesses
can certainly try to answer those. That
comm tment, however, was drafted by DC
governnment. That was in M. Smth's testinony.
It was at Page 24 of 24.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Which comm tment are
you tal ki ng about ?

MR. DUBOI'S: This is Comm tnment 43A,
whi ch was where you were discussing the one out
of three and two out of four.

CHAI RMAN KANE: MM hmm

MR. DUBO'S: So |I'm not sure that

applicant witnesses can answer intent questions
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on that, because M. Smth drafted that

conm t ment .

CHAI RMAN KANE: But the applicants are
presenting it to us, not DC governnent.

MR. DUBO S: Right. But the applicant
can't answer what the applicant was thinking
when it wote the commtnment. W can try to
answer how we understood it, certainly, but not
drafting questions.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Wit a m nute.

MR. DUBO S: That's all | was
trying --

CHAI RMAN KANE: [t's your conmm tnment
that AltaGas will be held responsible for --

MR. DUBO S: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- SO --

MR. DUBO'S: Your Honor, |'mjust
trying to distinguish between neani ng and what
was meant when the words were chosen.

CHAI RMAN KANE: But you accepted the
wor ds.

MR. DUBO S: Yeah.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. Thank you.

M. Cal dwel | ?

MR. CALDWELL: | was just going to
of fer the observation that the District of
Col umbi a governnent did not draft the
comm tments for the Joint Applicants.

CHAI RMAN KANE: You may have suggest ed
t hi ngs that woul d be acceptabl e.

MR. CALDWELL: Correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

Al right. Call your next w tness.

MR. CURRAN: Yes, Your Honor, we'll be
calling M. David Harris to the wi tness stand.

Your Honor, the witness is avail able
for cross-exam nation.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. Questions
for M. Harris?

MR. GRAY: Sanme caveat as to
continuing to work on a stipulation as to
cross-exam nation exhibits. OPC does not have
any questions.

MS. FRANCI'S: No questions.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: DC gover nnent ?

MR. STRAUSS: Yes, Your Honor.

* * *

Wher eupon - -

DAVI D HARRI S,

called to testify, having been previously first
duly sworn or affirmed, was exam ned and

testified as foll ows:

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q M. Harris, we're old friends. Let's

get started. Please turn to your rebuttal at

Page 7, please.

A. Yes, sSir.

Q And starting at Line 1 over to Page 8,

you address what you refer to as DCG Wt ness
McM chael ' s perceptions about issues with
AltaGas's cybersecurity programs; is that

correct?

A. Correct.

Q And at Line 7 there on Page 7 you

reference the Price Waterhouse Coopers report on
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cybersecurity measures, correct?
A. Yes, | do.
Q. Al right. | have two initial, and |

believe sinple yes or no questions. Here's the
first one: Is it your testinmony that the Price
WAt er house assessnment concl udes that AltaGas's
cybersecurity prograns are consistent with

i ndustry best practices?

A. | guess the -- that's a tough yes
or no, as | think we've asked Price Waterhouse
-- excuse me, PWC to cone on in and do a cyber
assessnment as a result of where we are or where
our trajectory was. So | think it's reflective
of where we were at the time, and then where we
need to go to our satisfaction.

Q Well, actually, my question was where
you were at the time. Did Price Waterhouse
concl ude that your cyber prograns are consi stent
with industry best practices? Did they reach
t hat concl usi on?

A. No. | think they indicated there's

room for inmprovenment.
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Q. Ckay. And would |I also be correct
t hat Price Waterhouse did not concl ude that

your cybersecurity prograns are consi stent

with excellence in utility operations; is that
correct?
A. Yes. But, again, | would like to just

refine that is, the reason we've done that is we
knew where we wanted to mgrate to, all right?
So even internally we knew there were sonme gaps
that we wanted to fill or needed to fill.
Cybersecurity is not sonething that stands
still, right?

At the end of the day, as people
turn around and get counterneasures to their
cybersecurity, all right, the folks that are
trying to hack in on conpani es change their
dynam cs, so it's part a constant inmprovenment
process.

Q Sure. But |'m asking you, at

the time they did the assessnent, based on the
assessnment, is it correct that they did not find

t hat your prograns were consistent at that point
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in time with excellence in operations?

A. Well, correct. MWhat they added,

t hough, is, we were aware of that ourselves and
knew where we needed to go because of changes

t hat were going on in the cyber arena. So we
were | ooking to have them come in, give us the
verification system and to be efficient and
effective with how we closed that gap in a sw ft
and meani ngful way, which we're actually doing.

Q You knew that before they did the
assessnment, is what you told me?

A. Wel |, yeah, because we started to | ook
at cybersecurity way back in 2014.

Q Ckay. Back on Page 7, there in the
guestion at Line 3 you used the word, perceives
-- issues that Wtness McM chael perceives,
correct?

It's a reality, not a perception, that
there are issues with AltaGas's cybersecurity
prograns; isn't that correct?

A. No. | wouldn't agree with that.

Q. You woul d not ?
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A. No. Because, again, like |I'm saying,
conpani es are constantly ebbing and fl ow ng and
maki ng changes to a number of different
practices they have. As a matter of fact,
that's a standard for best practices, all right?
You cannot stay still, especially in an area
l'i ke cyber. So we are constantly turning around
and assessing ourselves in a nunber of areas,
and cyber is one of them
To nme, perception would be we're not
at best -- not at a high standard is sonmebody
who i s not doing anything about adjusting the
constant changes that conme in the cyber arena.

Q So the issues raised in the Price
WAt er house report, w thout going into any
specifics, the concerns raised there are not
trivial concerns, sir, are they?

A. No. We're not saying they are. MWhat
we're saying is, they were initiated by us to
do a self-assessnment, because we know where we
wanted to go, all right? The conditions are

al ways changing with respect to cybersecurity.
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That's a best practices and a matter of fact.

It's a best practice we plan on
bringing on a post-close basis, if we're
afforded the opportunity and it's approved, to
turn around and do self-assessnent at the WGL
l evel, as well.

Q Has Price Waterhouse done anot her
assessnment of the AltaGas cybersecurity program
since the one conpleted in June of 20177

A. We have, but 1'Il defer --

MR. CURRAN:  Your Honor, | would
just caution if we're going to get into the
assessnments, we may have to go into confidenti al
session. But if it's about whether or not
t hi ngs took place, we may be able to stay out,
but the actual content, we may need to go to
confidential discussions.

MR. STRAUSS: No. Actual ly, the
guestion is just whether an assessnment had been
done, not the content.

MR. CURRAN:. Thank you.

THE WTNESS: |I'Il answer it this way:
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We are in continual contact with PW as rel ates
to how we're mgrating our cybersecurity, and |
w |l defer the specifics of that to that to Paul
Sel way when he cones up on the stand foll ow ng
me.

BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q Woul d your answer be the same for
this: Has AltaGas has a third-party eval uation
of cybersecurity done by anyone ot her than PWC

since the assessment in June 20177

A. | don't believe we have, but, again,
|'ll defer that to Paul. |'m pretty sure we
have not .

Q On Page 8 of your rebuttal, at Lines 3
to 5, you offer the possibility that if the
Conmm ssi on approves the transaction, AltaGas
woul d, |ikew se, expect and require WGL to
conduct assessnments. Do you see that?

A. That's correct.

Q s it your testinmony that WGL has
failed to conduct sufficient or adequate

assessnments of their cybersecurity prograns?
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A. We haven't -- that's -- that would not

be ny assessment or ny testinony this norning.

|t

iIs we haven't dug into that end of it that

deep. It's on a post-close basis. There's

certain things, because of the sensitivities

within cyber and the |ike between the conpani es,

t hat you just can't get access to see.

| expect Terry and his teamto do a

very good job in that area, but, again, prudent

and best practice is you do not want to rest on

your

past

| aurel s of what was been successful in the

because the cyber arena constantly changes.

These folks will find ways to turn around and

access and hack into conpanies even after you

put counternmeasures in. So you constantly want

to be vigilant, standing watch, constantly doing

sel f-assessnent to make sure you're staying

ahead of the curve.

So | guess the way to answer that

question, it's really not material where you've

been with respect to cybersecurity, even if you

had an A rating. You can rest assured that
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people that are trying to do harmin

cybersecurity are going to change ways to get
at you, so, hence, you' ve got to be vigilant
and constantly be changi ng your ways, doing
assessnments and putting countermeasures in,

t aki ng advancenents in the IT arena to prevent
t hat from happeni ng.

That, to ne, is best practices, and
that is sonething, certainly, | would expect the
Comm ssion to want us to foll ow.

Q On Page 8 at Line 6 you tal k about the
strong I T team you' ve assenbled. Do you see
t hat ?

A. Yes.

Q Did you have the District of Col unbia
Cross-exam nati on books up there?

A. | do, sir.

Q Woul d you | ook at the docunent that's
at Tab 427

MR. STRAUSS: Your Honor, this is the
response to DCG Data Request 25-5, and |'d ask

that it be marked as the next DCG exhi bit, which
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Il find the nunber of in a nonment.
CHAI RMAN KANE: And the original
nunmber was?
MR. STRAUSS: It was Tab 42, DCG 42.
If you'll give nme a monment, |'I1l find
out what the next nunber is.
| believe the nunmber woul d be DCG 26.
CHAI RMAN KANE: It will be so marked.
(Exhi bit No. DCG 26 marked.)
BY MR. STRAUSS:
Q Coul d you take a | ook at that data
response, sir?
A. | have, sir.
Q Ckay. And you are the sponsor of that
response, correct?
A. | am sir.
Q Al'l right. And this response |lists
the AltaGas IT team correct?
A Correct.
Q. There are eight nmenbers of the team
is that correct?

A. Yes, sSir.
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Q. Are these folks all full-time
empl oyees at this point, sir?

A. They are, sir.

Q. Okay. Look at the heading start --

A. Excuse me. | just want to make --
jump in real quick. It's both the conbination
of FTEs, full-time enployees, and what | would
call seconded contractors that work just |ike
full-time enpl oyees.

Q. Okay. And under the headi ng, start
date with AltaGas, that's the second colum
fromthe left, it appears that one of the team
members was hired in late April 2016, and the

remai nder all at various points during 2017,

correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. And recently one of themin

m d- Sept ember, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Did AltaGas have an IT team prior to
m d- 20167

A. Oh, sure we did.
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Q. Was that teamreplaced in its entirety
bet ween m d- 2016 and now?
A. Oh, not conpletely. | mean, our IT
t eam has about, | think it's 32, 38 folks in it.
So these are -- these were specific positions we

wanted to replace to turn around and hi gh-grade
or upgrade the IT. And part of that goes to, as
we wor ked t hrough assessnments, we're | ooking at
what different type of skill sets we may want to
add or need to add not only to turn around and
get us to a point where we want to be, but nmake
sure we're prepared for the future. A |lot of
things go into the analysis of what you want
and what type of talent that you need in an
organi zation froma sustainability standpoi nt
for IT.

Q These people in data response, did
t hey replace people at AltaGas or were they
additional to the people? | wasn't sure |
under st ood what you said, sir.

A. Oh, |I was just referring to the

gquestion of how we went after the hiring. So if
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you're asking ne a slightly different question
is, did they replace or are they additive to,
"Il defer, specifically, to Paul, but | think
it was probably a conbi nation thereof.

Q Was there a concern prior to these
hires that the IT team at AltaGas | acked
sufficient experience?

A. Not from what they used to do, but as
you turn around and you change the | andscape of
what you need to do in IT, there always cones a
time where you have to, potentially, high-grade
and add additional talent to the organization to
meet the new demands or the new needs that are
associ ated with IT.

Q And you made that decision sonmetine in
m d- 2016 that you needed to upgrade to address
new concerns in IT, would that be correct?

A. No, it wouldn't be. Because | think
if you go back, this is a snapshot in time, you
know, you're talking about sonething that
started for this year, and | think the reason

that gets a little bit of highlight, quite
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frankly, is just because sone of the di scussions

Page 1605

around cyber. But if you go back over the years
within AltaGas, you're constant ebbing and
flowi ng and maki ng changes not only to your IT
busi ness sector, but even in other business
sectors, as technol ogi es change, market
conditions change, different skill sets are
needed.

So this wouldn't be representative of
a snapshot in tine -- it's representative of a
snapshot in tinme, but it's also representative
of, I think, the best practices. You're
constantly revisiting the type of skills and
tools that you need to be effective in your
busi nesses as it relates to whether it's IT,
mar keti ng, comercial, whatever it is you're
doi ng.

Q Let's turn now at the bottom of Page 8
at Line 17 to 19, focusing on your sentence that
says, furthernmore. Do you see that?

A. Excuse me. So we're on Page 87

Q. Of your rebuttal, at Line 17 to 19,
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you have a sentence that begins, furthernore, at

t he end of 17.

A. Let me just read that a second.

Q. Sure.

A. Ckay.

Q And is this a reference to Comm t ment

59, the cyber commtnent? |1|s that what you're

referring to here?

A. Yes, it's tied to that comm t nent.
Q Ckay. That comm tnment was not offered
until after the intervenors' testified in this

proceeding; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Why did AltaGas wait until rebuttal to
provi de assurance to the Conm ssion concerning
cybersecurity? Why wasn't that provided at the
outset ?

A. Well, there's a couple of different
things: One is, because of our best practices,
again, this isn't something that's been
happeni ng since '17. You've gotta to go al

t he way back, | ook at AltaGas over many years.
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We've turned around and put in a new financi al

system place, JDE. Wth that conmes certain
securities and mtigates the turnaround, how --
just let me finish up for a m nute.

So the reason we never put it into our
testinmony is because we felt we knew where we
were in cyber, we knew where we needed to go
on cyber, we hadn't experienced really any
mat eri al inmpact as a result of cyber, but
bei ng cogni zant of what's going on within the
envi ronment, we wanted to make noves to go
there. We had been working on -- constantly
wor ki ng on out |IT. Because data change
-- systenms change, things need to be upgraded,
"1l defer nore to that to Paul Sel way, but
when it was raised as a concern, then we're not
worri ed about where we're going with cyber, so
we had no problem on stipulating. But we
weren't tal king about integrating our system
until it was ready, no different than Senco and
Enstar when we acquired them sir.

Q So you knew about the status of
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your cyber maturity | evel versus Washi ngton

Gas's maturity |evel before you filed your

application, but you waited until after the

intervenors testified about cybersecurity to

firmup a commtment that you had in m nd al

al ong, is that what your testinmony is?
A. Well, when you look at it, you turn
around and you're filing not only your

testinmony, right, but we also file with federal

agencies, take CFIUS, for instance,

who didn't

have any issue with what was going on with

cyber. It's an area that they | ook

right?

at, al

Q. Did you tell CFIUS that your

cybersecurity maturity | evel was not

at the

| evel of Washington Gas and it would take a

period of time to upgrade to that |evel? Was

that told to CFI US?

A. |'d have to go back and defer to what

we filed, but we filed the i nformati
t he agencies would want to | ook at t

assessnent, sir, all right, is how I

on t hat
o make an

woul d | ook
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So at the end of the day, si

Page 1609

nce we

weren't planning on integrating it, and, again,

"1l defer to Paul, as | say, later into this

sentence to get into the details of it

, It

wasn't an i1 ssue that we were concerned about of

causing any harm right? W were m gr

ating and

maki ng solid progress on our cybersecurity as

part of the best practices.

And, quite frankly, we feel by the
time we get to QL we'll be right there close to
the industry. And by the tine we get to end of
2018, we will neet and exceed the industry

standard, and that's the trajectory we've been

on.
And, again, here's the other

t oo, that people have to keep in m nd

t hi ng,

Wi th

assessnents, all right. There's third-party

assessnment that |look at it a different
ways. So let's take a ook at the thr

t hat were done. So back in '"14 there

nunmber of
ee reports

was a

report done that indicated we had a nunber,
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t hi nk, of, roughly, 1.5. Again, |I'Il defer to

Paul on the specifics. That sane firmturned
around and did a nunber --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Excuse me, M. Harris.
Coul d you speak nore slowy for our court
reporter here.

THE WTNESS: |'m sorry about that.

CHAI RMAN KANE: | know you're getting
excited by cybersecurity.

MR. CURRAN:  Your Honor, | think
M. Harris is enthusiastic about this
di scussion, but if we get into numbers and
ratings we may need to delve into confidenti al
session, which he's happy to do, obviously.

THE W TNESS: So, and then,
again, that same firmdid another assessnment
earlier this year where the nunmber changed
appreciably in the right direction. And then,
of course, PWC cane in and did and assessnment,
right, that gave you anot her data point.

So what happens when you get nultiple

data points, you try to correlate that so you
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know directionally where you want to go, right?
And so that's why we, at the end of the day, as
we' ve seen the data points both mgrating in
the right direction, but the |ast couple being
alittle bit off, we weren't worri ed about the
fact that we weren't going to get there and we
knew where we wanted to go, because we've been
| ooki ng and working to do that even prior to
this transaction.
BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q So let me be clear. | think there are
two issues, and | want to make sure we keep them
separate. There's a question of the
conpatibility of the two systens, and,
separately, there's a question about the cyber
maturity conpatibility of the two systens, and
they' re separate, correct?

A. That's correct. |1'd agree with that.

Q And the cyber maturity issue is what's
covered by Comm tnent 59; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q Ckay. Thank you.
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Who made the decision to include
Comm t ment 597?

A. | think it's a collaboration of work
with the team on what we think we needed to do
t here.

Q The team bei ng Washi ngton Gas and
AltaGas, or was this mainly an AltaGas decision?

A. This was mainly an AltaGas deci sion,
yeah.

Q |s the same comm tment, Comm tnment 59,
offered in the Maryl and proceedi ng?

A. | would have to go back and refl ect
on it, but here's how you would | ook at it,
right, is, at the end of the day, you're not
integrating it in, so, technically, you consider
it as part of our overall commtnment because WGL
spans over three jurisdictions.

Q Do you recall whether there was
testinmony in the Maryl and proceedi ng about
cybersecurity along the lines of the testinony
presented here in the District?

A. |'ve certainly | ooked at a | ot of
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testinmony and had a | ot of questions, so
" mnot sure if it was actually brought up,
specifically. | think there may have been a few
gquestions on it, but, again, |I'd have to go back
and just check.
Q Take a | ook at 59 for a m nute,

Comm t nent 59.

A. | have it, sir.
Q | wanted to ask you what | hope are
nont echni cal questions. | can actually assure

you they're not technical because | wote them
As | read the comm tnment, and correct
me if I'"'mwong, AltaGas will make the decision
on when it's appropriate to integrate the
systenms; in other words, AltaGas will nmake the

deci sion as to when the cyber maturity condition

has been nmet; is that correct?
A. Not conpletely, no. Because what
we've commtted tois that we will turn around

and have a reputable, credible, third-party firm
assess what the status is of our cyber when we

believe we're ready, and in conbination with
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that and AltaGas, does it pass the test to turn
around and cyber is where it should be.
Q Al right. Fair enough. Let me ask
you this, then: The Comm ssion will not play a
role in that determ nati on under Comm t ment 59;

is that correct?

A. | wouldn't agree with that.
Q Why ?
A. Well, because | think this is a

comm tnment that goes in front of the Comm ssion,
so | certainly would expect the Comm ssion to
turn around and nmake sure that we foll owed up
and the conditions that need to be nmet and the
reputable firmthat says, yes, this is ready to
go, is nmet before we would do it.

Q. So woul d the Comm ssion have to
approve the decision to integrate the systens?
Woul d the Comm ssion have to certify that this
Comm t ment had been net, that the maturity
| evel s were consistent?

A. Well, | think what the Comm ssion

woul d be certifying is that the firmthat we
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woul d use woul d be the credible agency to
provide the litnmus test that we've achieved
t hose goals, and, if they're satisfied, then we
shoul d be okay to nove forward. | would expect
themto rely on that technical expertise.

Q In the commtnment there's a statenment,
AltaGas will not reduce the nunmber of staff or
capi tal budget at WGL and WAshi ngton Gas
dedi cated to cybersecurity.

Do you see that?

A. That's correct.

Q Do you have any reason to believe that
WGL and Washington Gas are poised to cut their
cybersecurity staff or the budget associ ated
with cybersecurity, sir?

A. No, none what soever. | think this is
just in keeping with what we've been signaling
all along, that, as it relates to billings and
right down to an independent board, right down
to mai ntaining managenent, right down to nmaking
comm t ment behind the total capital program over

t he next five years, the total O&M program over
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the next five years, and all the things they
need to to affect their job right way,
del egati on of authority is being left intact.
So this is just a subheading that falls under
t he same bl anket of coverage that we're
commtting to.
Q Thank you.

The | ast sentence in the conmm t nent
of costs to achieve and evaluate maturity, they
won't be included in custoner rates, do you see
t hat ?

A. That's right.

Q Absent this |anguage, was it your
i npression that AltaGas could bill Washi ngton
Gas ratepayers for the cost of rasing the |evel
of AltaGas's cyber maturity, sir?

A. No. Not so. Like |I said, we're
constantly -- at the corporate level, we're

novi ng our cyber forward. So at the end of the

day, just to be -- to chewit, | guess, alittle

bit finer, since it becane an issue or a concern

rai sed by the intervenors, right, we took a next
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step and said we want to indemify to hold
harm ess the customers for us to achieve that
goal .
Q Thank you.
On the -- as of Day 1 when the merger
Is consummated, am | correct that AltaGas wl|

be providing corporate services to Washi ngton

Gas?

A. Yes.

Q Thank you.

| f you could turn to Page 12 of

your rebuttal testinony, sir. |'mfocusing on
subj ect you begin at Line 18. It's the -- the
Ponmona battery storage project. |If you could
just take a |look at, | believe your discussion

goes over to Page 13 on Line 2.

A. Sure. Just let nme read through it.

Q. Yeah. Pl ease.

A. Okay.

Q. At Lines 21 and 22, you reference that
t he project was conpleted in record time, do you

see that?
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A. Yes.

Q And, actually, the sentence says,
we did it in record tinme. Do you see that
| anguage?

A. Correct.

Q And the we there is AltaGas, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Are you famliar with a conpany called
Greensm th Energy?

A. Sure. Very nmuch so.

Q Coul d you take a | ook at a docunent,
it's at Tab DCG 93? It is a Greensm th Energy
press rel ease that's dated January 27, 2017.
|'"d ask that that be marked as DCG Exhibit 27.

A. Ils that in a tab, M. Strauss?

Q Yeah. |It's at Tab 93. It could be a
separ ate book.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So mar ked.

(Exhibit No. DCG 27 marked.)

MR. STRAUSS:. Thank you.

THE W TNESS: You know you guys have

t hese tabs in pretty good order. It's in ny
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book.
BY MR. STRAUSS:
Q |f you could take a | ook at the press
rel ease, | think it runs about, basically, a
page.
A. Sur e.
Ckay. | see the press rel ease.

Q And do you see the headline,
Greensmth Energy Delivers First Comm ssion to
Al i so Canyon Energy Storage System Sets
| ndustry Record for Quickest Delivery.

Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q Do you understand that title to be a
reference to the Ponona battery storage project
you nmentioned in your testinony at Line 12 --
Page 127

A. | certainly do.

Q. And if you |l ook at the first
par agraph, the |ast sentence, the one that
says, working in close partnership with AltaGas,

who sel ected the technol ogy conmpany in 2016,
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Greensmth set an industry record in the design,
integration and installation and so forth, do
you see that?

A. | do.
Q. Is it correct that AltaGas retained
Greensmth to work on the Ponmona project?
A. It is.
Q. Is it correct that Greensmth is a
t echnol ogy conpany that was involved in the
design, integration and installation the
Pomona project?
A. Not conpletely. That's not a
conpletely true statenment.
Woul d you |ike me to explain?
Q. Remenmber ny question was was it
i nvolved in these things?
A. They were involved, yes.
Q. So that is a correct statement, then.
s it correct that Greensmth set
an industry record for quickest delivery with
respect to the Pompona project?

A. No. They delivered -- what -- the
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delivery and the execution of the construction
was truly AltaGas. So let me just clarify a
[ittle bit. So the reason we turned around and
we partnered with Greensmth is because, quite
frankly, it was an enmergency response to an RFP
all right, and batteries are taking a foothold
across the gl obe.

So the problem was was the ability to
get your hands on battery quickly so that you
could turn around and neet the tinmefrane
requi rement and get it executed.

So Greensmith had a relationship with
Sanmsung, the battery manufacturer that we use.
So the reason we brought Greensmth into the
equation is for the access to the batteries.

And then Greensmth, just to take it
a step further, right, what they provide is
a control system if you will, all right? No
different, quite frankly, that if General Mdtors
I's building an autonobile, they may get through
a third party the conputer that runs your

engi ne, but General Motors puts the car
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t oget her, right?

So what we did is, we used themto get
access to the batteries, but as it relates to
the integrated design, as it relates to the
construction, as it relates to the executi on,

t he project managenent, deciding how we're going
to run it, howit's going to operate and how
it's going to be built, that was all AltaGAs.

Q Are you famliar with the expression,
success has a hundred fathers but failure is an
or phan?

A. Absol utely.

Q Woul d be | correct that Greensmth
is one of the fathers of whatever success was
achieved with respect to the Ponona Energy
storage facility?

A. They're a piece of it, no different
t han Samsung is, right? Sanmsung, even though we
a contract with Greensmth to get the batteries
on time, Sanmsung still has got to deliver the
batteries, right?

What |'mgetting at here, is |I'm
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not taking anything away from sone excell ent
partners we had on the project. |'mjust saying
that the pieces have to be put together by
sonmebody, and you have to execute it, you have
to build it and you have to operate it, right?
So sonebody has to be that high-tech brain trust
to pull it together, and I'm just saying that's
where |I'm saying AltaGas canme into the equation.
Q To be clear, |I'm not suggesting
Al taGas had nothing to do with it. [|'mjust

trying to figure out who did what. That's all.

A. And |' m not suggesting you are,
M. Strauss. |I'mjust providing clarification.
Q Look at the press release. The

| ast paragraph right above the statenment about
Greensm th Energy, the one that begins, since
2008, do you see that?

A. Just -- yeah, since 2008, yeah.

Q Uh- huh. Yeah. Just read that for a

noment .
A. Okay.
Q. And you see the statement, with
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over 180 negawatts of energy storage installed,
Greensm th continues to dom nate the grid
scal e energy storage market. Do you see that
st at ement ?

A. Yes, | do.

Q Do you have any reason to doubt it as
of January of 20177

A. No, not with respect to the service
t hey provide, absolutely | don't.

Q Ckay. All right. AltaGas doesn't
have an excl usive arrangenent with Greensmt h;
Is that correct?

A. No.

Q So putting aside the nerger, there's
not hing you're aware of that prevents Greensmth
fromoffering its services to other utilities,

i ncludi ng Washi ngton Gas, if they wanted to; is
t hat correct?

A. Well, that's true. But the other
thing I would say is that the reason you have
a conpany like this, right, in the infant stages

of technology and until the industry standard
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starts to catch up and people start to mgrate
there, that market will get extrenely
conpetitive and, actually, quite frankly, nore
people will take those type of services, there
will be -- conpanies will be going out and
directly contracting with battery manufacturers,
they' |l be integrating their own operating
systens and things of that nature.

So, certainly, they could go out and
contract with anybody, but |I'm just saying, this
type of service, if left alone, is going to be
very chal |l enging one. \Why? Because generators
and operators are not going to get directly
involved in it anyway. Why? Because the
magni tude and of scale of where the battery
mar ket i s goi ng on.

So you're going to be nuch better

off with a conpany that builds, owns and

operates down the road, because they'll have
t he assets, they'll have reoccurring battery
mai nt enance, they'll be able to drive greater

conpetitive pricing with the battery
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manuf acturers or --
CHAI RMAN KANE: |'d ask you,
M. Harris, to sl ow down.
THE WTNESS: [|'m sorry.
CHAI RMAN KANE: You're just as
ent husi asti c about batteries as you are about
cybersecurity.
BY MR. STRAUSS:
Q Thank you, M. Harris.

In the interest of calmng you down,

we' || change subjects.
On Page 13 of your rebuttal, |'m
| ooking at the sentence at lines -- begins on

Line 17, goes to Line 19, there's no | onger any
cast iron piping in any of your utilities. Do
you see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. Am | correct that, other than 24 m|l es
of cast iron pipe at Senco, none of the other
AltaGas distribution utilities had any cast
iron pipe in their systens; is that correct?

A. That's right.
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Q. | just want to mark an exhibit to put
in the record. |If you could |ook at what's been

prelimnarily marked as DCG Cross-exam nation
Exhi bit 43, that's the response to data request
DCG 25-9, and |I'd ask that that be marked as
Exhi bit 28 -- DCG 28.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Twenty-eight. So
mar ked.

(Exhi bit No. DCG 28 marked.)
BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q Do you have that?

A. | have it, sir.

Q Under the part that's Senco response,
Item C tal ks about $300,000 a mle to retire and
replace the mains, and it's, roughly, 25 mles
of main, is that what the response indicates?

A. Yes.

Q. And it's about a $7.5 mllion project?

A. Approxi mately, yeah.

Q Ckay. Would you expect it would
cost substantially nore than $300,000 a nile

to replace cast iron pipe in Washington, DC.
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A. It depends.
Q. It could? It mght?
A. It coul d. It m ght. You know, it

just depends on the conditions of what you've
gotta replace, where the pipe's |ocated,
accessibility, what it takes for planning. A
number of different things would come into it.
Q. Al'l right. Let me -- let me ask you
about a different subject. Are you famliar
with the Most Favored Nations clause in the

formal comm tnents, --

A. Il am

Q. -- Comm tment 617

A. Yep.

Q. Could you turn to that for a m nute.

| wanted to ask you about that.
Are you there, sir?
A. | am sir.
Q. And it starts off with the statement
t hat the applicants are going to ensure that
the | evel of sharehol der-funded benefits and

programs in the District and Maryl and are
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conpar able, and then it goes onto explain
how that's going to work, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Al'l right. Subpart 61A tal ks about
what happens in the event a settlenent's
reached, correct?

A. It does.

Q And so this subpart applies to the
settlenment that was reached with some of the
parties in Maryland and that you filed a week
ago Friday here; is that right?

A. Yeah. |t woul d.

Q And is the -- does the first sentence,
the one at the top about how we're going to
ensure that the sharehol der-funded benefits
are conparabl e, does that indicate that both the
dol I ar and non-dol | ar benefits in the Maryl and
settlement will be applied here in Washi ngton?

This is a subject we tal ked about a
little bit when you were up the first tine.
MR. CURRAN:. |'m just going to object

to the extent he's asking for a |egal opinion.
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He can answer to what his understanding is, not
the |l egal inport of any of these terns.

MR. STRAUSS:. Fair point. That's all
| " m asking for.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

THE W TNESS: Yeah. | think it's
certainly nmore targeted, obviously, to the nore
nonetary ones, but the plan is to turn around
and make sure between, on a conparable, | guess,
wei ght ed average adjusted basis, and, again, |'m
not famliar with all the math and cal cul ati ons,
M. O Brien would have been the one to talk nore
about that, but the philosophy is aligned that
way .

BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q Ckay. The Maryl and Conm ssion's
goi ng to have a proceedi ng about the settl enment,
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q And they mght reject it, correct?
A. They coul d.
Q

And just to be clear, if they reject
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it, this provision isn't operable, and the

District will not be getting those benefits;
iIs that correct?

MR. CURRAN: Again, objection to the
extent that he's asking for a |l egal opinion. He
can di scuss his understanding, just not what the
results of any |egal proceeding are or an order
i n anot her jurisdiction.

MR. STRAUSS: That's fine.

THE W TNESS: Yeah. | nean, if they
di sapprove the nerger, then --

BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q Well, | nmean, if they reject the
settl ement, what happens, if you know?

A. | really -- if they reject the
settlement, then you may go back to the draw ng
board and start tal king adjustnments to the
settlement, potentially.

Q But if they reject the settlenent,
this provision isn't operable, and the District
won't be getting those benefits?

MR. CURRAN:. Again, objection to what
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MR. STRAUSS: All right. Let nme nmove
on.
BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q | f you | ook at Subpart B, that's at
Page 26 of 27, you see it says, in the event
t hat the Maryl and Conmm ssion

A. Yes, | do.

Q It says, in the event that the
Maryl and Comm ssion issues its final order
before the District enters its order, do you
see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q So if the Maryland Conm ssion issues a
final order after the District rules, then is it
your understanding that Commtnment 61 will not
provi de benefits to ratepayers here in the
District?

MR. CURRAN: Again, objection, Your
Honor. He's asking himto explain the | egal
i npact of a provision and what may or may not

happen i n another jurisdiction.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Well, | think he was
asking the question, because it says, if the
Maryl and Conm ssion does it before or after --

MR. STRAUSS: Before the District.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- before the
District, after the District.

MR. STRAUSS: Yeah. |[|I'mjust asking
how it works.

THE W TNESS: Can | just read it a
little?

MR. STRAUSS: | wish you woul d.

THE W TNESS: Sure.

MR. STRAUSS: That woul d be great.

THE W TNESS: Okay. So just restate
your question for nme.

BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q. My question is sinply that if the
Maryl and Comm ssion acts and issues its final
order after the District acts, then the way I
read this, |I'm asking for your understanding,
it sounds like the District will not receive

benefits conparable to those in Maryl and,
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assum ng those benefits exceed whatever was

ordered in the District.

A. Yeah. | would answer the question
this way is | think the intent is to make sure
t hat the Most Favored Nations status protects
both jurisdictions, but I'd defer to | egal just

for guidance on this on exactly how it wll

wor K.
Q Fair enough.
A. |'d leave it at that.
Q "1l ask you about one
other commtnment. |[t's Nunmber 6, about the

bi ogas study. And this was revised on rebuttal,
and | wanted to ask you about one of the
revisions. |It's on Page 3 of 26.

A. Yeah. Okay. |'m on Page 3.

Q Number 6 at the bottom there, the one

t hat begins, AltaGas will provide fund to study

bi ogas.

A. Sure.

Q. My question has to do with a sentence
down near the bottom It says, the study wll
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commenced within one year after merger close.

A. Yes, | do.

Q. The comm t ment doesn't say by when
you'll finish, does it?

A. No, it doesn't.

Q. s there any place in the comm t ment
where it says that the results will be filed

with the Comm ssion?

t hat

with the results either, depending on what they

ar e,

on t

t he

Page 1635

single study funded by AltaGas and will be

Do you see that?

A. No, it doesn't.
Q. And there's nothing in the comm t ment

requires AltaGas to actually do anything

correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Thank you.

A. But could | just clarify a little bit
hi s?

Q. Well, | really was just asking what
comm t ment said.

A. | want to just make sure people,
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t hough, are grounded on how a study worKks,

right, is, you' re studying sonething to get
know edge, at the end of the day. So the reason
you may not see what a commtnment is after, |
certainly have no problem wi th producing the
report or the study, but part of the study is to
determ ne the feasibility and what can be done.
So | think before you can make a comm t nent and
pick a direction on where you're going, you
woul d use the study as an underlaynent to
determ ne direction.

| just wanted to just clarify that
the study is to get nmore know edgeabl e, and,
t hen based off that know edge, pick an
appropriate direction.

Q Would it be useful in order to get the
knowl edge to know where you're going to have a
date certain by which you thought you m ght
finish the study?

A. Once we get into the study and turn
around and engage sonebody to start to do the

study and they have to | ook at what they will
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anal yze, what they will | ook at, then what you
want to do is get an appropriate tinmefranme to
say, hey, this is when we think we can have a
credi bl e report.
So that's really where we're goi ng

here. We didn't want to be presunptuous and

t hen set a date that may be too aggressive,
because once we get engaged sonebody may say,
well, jeez, with everything we' ve gotta | ook at,
maybe | can't turn this thing around in three or
six months. It may take, you know, eight nonths
or nine nonths, or whatever the case nmay be.

Q Well, the way it's witten, let nme
ask you this: |If it's three years after the
merger's been conmpleted and we're kind of
wonderi ng where the study is and soneone cones
to AltaGas and says, hey, when are you pl anning
to finish this, and AltaGas says, well, the
comm t ment doesn't actually give us a required
end date, we're not sure when we'll finish it,
where woul d be at that point, sir?

A. | hear you, but, again, that's really
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not the intent. The intent is to turn around

and start a study, engage the appropriate
expertise, let them start to sink their teeth
into what they really need to | ook at, and

t hen ascertain what they think an appropriate
timeframe would be to conplete the study and
have results.

Q. |'"'m sure you're famliar with the
guestion, which | get asked all the time, or
ask all the tinme, did you get it in writing?

Thank you. | have another subject
to cover.

| wanted to ask you about the
exhi bit attached to your rebuttal testinony.
The docunment -- this is Exhibit JA 2-1. It's
2018 to 2023, strategic and financing plan for
the AltaGas board. |It's dated June 7th, 2017.

A. Ckay.

MR. STRAUSS: The docunment is | abel ed
confidential, Your Honor. l'"'m-- 1 would |ike
to take a whirl at seeing what we can do in

public session, but if we can't, M. Curran
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will, no doubt, alert me to that fact and we
wi |l stop.
| tried to arrange it so that it was
the |l ast subject so that if -- and it, nore or
| ess, is. | just have a little bit at the end,
not rmuch.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's all right.
We have questions for him too.

MR. STRAUSS: Well, shall | proceed
and see what happens?

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes.

MR. STRAUSS: Very well.
BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q Actually, M. Harris, nmy questions are

all about --
A. Excuse me. |Is there a tab that's --
Q No. No. It's your docunments. It's
in your testinmony. It's your Exhibit 2A-1.

Exhibit to your rebuttal, sir.
A. Ckay. | believe |I have it.
Q Ckay. And |I'm | ooking at Page 35

t hat' s headed fi nancing pl an.
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A. Yes.
MR. STRAUSS: M. Curran, |I'd like to
I nquire, Your Honor, Counsel, if I"'mfree to ask

gquestions, at |east start the process on this

page?

MR. CURRAN: | think you can talk
about colums. [|'mnot sure you can tal k about
actual figures. I'mgoing to ask the witness to

take a | ook at the page and see if we can get
t hrough wi t hout going to specific nunbers.

MR. STRAUSS: |I'mtrying not to ask
about specific nunbers.

MR. CURRAN: Okay.
BY MR. STRAUSS:

Q Let nme ask you this: This is from
June. Do you think the figures on this page
are, nore or |ess, accurate, to the best of your
know edge?

A. Yes, | do, sir.

Q Ckay. And the years covered by this
-- the table here, they include sonme years that

have concl uded and sone are into the future; is
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t hat correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. And t he docunent addresses -- does

cal cul ation of cash avail able and cash used and
t hen comes up with a cash spend over or under;
Is that correct?
A. Could -- not -- not exactly. | think

when you | ook at this --

MR. CURRAN:  Your Honor, one nonment.

| ' ve been advised by ny co-counsel
t hat we may have a securities issue even talking
about directional, so we may have to go into
executive session. | apologize for that, but
we gave it a shot.

MR. STRAUSS: That's fi ne.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Do you have ot her
guestions?

MR. STRAUSS: | do have one little
-- little bit, but it's related -- it foll ows
fromthis docunent, so | think we should do this
docunment first. | think that would make sense.

Because the last bit, there is a data response
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t hat concerns this docunent that's a public
response.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. The questions
that the Comm ssion has do not involve any
confidential docunents, we can do that when
we conme back out.

MR. STRAUSS: Very well.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So I'm going to ask if
there is anyone in the room who has not signed
t he appropriate confidentiality agreenent, we
need to ask you to |l eave the roomat this tine.
And the Secretary's office will take care of
di sconnecting us from public broadcast of this,
and you'll be sure that the door back there is
cl osed al so, please.

Thank you.

We al ways need to confirmthat we're
of f.

We're off. Okay, M. Strauss, you may

proceed.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: M. Strauss, you
i ndi cated you m ght have sone ot her questions?
MR. STRAUSS: No. That went -- no
t hat went to the docunment that | thought was
confidential and non-confidential.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. All right.
Federal governnment?
MS. MEDLYN: No questions, Your Honor.
CHAI RMAN KANE: NCLC?
MR. PIZOR: No questions, Your Honor.
CHAI RMAN KANE: M. Harris, | have a
nunmber of questions that M. O Brien indicated
woul d be better asked of you and let's see if |
can go through these fairly quickly?
THE W TNESS: Certainly.
CHAI RMAN KANE: First of all, | asked
M. OBrien to clarify meani ng what position
woul d serve as the chair of the board for
Washi ngton Gas, the regulated utility?
THE W TNESS: Yes, |'l|l be happy to
answer that.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.
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THE W TNESS: We actually have that

person identified. The person that would fill

the -- for the chair of the regulated utility?

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes.

THE WTNESS: | just can't really go

into deeper than that.

necessari

-- where

person.

busi ness,

CHAI RMAN KANE: | don't need,

|y, the name, but what the position
the --

THE WTNESS: It's a U. S.-based
Extrenely adept in the utility

all right? And that person woul d

chair, and then would be chairnman of WGEL

Hol di ngs.

CHAl RMAN KANE: Wbul d al so be chai r man
of ?

THE W TNESS: WGL Gas & Light.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Whi ch?

THE W TNESS: Actually, the executive
board is WL Gas & Light. It would be WGL Gas &
Li ght, okay.

CHAI RMAN KANE: The distribution and
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default commodity, --
THE W TNESS: Absolutely.
CHAI RMAN KANE: -- the entity that's

regul ated by this Conmm ssion?
THE W TNESS: Absolutely correct.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Thank you.
And then we have the same question

about the board for the Special Purpose

Entity, --

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- who, again meani ng
what position, will serve as the chairman of the
SPE?

THE W TNESS: The intent, Chairwoman,
is that person will be the same. So the person

that will be the chairman of Washington Gas &
Light will also be the person chairing the
Speci al Purpose Entity.

CHAl RMAN KANE: W I | that person serve
on any other board higher than that?

THE W TNESS: Potentially, yep.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Potentially?
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THE W TNESS: Potentially.

CHAI RMAN KANE: | had asked where
Washi ngton Gas Distribution Commodity is
i ncor por at ed?

THE W TNESS:  Sure.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Or maybe | shoul d
al so ask where Washi ngton Gas Hol di ngs is
i ncorporated, if they're incorporated
separately?

THE W TNESS: Certainly. Well, WGL
Hol di ngs is incorporated in Virginia, and
Washi ngton Gas & light is incorporated in
Virginia and the District of Col unmbi a.

CHAl RMAN KANE: So just to clarify,
| know you're not a | awyer, but these changes
in boards, the conposition, the number of
i ndependent nunmber of directors, et cetera,
woul d require an amendnent of their articles

of incorporation in those two states?

THE W TNESS: | am not an attorney. |
woul d say this: | would be happy to get back to
you, but | believe we don't believe the articles
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of incorporation woul d. But, again, we'll be
happy to get back to you on that.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Thank you.

Yes, | had asked, also, of M. O Brien
whet her AltaGas had received any advanced or
any direct guidance fromany of the major credit
rating agencies as to their views regarding the
potential inpact on the credit rating of the
regulated utility in light of the -- or as a
result of or related to the proposed revised
ring-fencing nmeasures?

THE WTNESS: Yes. So let me -- we
certainly have socialized ring-fencing measures
with S&P, that's --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Soci al i zed?

THE W TNESS: Well, we've --

CHAI RMAN KANE: You've told then?

THE W TNESS: We've told them Sorry.

CHAI RMAN KANE: When we socialize
t hings, we spread it out over all the
rat epayers.

THE W TNESS: Under st ood.
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Yeah, we've certainly wal ked S&P
t hrough the plan and the Special Purpose Entity.
They're actually very famliar with that.
They've seen it before. There's no reason to
beli eve there's anything -- any nmateri al
I ssue or concern with it.

| will say this, though: This is
what S&P does: They will wait until the final
resol utions of the Conm ssions; i.e., the dea
gets approved, and then they reserve to | ook at
the entire approval, and then they will give you
a ruling. That's how S&P works. And |I'm pretty
confident on that, and Shaun coul d back me up on
that, as well.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yeah, but | guess ny
question is, after you revised the ring-fencing
comm tnment, did you get any indication that that
made a difference of the rating agency?

THE W TNESS: They're fully aware of
what we've changed, and, again, | would just say
this: I'mfeeling confident and believe there's

not hing of materiality there. But, again, S&P
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w Il reserve their opinion once they see

approval and what the overall accepted
conditions were. But they're very nmuch aware
of the latest set of conditions with the SPE.

CHAlI RMAN KANE: Just two quick
questions in followup on things | heard you
say:

In relation to Comm tnment 5, which
is the five megawatts of energy -- excuse ne,
storage facility, or in Tier 1, and by Tier 1 we
mean sol ar, correct?

THE W TNESS: Could be. There's sone
hybrid technol ogies com ng out, as well, that
may be also part of Tier 1, but you could do
solar right now for Tier 1.

CHAI RMAN KANE: The facility that you,
maybe, conpleted in record time, or sonmeone else
hel ped you conplete in record tinme, was 20
megawat t s?

THE W TNESS: Correct. Twenty
megawatts install ed.

CHAI RMAN KANE: How big was that in
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terms of geographic area?

THE W TNESS: The batteries are -- you
know, it's kind of relatively small. So to give
everybody an idea, if you take a |look at this
room right, you take this room and, probably,
one-and-a-half tinmes, that would be the
footprint. One-and-a-half to two tines the
square footage of this roomwould fit all the
batteries in, and just outside the batteries you
have your rectifiers, to give you an idea to
scale. And, roughly, this height. The
batteries stack up, it |looks |like going into,
kind of, a dormroom when you're in college,
right, and seeing the old equalizers, those
bl ack boxes just stacked up. They're about,
maybe, six feet, so probably eight high. Each
one of the banks are probably three to four feet
w de, and they probably go for about 20 feet.
And so 20 negawatts would be twi ce room for al
the batteries and all the infrastructure it
takes to push the negawatts out the door.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So five nmegawatts
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woul d be about half of the size of this roon?

THE W TNESS: Five nmegawatts, yeabh,
probably about half of this size of the room

CHAI RMAN KANE: And for five
megawatts sol ar?

THE W TNESS: It depends. And the
only reason | said it depends a little bit is,
it depends on what type of panels you use.
You'd certainly use a thin-film panel, it
depends on the technol ogy, it depends on
geographically on where it sits and what they
want to harvests as nmuch megawatts out of it
because of the arch of the sun. But if | took a
| ook at a 20 --

CHAlI RMAN KANE: Five negawatts.

THE WTNESS: |I'mtrying to scale it
for you.

Wth 10 negawatts, solar would
probably take up, let's see, maybe three to four
acres, sonewhere in there.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ten negawatts woul d?

THE W TNESS: No. Five.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Five?

THE W TNESS: Well, possibly three
to four acres, and, again, it just depends on
t he geography, whether it's on a slope, whether
it's not on a slope, how efficient, how many
nore panels you need to turn around and get
that. And, again, it's tough, because it really
depends on where you put it. Geographics play a
rol e.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Just one nore
clarification. In discussing Comm tment Nunber
59, which |I believe | heard you say one of the
comm tments there is that AltaGas woul d not
order or allow Washi ngton -- would not order
or require Washington Gas to cut the staff or
reduce cap spending in any areas; is that
correct?

THE W TNESS: That's correct. Qur
commtment is to live up to the proforma that
was provided us by Terry and his team across all
aspects of their business, so that includes both

their capital spend and their operating and
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mai nt enance expenses for that five-year period

of time.

CHAl RMAN KANE: That was mnmy next
guestion. That's only five years; is that
correct?

THE W TNESS: Yeah. And the only
reason for five years, | don't read anything
into it, like after that. It's just WGL does
the sanme thing that AltaGas -- | mean, it's

tough to predict what future | ook |Iikes past

five years. You know, a number of different

t hi ngs can change, you can spend nore capital,

you can spend less. [It's just, you know, nost

conpani es

guesti on

to the,

do five-year business plans.
CHAI RMAN KANE: | guess it goes to ny
not so much as to the five years, as

think you referred to it as a

del egati on of authority?

THE W TNESS: Well, no. \What |

was saying is that, when you | ook at our

commtnments, it is to give added degrees of

security is not only are we turning around
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and commtting to the capital in O&M but

there's an i ndependent board, the managenent's
staying in place, the existing del egation of
authority is to spend that capital in G&Mis
with that managenment team So there isn't,
i ke, a change to the del egation of authority
t hat would require themto come up the food
chai n.

You know, and even going forward,
| will say this: The WGL's board, WGL Gas &
Light's board will have the final authority to
approve all budgets and prograns. So not only
for the five years, but going forward.

CHAl RMAN KANE: Forever?

THE W TNESS: Forever.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So if the Washi ngton
Gas Distribution Utility Board wanted to doubl e
its staff in a particular area 20 years from
now, AltaGas would not have any authority to say
no?

THE W TNESS: They have to approve

the -- they approve the final board.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: They -- |I'm sorry.
They?
THE W TNESS: The Washi ngton Gas &
Li ght board.

CHAI RMAN KANE: They have the final
say? They don't need to go all the way up the
chain to approve anything?

THE W TNESS: That's correct, because
t hey have to own that budget and that program
We expect they're going to do it with prudence.
That's why you have a board.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's why we have us.

THE W TNESS: Exactly right. So
that's why we don't have that problem There's
checks and bal ances. There's a Conmm ssioner on
one side and there's a board on the other. But
t hey have the full responsibility to approve
t heir budgets.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So to be clear and
so | understand what you're saying, that the
Washi ngton Gas board will have absol ute

authority to make all final decisions about

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1674

borrow ng, spending, staffing O&M et cetera?

THE W TNESS: Yeah, with respect to

t hat .
CHAI RMAN KANE: W th respect to what?
THE W TNESS: Running their business.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Running their
busi ness.
Thank you. No further questions.
MR. CURRAN: No redirect, Your Honor.
Sorry.
CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. Exhibits?
MR. CURRAN. M. Harris's testinony is
al ready - -

CHAI RMAN KANE: His rebuttal testinmony
is already in the record.

MR. STRAUSS: We would nove for the
adm ssion of DCG 26 through 29.

CHAI RMAN KANE: They are noved in.

Thank you.

(Exhibit No. DCG 26 adm tted.)

(Exhibit No. DCG 27 admitted.)

(Exhibit No. DCG 28 adm tted.)
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(Exhibit No. DCG 29 admtted.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right.

We' ve been going two hours. Let's see
where we are.

M. Harris. W have M. Chapman and
M. Ammann. And we have -- and -- and,
possi bly, M. Toivanen.

W will take a brief break and conme
back in about 10, 15 m nutes.

(Recess taken.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. You may
present your next rebuttal w tness.

MR. BUCKLEY: Thank you, Your Honor.
The applicants recall Adrian Chapman.

And M. Chapman's rebuttal testinony
and the acconpanyi ng exhi bits have al ready been
entered into the record, and he's avail able for
Cross-exam nati on.

MR. SEARS: OPC has no questions for
this witness, but, again, that being subject
to entering into a stipulation with the Joint

Applicants regardi ng adm ssion of certain
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docunents, which we're still awaiting.
MS. FRANCI S: Yes, Your Honor. e

have questions.

Wher eupon - -
ADRI AN CHAPMAN,
called to testify, having been previously first
duly sworn or affirmed, was exam ned and
testified as foll ows:
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. FRANCI S:
Q. Good afternoon, M. Chapman.
A. Good afternoon, Ms. Francis.
Q. "' m going ask you to start by | ooking
at Page 33 of your rebuttal testinmony, Line 12.
| ' m focusing on that page through Page 34, Line
4, where you described the revised rate credit
all ocation that is presented in your rebuttal
Exhi bit JA2D- 1.
On Page 33, Lines 18 through 20 of
your rebuttal, you claimthat the rate credit

factor for nonresidential classes is cal cul at ed
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by dividing the total nonresidential rate credit

al l ocation of $5,422,582 by the normal weat her
nonresi dential thernms based on August 2017 dat a.

Wth respect to that statenent, |'d
like to clarify some points for the record.

A. Okay.

Q. The credit of $5,422,582 total
for nonresidential rate credits is not shown
anywhere in your Exhibit JA2D-1. Am | correct
t hat you conputed that total by sunmm ng the
share of total credit amounts for all C& GMVA
and interruptible service classifications that
were shown in JAD1l, or in the upper portion of
JA2D- 17?

A. That's correct.

Q. Now, in Exhibit JA2D-1, where you
referred to normal weat her nonresidential therm
based on August 2017, are you referring to an
anal ysis of normal weather therm requirenents
for the 12 nonths ended August 20177

A. That's correct.

Q. Have the therm measures shown for
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nonresi dential rate classes for August 2017 ever

been presented for review by the Comm ssion and

ot her parties?

A. There's a possibility in our -- the

filing of our quarterly return earned that they

may be included in those, but that probably

woul dn't reflect in August 12 of that date.

Q So the answer to ny question is no,
A. Most |ikely, no.

Q Now, | would |like to you conpare the

nor mal weat her study therns for nonresidenti al

classes that you show in JA2D-1 with the therns

by class shown in Exhibit JBW1, Schedul e C,

Colum D of the conpany's conpliance filing in

Formal Case 1137. That conpliance filing was

previously admtted as AOBA Exhibit 8. It was

originally marked as AOBA 2.

D?

get

A. So you're asking ne to | ook at col umm
Q. You're a little ahead of me. Let ne
m ne out.

Schedul e C, Columm D, yes. Now, woul d
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you accept that the therns by class shown in
Col um D of your March 17th, 2017, end of case
compliance filing in Formal Case Nunmber 1137
represents the conpany's estimtes of nornmal
weat her therns for the test year in that case?

A. That's correct.

Q Ckay. Now, in Exhibit JBW1, Schedul e
C of the conpany's conpliance filing in Case
1137, the total number of therms shown for the
C&l heating, less than 3,075 class, is 9,582,378
therms, while your August 2017 estimte in
JA2D-1 of normal weather therms for the sane
class is 7,535,191 thernms, do you see that?

A. Correct. Yeah.

Q OCkay. Now, would you accept that your
estimate of August 2017 normal weather therns
for the C& |less than 3,075 class is nore than 2
mllion thernms or 21.4 percent below the nunber
of weat her normal therms for the C& heating
| ess than 3,075 class that you show in Exhibit
JA2D- 17?

A. It certainly is that differential.
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It's certainly two different periods being
captured in this analysis.

Q. Now, in Exhibit JBW1, which is now in
the record as AOBA Exhibit 8, Schedule B, of the
conmpany's conmpliance filing in Formal Case 1137,
t he nunber of thernms shown for the GMA heating
| ess than 3,075 class is 1,384,357 thernms, while
your August 2017 estimate in JA2D-1 of norma
weat her therms for the same class is 2,071, 060
t her ms.

Woul d you accept that your estimte of
August 2017 normal weat her therms for the GVA
| ess than 3,075 class is nearly 700,000 therms,
or 49.6 percent above the nunber of normal
weat her thernms for the GVA heating | ess than
3,075 class that you show in JA2D-1?

A. That is the representation of these
two different periods. That's the difference.

Q How do you explain those rather |arge
and opposite direction changes in the conpany's
esti mates of normal weather thernms by class?

A. It's probably a small expl anation
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based on the different nunmber of custoners.

Certainly, it's hard to use weather or any
other differential, so | don't have a different
expl anation at this point in tine.

Q Ckay.

A. A smal|l piece of it is customers, but,
certainly, the actual results that were billed
adjusted for the weather differentials,
certainly have cone up in sonme differences there
that |'mnot readily able to explain with the
data that | have here.

Q Thank you.

Now, please reference the sentence in
your testinony that starts on the last |ine of
Page 33 of your rebuttal testinony and conti nues
t hrough Line 2 on Page 34 of your rebuttal
testimony.

And in that sentence you indicate that
t he actual credits applied to nonresidenti al
custonmers will reflect the conputed for
nonresi dential volunetric credit for each

nonr esi dential custonmer will be multiplied by
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t he weat her normalized usage of i ndividual
custonmers for the 12 nonths ended April 2018.
Coul d you pl ease point to where this
Comm ssi on has previously authorized weat her
normal i zati on of usage data for individual firm
gas service custoners?

A. ' mnot sure if | have a particular
reference, but the goal here was, through this
process, to be able to take actual usage for
each custoner w thout having to do an act ual
weat her normalization for each custoner, and
use that -- a proxy for that to be able to
then multiply it by the rate per therms.

So our approach we woul d take
under that circumstance is probably to make an
adjustnment to the actual factor that would be
the rate per therm for each customer class based
on the weather normalization factor for that
customer cl ass.

So we'll take actual billed therns,
we're certainly driven by whatever the weat her

situation would be for that 12-npbnth-ended
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period, and then nmultiply that by the factor

t hat we've cal cul ated, but that factor would be
adjusted by rate class for a particul ar weat her
normal i zation for that rate cl ass.

So, you know, we're doing sonething
that we don't normally do in the rate-making
process in calculating this type of a credit,
so we really are, in nmy mnd, creating sonme
somet hi ng new here, but we're trying to use the
principals that the Comm ssion has enbodied in
its prior rate-making decisions to be able to do
this in a reasonabl e manner.

Q M. Chapman, | think your answer had a
little bit different focus than ny question.
You and | have been doing this a long tine,
and | know we can't renmenber everything;
however, | can't renmenber where this Comm ssion
has previously authorized weather normalization
of usage data for an individual firm gas service
custonmer. Can you point me to where they've
done that before?

MR. BUCKLEY: Objection. Asked and
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answer ed.
MS. FRANCI'S: Your Honor, | did hear
an answer. It just didn't answer that questi on.
CHAI RMAN KANE: | believe the
wi tness said that he doesn't -- he can't recal
anytinme they' ve done it; they're doing sonething
different in this case.

THE W TNESS: That's correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So the objection is
sust ai ned.
BY MS. FRANCI S:

Q Have you presented any evi dence that
rel ati onshi ps between degree days and usage t hat
are estimated for a class produce reasonabl e or
appropriate results when applied to individual
custonmers within classes?

A. As |'ve stated before, we've created a
new process here. We've used what we think are
good theories to be able to apply this process.
Certainly, the first proposal we made was not to
create this factor that required usage to be a

driver of what the credit per customer was.
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That was when we canme up with individua
custonmer class credits. This alternative
met hodol ogy, in order to try to reflect the fact
that there is -- there are differences in the
-- within each subclass of custonmers and their
usage, and trying to capture that difference
in creating a nore custom zed credit, it's
certainly a new approach. It's certainly open
to critique, I'mhearing it, | take it well,
and, certainly -- but the intent here was to do
this reasonably.

Q What evi dence have you provided for
assessing the reasonabl eness of the conpany's
met hods for estimting normal weat her usage for
i ndi vi dual nonresidential custoners?

A. Once again, and I'll ask to you listen
cl osely, because we didn't -- actually, we don't
propose to calculate an individual custonmer
nor mal weat her usage. Qur proposal is to
take a custoner class or subcl ass weat her
normal i zati on factor and adjust the per-therm

credit that would then be applied to the actual
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usage.
| probably didn't answer your
gquestion, but I'mat least trying to address the

fact that we're not doing an individual custoner

normal i zati on.

t he bottom of your page. And if we take your
revised total credits for the C& I|ess than
3,075 class, and that anmpunt that |'m | ooking

at so we're in the sane place is 202,198, and we
di vide by the total nunber of customers for that
class, that's the 4,066 at the top of the page,
we find that using your credit per-therm
approach woul d generate an average credit for
customers in the C& I|ess than 3,075 cl ass of

| ess than $50 per custoner. | get $49.73 cents.

for

was $127, so you're now suggesting that the

average credit for custoners in the C& |ess

Q Now, let's look at your JA2D-1,

Woul d you accept that average?
A. 'l accept AOBA math.
Q Ckay. Your initially proposed credit

that class, |looking at the top of the page,
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than 3,070 therm cl ass should be | owered by

nore than 60 percent?
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A.

That's the result

of the approach

we' ve taken,

the fact that

and that's driven principally by

we' ve now i ncluded, or let's just

say we have not excluded interruptible revenues
and interruptible throughput fromthis analysis.
So, certainly, the biggest differences is that
we now have the opportunity for nore substanti al
credits for interruptible custonmers, and that's
conme at a cost of a reduction of credits to
ot her nonresidential therm custoner classes.

Q ' mgetting to that.

A. Just thought | could help us get there
nore qui ckly.

Q We're al nbst done. We're al nbst done.
Record tine.

If we did other simlar calcul ati ons

for each of the other C& group netered
apartnment classes, would you accept that all

of those classes would face | arge reductions, on

average of 40 percent, in their average credit
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per custonmer from your original proposal in your
direct testinmny?

A. That would be the result for the sanme
reasons | just identified.

Q Conversely, last question, your
proposed credit goes from-- |I'm focused on
interruptible custoners. Conversely, your
proposed credit goes from $124 for interruptible
custonmers initially presented to $14,804 for
interruptible custoners.

A. "1l accept your math.

MS. FRANCIS: That's all | have, Your
Honor .

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you, Ms.
Francis, DC government.

MS. PATEL: Anjali Patel on behalf of
t he DC Governnent.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. PATEL

Good afternoon, M. Chapman.

A. Good afternoon, Ms. Patel.

Q. Pl ease turn to Page 7 of your
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testinmony -- rebuttal testinony.

A. ' mthere.

Q. At Lines 16 to 18, you discuss the
comm tment to continue to increase funding for
project pipes incrementally throughout the next
five years, do you see that?

A. | do.

Q Whi ch comm t ment woul d you be
referring to there, sir?

A. It's, in part, Comm tnent Nunber 12,
whi ch addresses AltaGas's comm tnent to fund our
capital plan for the next five years.

Q Commtnment 12 is a commtnent to
continue the plans already in place, not to
i ncrease funding; isn't that correct?

A. Certainly the commtnment is to reflect
the current capital plan. That's part of our
five-year plan. And that plan does include
increases in capital funding for the various
categories of our capital spend, one of which is
accel erated replacenent across all three of

the jurisdictions, including the District of
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Col unbi a.
And so we did include in that, and I
think the exhibit -- nmy rebuttal testinony shows

the increased funding for capital to support
project pipes that has two assunptions in it,
one that we haven't fulfilled and one that we
hope to fulfill. It has an assunption that we
were going to file a md-five-year update for
Comm ssion approval to increase the replacenent
activity. And then the second is, at the end
of this first five-year plan, to file a second
five-year plan also to reflect an increase in
annual expenditures for project pipes.

Q Project pipes is subject to the
Comm ssion's authorization, though, correct; you
woul dn't be increasing spending w thout getting
aut hori zation fromthe Conmm ssion?

A. That woul d be a good assunpti on,
correct. Yes. So we certainly have to put the
pl an together, we have to propose that plan to
t he Conm ssion, and, certainly, the capital

budget that we put together was based on at
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| east the plan that we would have asked for
approval fromthe Conm ssion to nove forward.

Q Ckay. Please turn to Page 12 of your
testi nony?

A. " mthere.

Q At Lines 14 to 16, you discuss
proposed Comm tment 59 and its expressed
prohi bition of including the costs to achieve
this commtnment from being passed onto

rat epayers; is that correct?

A. That's correct.
Q The exclusion fromrates refers to
costs fromonly -- refers -- sorry. Let ne

start again.

The exclusion fromrates refers only
to the costs for AltaGas to achi eve conparabl e
maturity and to report to the Comm ssion; is
t hat correct?

A. That's correct, yeah. | presune

any ongoi ng cyber activities that Washi ngton Gas
woul d undertake woul d be considered for cost of

service treatnment in a future rate proceeding.
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Q. And it does not include future costs
of integrating the systens; is that correct?

A. And say that question one nore tine
for me. Maybe rephrase that.

Q The exclusion fromrates that's given
in this Comm tnment 59, that does not exclude
future costs of integrating the systens, does
it?

A. | think because we've tal ked about,
to the degree that we ever would integrate the
systenms, it would be based on there being a
busi ness case that is of benefit. And | would
define a business case in nmy role as benefit
to the custoners, and so that would drive that
deci sion at that tine.

Q. Had t he applicants chosen to integrate
t he systens now, the costs for such integration
woul d have been considered transition costs,
woul dn't they?

A. Most |ikely, yes. Not necessarily
excluded from future rate-making treatnment,

ei ther, under the conditions that we've
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identified in Commtnment 41.

Q Under Commtnment, | think it's 41, |et
me just check the nunber, the transition cost
recovery is limted to a showi ng of synergies;
isn't that correct?

A. That's correct, yeah.

Q When the systens do reach parity,

Al taGas's and Washi ngton Gas's cybersecurity

systems and the conpani es decide to integrate
their systenms, will Washington Gas seek this

Comm ssion's authorization before seeking to

recover the integration costs and rates?

A. | would think if we nade a deci sion
to integrate, it's based on a business case, and
t hat busi ness case would presunme that there's a
benefit to custonmers, and so we would have to
defend that cost recovery request at that tine.

Q Ckay. Please turn to what has been
-- I"'mgoing to give you two exhibits at one
time. Please turn to what has prelimnarily
been marked as DCG Cross-exam nation Exhibit

Number 87 and 88.
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MS. PATEL: Your Honor, we would |ike
to mark Cross-exam nation Nunber 87 and DCG 30
and Cross-exam nation Exhibit 88 as 31.

(Exhibit No. DCG 30 nmrked.)

(Exhi bit No. DCG 31 marked.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: They are so marked.
BY MS. PATEL:

Q M. Chapman, you are the sponsor of

bot h of these responses; isn't that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Coul d you review and just confirmthat
they're correct still?

A. They' re correct.

Q Ckay. Please turn to Page 13 of your
testi nmony.

A. "' m there.

Q At Lines 4 to 6 you state that
t he applicants have commtted funding for
i nprovenents in safety, do you see that?

A. | do.

Q And t hat paragraph follows by a nunber

of commtments that are single-spaced. Is it
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your contention that all of the commtnments

that are listed below relate to funding for
I mprovenents to safety?

A. Sonme nore directly than others, or, |
shoul d say, sone less directly or nore
indirectly than others.

Q Several of these comm tnents have been
addressed in prior testinony, so we're going to
try not to recover that ground, and just address
i ssues -- certainly additional topics.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.
BY MS. PATEL.:

Q Starting on Line 9 there, you
di scussed proposed Comm t ment Nunmber 7, do you
see that?

A. | do.

Q Nei t her conmponent of the proposed
programis required for safety and reliability,
is it?

A. | think we've certainly discussed
that we currently believe we're doing what we

need to do to maintain a safe and reli abl e
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system and bal ance all of those initiatives with
t he costs of doing that, so |I don't think that
Commtnment 7 is required, but, certainly, it
woul d be an enhancenent to what we're doing

ri ght now.

Q. Turning to Part A of the comm tnent,
how many damage prevention trainer educators are
there in each jurisdiction currently?

A. | think I heard from Wtness Townsend
t hat we have two across three jurisdictions.

Q And this commtnment is only for five
years; isn't that correct?

A. The commtnment is that we would not
include in rates for cost recovery the cost of
this commtnment for five years.

Q What happens after those five years?
W Il the individuals be retained?

A. | think to the degree that we believe
t hat the individuals serve well safety and
reliability, as we think that they could, then
we certainly would retain those individuals,

continue their work and would certainly include
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themin a request for new rates at some point in
time post that five-year period.
Q Well, you answered ny next question
al ready, so thank you. We're going to go faster
t hat way.
Wth regard to Part B, AltaGas commts
to provide a single contribution of 350,000 over

all three jurisdictions; is that correct?

A. That's correct.
Q Pl ease turn to Page 14 of your
testi nmony.
A. ' m there.
Q At Lines 7 to 9, we're still in Part B

of Comm tnment Nunber 7, you discuss here the
proposed comm tment to invest in bilingual
messagi ng, do you see that?

A. | see that.

Q There is nothing preventing Washi ngton
Gas frominvesting in bilingual messaging right
now, Is there?

A. No, and we currently do.

Q Turning to Lines 21 to 24 on that sane
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page, you discuss the workforce devel opnent
initiative here; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q The use of these funds has not been
decided; isn't that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q And so even though the comm t ment
iIs to support |local enploynent in the energy
sector, there's no guarantee as the conmm t nent
is witten that it will be used to support
training and safety jobs; is that correct?

A. Well, | think we would certainly work
to utilize these funds in the way that they
were intended. We may get feedback from ot her
parties within the District of Colunmbia as to
t he best way to use those funds, but, certainly,

that's the intention.

Q. But that intention is not nmenorialized
within the commtment; is that correct?

A. | think my expectation is that,
ultimately, as we go through tinme, we'll be

providing information to the Conm ssion as we
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go forward on the success of our inplenentation
of the commtnments that are approved in any
order that approves this nerger.

Q Sir, are you saying that the
Comm ssion will have authority to direct where
t hose funds go? When you say you're going to
provide information to the Conm ssion, does that
mean the Conmm ssion can then deci de what
programs they'll be invested in?

A. | described it nore of as a reporting
of how those funds have been used.

Q But it's Washington Gas that w ||
deci de how those funds, or AltaGas, if the
merger i s approved, that will decide how the
funds are used; is that correct?

A. That's true. Certainly, in working
with entities in the District of Colunbia that
provi de us feedback as to the best way to use
t hat, yes.

Q Ckay. Moving down the Page to Line
33, this is where you discuss Comm t ment Nunber

9 as nodi fi ed. And Comm t ment Number 9 concerns
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a proposal for supplier diversity efforts; isn't

that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q This comm t ment does not concern
i ncreasing the absol ute anount of spendi ng, does
it, it's just where that spending is targeted?

A. | think Commitnment 9 targets a higher
percent age of our annual spending with diverse
suppliers.

Q Correct. So it targets the percentage
t hat goes to diverse suppliers, but it doesn't
i ncrease that amount of annual spendi ng.

A. |'"d love to think that | was able to
run the conpany even nore efficiently every year
and be able to reduce our budgets year over
year, but | haven't done that yet. So ny
expectation is that the balance will go up. It
certainly may be affected as you heard Wt ness
Frey tal k about having specific projects, that
may be in one year but not in another, that give
us greater opportunity, but that's probably the

bi ggest driver as to the actual annual anount
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t hat woul d be avail abl e and would be directed
t hrough successful achievenment of this. But |
woul d say, generally, and, unfortunately, our
spend goes up each year.

Q Ckay. That's information that's
appreciated, sir, but I think you didn't quite
answer ny question. The commtnment itself
relates to this -- to the direction of the
spending, not to the ampunt of spending; isn't
that correct?

A. Well, | think if | apply the
direction, which would be an increased
percent age each year until we achieve 35 percent
and that's applied to a slightly |larger spend
total each year, the two would conme together to
be a higher ampunt achieved in total spend, as
well as the percentage. But it wouldn't always
be the case because there are sonme unusual
projects, like our SAP billing systemthat
happened over a three-year period that may not
be replicated. But, generally, | think there's

an opportunity for higher spend and, therefore,

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1702

hi gher ampbunts dedi cated to diverse suppliers.

Q So is the answer to ny question,
which is the | anguage of the comm tnent, the
comm t ment does not say there will be increased
spending. There may be increased spending,
dependi ng on what your costs end up being and
whet her you can decrease the --

A. The commtnment mrrors the | anguage in
our current MOU as it's been adjusted, so |
t hink the Comm ssion had every intent for
utilities, for whatever their |evel of spend
was, year-in and year-out, to be focused, very
specifically, on the benefits that we get from
finding a | arger nunber of diverse suppliers
t hat we woul d successfully enter into contracts
wth, so we're mrroring that intent and that
| anguage through this conm tnent.

Q Ckay. |If you renenber, or if you
recall, we started this discussion as these
commtnments were |isted under increased -- your
claimthat they increased safety. So is it your

claimthat using diverse suppliers leads to
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I ncreased safety?
A. | f you remember -- if you'l
recall that | answered this that some were nore

directly related, some were |less directly

rel at ed. Certainly, a nunber, or at |east a

part of our diverse spend, is related to our

safety-related i nvestnments and expenditures.

And so that's where | say, to the degree that we

can continue to focus on a higher spend target

with diverse suppliers, then that, certainly,

says we're finding good or the best-possible

suppliers to help us achieve the spend

activities including our investnments in safety.
Q. Ckay. Moving down to Line 44 of

this page and continuing onto the next page, you

di scuss here, applicant's proposed Conm t nent

Nunber 11. Do you see that?

A. | do.

Q The other day you nentioned sonething
called a do-no-harmcommtnment. This would be a
do-no-harm comm tnent; is that correct?

A. It is what | would consider to be a
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do- no-harm notw t hstanding the fact that |

t hi nk each year we continue to do nore rel ated

to this, but, yes, we will continue that
process.

Q And would | be correct to understand
t hat do- no- harm means the conpany will continue

to try to provide the sanme |evel of service as
it does today?

A. Or at least certainly no I ess than
that, which | think is interesting because
we did nmake one adjustnment in, | think it's
Comm t mnent Nunmber 58, as we were trying to
reinforce the messages that were in 11 and 12
t hat may not have been picked up by the parties
in the way that we had i ntended, while one | ooks
at Conmm tnment Nunber 58, you know, we | ook at
mai nt ai ni ng safety and reliability standards and
policies that are substantially conparable to or
better than those standards and policies
mai ntain by Washi ngton Gas at nerger cl osing.

So, certainly, one of our enhancenents

as we added the commtnents was to nove beyond
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just a do-no-harm but to continue to progress
positively.

Q Do the applicants believe that
absent this Conmm tment Nunber 11 a post-nmerger
Washi ngt on Gas coul d choose not to conply with
the Conmm ssion's existing or future regul ati ons?

A. | think we would, certainly, continue
to be adhering to Comm ssion regul ati ons as we
go forward --

Q. And - -

A. -- after the nerger.

Q And do the applicants believe that,
absent Comm tment Nunber 11, a post-nmerger
Washi ngt on Gas coul d choose not to conply with
t he Comm ssion's existing or future reporting
requirement s?

A. It would not do so.

Q. Do they believe that, absent this
comm t ment, post-nerger Washington Gas coul d
choose not to conply with state and federal
safety requirenments?

A. We would not. Any entity could choose
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not to, but we would not.

Q And shoul d the nmerger be approved,
absent Comm tnment 11, could AltaGas or the
post - merger Washi ngton Gas not conply with any
condition, reporting or otherwi se, that's
i nposed by the Comm ssion as a condition of the
approval ?

A. It would not.

Q Conti nui ng down Page 15 on Lines 16 to
21, you address Joint Applicant's proposed

Comm t ment Nunmber 12, do you see that?

A. | do.

Q And this is another do-no-harm
commtnment; isn't that correct?

A. It certainly has that conponent to it.

We certainly have a capital plan that says we're

going to do nore, but this says that that

capital plan of doing nore will continue in
pl ace and will be funded.
And | would say maybe the -- the

little bit nmore than do-no-harmis just the

reporting requirements, because we don't have
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t hese types of reporting requirenments for every
aspect of our capital plan today. W certainly
do for the accelerated replacenent, we certainly
do for aspects of capital investnent that are
related to safety itens that cone out of Case
Nunbers 977 and 1089, but many ot her aspects of
our capital plan don't have these reporting or
transparency requirenents.

Q So given that the commtnment is for
the current five-year plan and the five-year
pl ans runs through 2021 woul dn't the capital
pl an funding commtnent, the guarantee that's in
that first line, that would be conplete as of
the | ast day of fiscal year 2021; is that
correct?

A. Certainly as it's witten, although I
heard fromthe w tness who has on the stand
nmeetly before me, Wtness Harris, provide a
slightly longer comm tnment tinmefrane.

Q But that's not currently what's been
proposed and given to the Comm ssion; is that

correct?
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A. [t's not in witing.
Q Thank you.
A. Until the court stenographer puts it
in witing, and then it's in writing.
Q Unf ortunately as, | understand things,

even if the stenographer puts it in witing,
it's not part of the official application until
proposed to the Comm ssion.

A. That would be a | egal interpretation,
| woul d suggest.

Q If you | ook at Line 23, where it says
there's the foregoing guarantee, that this
guar antee of neeting the 2021 year, the capital
pl an through year 2021; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And the term foregoing, ny parents
were not English majors either, but just to
check that the term foregoing refers to the
mat eri al that was just stated before it; is that
correct?

A. That woul d be ny understandi ng of that

word, yes.
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Q. So it if the funding commtnent
expires in 2021, can you explain why the
reporting conmtment that denonstrates
conpliance with the foregoing guarantee does not
start until 2020 and then runs for 10 years
after that?

A. The starting point was to try to
create some post-nerger actual data that made
sense for reporting in a post-nmerger world.

|'d say the other aspect, as you go
into reporting activity that's beyond the 2021
period, it's really going to reflect and provide
t he Comm ssion with significant information
about our overall ability to have a capital plan
to support safety, reliability and custoner
service, and, certainly, provide informtion
as to whether that capital plan is shrinking or
it's grow ng.

And, certainly, this reporting, back
to ny earlier answer, is -- for nost aspects
of our capital plan is significantly greater

reporting to this Conmm ssion than we undertake
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t oday.

Q So the reporting's an independent
commtnment fromthe five-year plan; is that
correct?

A. Certainly, as this comm tnment has
evol ved, it has becone broader than the first
part of Comm tment Nunber 12, which, at |east by
writing, has a nmore limted capital focus.

Q And the applicants, as of now
in witing, have not commtted to provide
Washi ngt on Gas continui ng access to capital over
t he subsequent 10-year period during when that
reporting is to occur; is that correct?

A. Ot her than M. Harris's statenent a
little earlier this afternoon.

Q. Ot her than M. Harris's statenment.
Thank you.

Starting on Line 33 of that page
t hrough Line 9 of the next page, this is where
you address post-nmerger enployee attrition and
conpensation; is that correct?

A. That's correct.
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Q. And this is another do-no-harm
commtment; is that correct?
A. That's correct.
Q Pl ease turn to Page 19 in your

t esti nmony.

A. Okay.

Q Starting at Line 3 and conti nuing
t hrough Line 16, you discuss the applicant's
proposed Comm t ment Nunber 55, do you see that?

A. | do.

Q And this is the proposal for a
seven-year tinmeframe to reduce the Grade 2
| eak backlog in Washington, D.C., to a |evel
consistent with Senco Energy Gas Conpany's grade
to | eak backlog; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q What is the | evel of Senco Energy Gas
Conmpany's Grade 2 | eak backl og?

A. From what |'ve heard from
Ms. Starring, it is slightly less that be the
35 target that they have. That obviously wll

vary fromnonth to nonth and year to year, but |
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do believe it's slightly less than that. She'l

be able to confirmthat when she comes up at the
end of the proceeding.

Q Has Washi ngton Gas conducted any
studi es or assessnents of how long it would take
to reduce the backl og?

A. | think, consistent with discovery
requests, that we've -- |'ve sat down with our
senior vice president of operations and Wtness
Townsend to tal k about what resources would be
necessary based on our Grade 2 backl og history,
as well as the incidence of Grade 1 |eaks that
we' ve had occur, so we have to | ook at both
Grade 1s, Grade 2s, as well as, to a lesser
degree, Grade 3s, to see what is our overal
need for resources, both internal resources,
crews and supervisors, as well as, potentially,
any external resources to be able to address
that. So it's at |east our best thinking of a
way to achieve what | think is an aggressive
goal here for us to be able to reduce this G ade

2 backl og.
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Q. So just so | amclear that |
under st and your answer, that was -- the
assessnent of how long it would take to reduce
t he backl og i s based on conversations you've
had, not on any actual studies or assessnments;
Is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q Pl ease turn to what has been
prelimnary marked as DCG Cross Exhibit 86.
This is the response to DCG Data Request Nunber
2177.

A. ' m there.

MS. PATEL: Your Honor, we would I|ike
to mark this as Exhibit 32.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So marked.

(Exhi bit No. DCG 32 was marked.)

MS. PATEL: One second. | am not
there yet.
BY MS. PATEL:

Q |f you turn to the second page of this
exhi bit under the second suppl enental response,

it states that, as of October 1st, 2017, the

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1714

current | eak backlog was 128, do you see that?

A. | do.

Q A year ago the backlog was 152, do you
see that?

A. | do.

Q If it took one year to reduce the
backl og by 24 | eaks, why does the conpany think
it will take seven years to further reduce it?

A. I n part, and going back to the fact
that this is not just a focus on Grade 2s,
so Grade 2s are not hazardous, we have a period
of time by federal requirenments to be able to
address those, 12 nonths to no greater than 15
nmont hs, but we also have to address Grade 1s.
Grade 1s are hazardous | eaks. W have to
address those i medi ately. That would be the
priority. And so our resource base is there to
be able to address both Grade 1s and Grade 2s,
and we' ve been seeing an increase in G ade 1s.

And so that's the concern | have
personally in being able to make this comm t ment

happen sooner than seven years, is because
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|"ve continued to see the Grade 1s i ncrease,

notwi t hst andi ng our dedication and comm tnment to
t he accel erated pipe replacenent program But
the interplay between those two gives ne
concern, and so that's the chall enge.

Q And | think that's a concern that
DC government shares, but you don't -- the
applicants haven't proposed any comm t ments
concerning Grade 1 |leaks; isn't that correct?

A. Yes, we have. Our commtnment to
continued to accel erated pipe repl acenment
program as well as our commtnent to address
third-party excavation damages and work with
excavators, who are the |argest driver behind
t hose third-party excavati on damages.

Q. Nei t her of those commtnments contain
any nmetrics in ternms of reductions, do they?

A. Not specifically.

Q. Okay. Comm tnment 55 does not include
any | anguage stating that Washington Gas w | |
not recover the costs for the program and rates.

Am | correct to assune, then, that the
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applicant's intention is that the costs

associ ated with reducing the Grade 2 | eak
backl og will be recovered fromratepayers?

A. That's the applicant's intention, yes,
as an ongoi ng cost of the services, as an going
part of our safety and reliability comm t ment.

Q Shoul d the merger be approved with
Comm t ment Nunmber 55 as a condition, is it the
Applicant's position that Washington Gas will be
automatically entitled to recover in rates the
costs associated with this progranf

A. As automatically as filing for a
rate case, undergoing consideration and
input fromall the parties and waiting for a
Conmm ssi on decision so, no, it's not automatic.
It would be sonething that would be built into
the cost of service, and at the time we filed a
rate case it would be included in those aspects
t hat we woul d seek recovery of.

Q Ckay. And | just have one | ast set of
guesti ons.

Earlier we heard from M. Harris about
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the -- the board makeup, so just so we're clear,
if the nmerger is consummmated, AltaGas wll be

t he sharehol der that owns Washington Gas; is
that correct?

A. | think so, yes.

Q And as the sharehol der, AltaGas has
the controlling vote on who gets to serve on
t he Washi ngton Gas board; is that correct?

MR. BUCKLEY: And, Your Honor, | would
just interpose an objection to the extent that
there's a request for a |legal opinion from
M . Chapman.

THE W TNESS: The comm tnment -- the
comm tnments identify the makeup of the board,
bot h i ndependent and noni ndependent board
menbers. And so the decision-making around that
will be, certainly, based on AltaGas at this
point in tinme. So the makeup of the board w |
be the responsibility of AltaGas, but in line
with the commtnments that we've made here. So
four majority independent and four independent

board members, including individual board
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menbers who currently are on the WGL Hol di ngs
and Washi ngton Gas board today.

MS. PATEL: Your Honor, if you could
just give ne one m nute?

CHAl RMAN KANE: Yes. Go ahead.

MS. PATEL: DCG has no nore questions.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Thank you.

Federal governnment, please.

MS. MEDLYN: No questions, Your Honor.

MR. PIZOR: No questions, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. The
Comm ssi on has sone questions which were
deferred by M. OBrien, first of all, to you,
M. Chapman. And the first had to do with the
safety requirenents that were noted in the final
Virginia approval, the final order in Virginia
approvi ng the merger acquisition.

There were sonme safety requirenents
there. To clarify, will these be adopted in
both DC and Maryl and gi ven, obviously, you act
as an integrated systen?

THE WTNESS: MW first answer relative
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to Maryland, it's ny understandi ng that we got

questions fromthe bench, sim |l ar question that
you have, and that, ultimtely, we ended up
with, | think, three of the 17 com ng through

t hat process.

So it was really what were the jurisdictionally
specific itens from Virginia that were
applicable to Maryl and, and so that's how t hat
-- it got narrowed down as far as a discussion
around that.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Can you give us that
sanme response for DC?

THE W TNESS: And, certainly, | think
we can | ook at see which ones are relevant and
whi ch ones may not be relevant. And, certainly,
| know there's been issues around operator
qualification. That's fair and relevant al
t hrough the jurisdictions, so that would
absolutely be on the list, but we can provide
t hat .

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

And then the related question on
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safety requirements: | asked M. O Brien, given
t he high-consequence designation that FMCSA has
put on the distribution utility in the nation's
capital, will the Joint Applicants, or are you
aware of any additional comm tnments regarding
gas safety and reliability specifically for the
District? You just said you could tell us which
ones of the Virginia ones were applicable. Are
you maki ng any additional comm tnents regarding
gas safety specifically for the District given
our hei ghtened consequence desi gnation?

THE W TNESS: Ot her than what we just
tal ked about with Ms. Patel, the Conmm t nent
Nunmber 55, which is beyond federal requirenents,
but, certainly, you know, it's just sonething
t hat woul d be part of the discussion here. But
| think everything that we currently are doing
in the District has cone as a result of us
working with the engi neering staff, |ooking at
what FMCSA requirenments are, and then as the
District may have amended it through Case

Numbers 977 and 1089.
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So | think those two cases,
specifically, as well as, certainly, our
accel erated replacement case, really do
focus us as to the work we do in the District,
certainly continue to drive what we do and
provides direct feedback with the Conm ssion
on what we need to do next.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And | just a couple
foll ow-up questions also on Conm tnment 55 and
related -- | think related 56. You' ve answered
what the backlog is for the Grade 2, and you've
answered to Ms. Patel that you would be going
-- you would be asking the Comm ssion for a
cost recovery fromthe ratepayers for the | eak
m tigation progranf?

THE W TNESS: To the degree that
We nove forward with this comm tment, then,
ultimately, at the appropriate time, once we
have the resources in place, then, for a
particul ar test period that they're reflected
in, then we would be asking for recovery. Not

as a result of the nmerger, per se, but as we go
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forward and down the road, then those costs

woul d be enbedded in our cost of service
identified as District of Col unbia-specific
costs, and we would seek recovery at a future
time.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That |eads -- you
actually anticipated ny next question. You
said, not as a result of the nerger. |If you're
going to recover the costs fromthe ratepayers,
what's AltaGas got to do with it and what's the
merger got to do with it? Wuldn't you be doing
t hat anyway?

THE W TNESS: | woul d say, absent the
merger, we've had been working with the District
on itenms that were related to our conpliance
with FMCSA requirenents, federal requirenments
for
Grade 2, --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yes.

THE W TNESS: -- and we've been fully
nmeeting those. So the fact that we have a

backl og doesn't nmean we're in violation of the
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of federal requirenents, as long as we're
nmeeting those heating those 12-nonth and
six-nmonth interval requirenments.
CHAI RMAN KANE: All right, but | don't
t hi nk you answered my question. What difference
does the merger make in -- if you're going to
recover the costs fromthe ratepayers, what does
AltaGas bring to the table that you couldn't do
anyway ?
THE WTNESS: ['ll answer it this

way: The other parties have made certain
assertions regarding the lack of commtnents

to increased safety and reliability in the
District. We think we're doing very well.

We think we're fulfilling commtnments to the
District of Colunbia Public Service Conm ssion
relative to that, and so nost of the comm tnents
we have are, in a sense, no harm But this was
an attenpt to try to create sonmething that was
beyond a no-harm to try to address this as

an alternative to -- another request was to

reduce Grade 1s. Well, you know, we have
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progranms in place to reduce the hazardous | eaks.

So this was an opportunity to create
an additional benefit fromthe merger if the
parties, and, ultimtely, the Conmm ssion,
bel i eved that a reduction in the backl og
of Grade 2s was a benefit.

So that's the real question. W're
offering it as sonething beyond what our current
practice is, something beyond what federal
requi rements are, and sonet hi ng beyond what the
District of Colunmbia Public Service Comm ssion
has required to us do relevant to grade.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So far.

THE WTNESS: So far. That's right.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So was it your
under standi ng that the concern about sonme of the
i ntervenors about |leak mtigation included an
expectation that the ratepayers would pay for
it, or that we were asking you sinply to do it
and have the ratepayers pay for it?

THE W TNESS: | think their ultimte

expectation that the was conmm tnments enbodi ed
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here woul d not be ratepayer-funded comm tnents.
And | would say with the absence of -- with the
exception of this commtnent, there's nothing in
this nmerger that drives an increase in rates for
cust oners. This is the only one that coul d,
should it be required and should it be treated
in that manner.
CHAI RMAN KANE: Do you have a cost?
| believe | heard you say that in one year, in
answer to Ms. Patel, you reduced the backl og of
Grade 2 by 25 -- 24. And so by ny cal cul ati ons,
to get down to 35 it would take four nore years
at that rate. What -- is there a cost? \What
magni tude of cost are we tal king about here?
THE WTNESS: | think the discussions

|'"ve had with Ms. Townsend and M. Stapler, our
seni or VP of operations, are that in |ight of

t he growi ng nunber of Grade 1s that we're still
experi encing, that we'll need to address, first,
our ability to continue the trend that these
nunbers suggest is -- w thout adding to our

wor kf orce is probably not going to allow us to
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achieve this. So we think we're going to need
to either add to the workforce, which is
probably at |east two crews with appropriate
supervi si on, and/or equival ent external
resources, if that was another alternative.

So there's time that would be required
to hire and train and get those crews into
pl ace, and so, you know, |I'mnot sure if that's
in the 700,000 to mllion dollar-plus range,
ultimately.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Seven hundred thousand
toamllion for two crews over, say, four
years?

THE W TNESS: W th appropriate
supervi sion, yes, and that would be billed over
time based on the tine it took to get there.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

Let me ask you anot her question about
proj ect pipes, which was al so deferred to you.

| believe M. Harris cited, | believe
it was M. Harris, that Senco had 25 m | es of

cast iron that they elimnated in four-and-half,
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years and their cost was about $300,000 a nmle.
Does that sound correct, your
recoll ection of that?
THE W TNESS: | think that's what |
heard him say, yes. | don't know that relates

to what our cost is here.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Well, | was going
to ask you, | know it in the record in our
AP -- RP, excuse nme, hearing procedure, but why

are you averaging costs-per-mle in the current
accel erated pipeline replacenment programfor --
ot herwi se known as project pipes in the
District?

THE W TNESS: | apol ogi ze, Chairman
Kane. | was hoping that Ms. Townsend woul d cone
after me and | could continue to do what |
did the first time. | don't think she's com ng
up, so if you want to treat that as --

CHAI RMAN KANE: No. [I'Ill ask her that
gquestion.

And then ny other question is,

we're in the first phase, Phase 1 of five-year
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proj ect pipes, and | heard you say that you

woul d be filing, perhaps, for a second phase.

THE W TNESS: Correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Proj ect pipes was
contenpl ated as a 40-year program right, --

THE W TNESS: That's correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- initially?

THE W TNESS: Yes. Initially 50, and
then we did 40.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Initially 50, and it's
been accelerated to 40.

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: |s there anything in
t hese merger commtnments that would hel p defray
t he cost of the out years?

THE W TNESS: One, possibly, | think
-- let me just make sure I'm finding the right
one. One |ooks |ike Commtnment Nunmber 54. That
comm t ment suggests that, if the Comm ssion
finds it appropriate, we'd retain, at cost to
AltaGas, a third-party consultant to do sone

sensitivity analysis around additional or
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further acceleration of project pipes and

m nimze future | eaks.

So that could -- that analysis

could help us, as we prepare the second
five-year filing, to identify opportunities to,
potentially, speed up, potentially address nore
efficient applications, so that we can get nore
-- nore results for the dollars that we invest.
And so that comm tnment for that study, which
woul d be aligned with our next filing, would
hel p the Comm ssion in a decision to what the
next phase would | ook |ike, that may address

| ower costs and/or any other efficiencies that
we may bring to bear. But that was particularly
in response to questions as to whether we shoul d
accel erate or whether we should go beyond 40
years in order to address the | eaks rates that
we' re experiencing.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So this would

be -- this sensitive analysis, this would be a
consul tant who would go --

THE W TNESS: Yes, part of the

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1730

agr eenment .

CHAI RMAN KANE: Does this conmm t nment
I ncl ude anything other than the cost of the
consul tant ?

THE WTNESS: This commtnment is truly
paying for that comm tnent, yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

There were quite a few questions

deferred to you, so | just wanted to be sure.

Yeah, | did want to clarify Conmm t nent
7, which has to do with -- let nme get back to
Commtnment 7. It's still in the sane area of --

THE W TNESS: The excavati on.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Excavation, yeah.
Excavat or engagenent and the damage awareness
in the comunity, outreach, education, et
cetera. Overall, 2.75 mllion total for the
three jurisdictions; is that correct?

THE W TNESS: Let nme see. Yes, |
think if you take the Item A funding over five
years --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Mm hmm
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THE W TNESS: -- and then add in the
350, it gets to that amobunt. Yes. Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So --

THE W TNESS: But Item A, there would
be a dedication of one of those individuals of
the three dedicated to the District of Col unbia.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Dedicated to the
District?

THE W TNESS: Yes. So it would be
160, 000 for the one individual over five years.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And Item B, is that
District-specific?

THE W TNESS: That woul d be allocated
across all three jurisdictions.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Across all three
jurisdictions?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

An allocator of that may be the 15 to
25 percent range.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Maybe 70,000 so it's
550 total, then, 550,0007?

THE W TNESS: Yes. Correct.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. And let ne just
clarify, on Commitrment 8 the $700, 000 workforce
devel opment is District only?

THE W TNESS: District-specific, yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: District-specific.

Does that nean the program would be in
the District or it would only be for District
resi dents?

THE W TNESS: The program woul d be
based in the District and work -- we'd ideally
work with parties to focus this on District
resi dents going through that program yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you.

On the third-party damage i ssue, and
fundi ng that public safety program on preventing
third-party excavation damages, about 71 percent
of the excavators in the District are not
controll ed by Washi ngt on Gas.

THE W TNESS: Correct.

CHAl RMAN KANE: How will this new
entity deploy those resources to reach those

excavat ors?
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THE W TNESS: Wth the individual,
particularly in Item A, we've historically
| ooked at those who are damagi ng our pipes, and,
certainly, focusing on those who are ones that
we haven't had a chance to talk to yet. So
we're | ooking at the damage experience and
hi story and using that as at | east one of the
action itens that we'll | ook to see to go neet
with them mnmake sure they understand the 811
| aw, make sure they understand they need to
call, the time they need to call before they dig
so that there can be paint put on the ground,
and then make sure that they dig appropriately
when they see paint on the ground to make sure
they m nim ze damages.

So, certainly, that's part of the
outreach, to make sure that we try to get in
touch with any current and, certainly, any new
excavators that come into the District. W know
that's a | arge nunber and certainly would work
to use this individual to do nore outreach, and

hopefully that would have a positive effect in
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m nimzing danmages.

CHAI RMAN KANE: You have a comm t nent
regardi ng | eak mapping, and | wanted to ask
about mapping in general. Leak mapping is
54 -- 56.

You said it was going to conplete your
| eak mapping. How close to conpletion is it
now, or what is the status of that project now?

THE WTNESS: | think we're probably
in the last 12 nonths of getting this conpleted.

CHAl RMAN KANE: The last 12 nont hs of
getting it conpl eted?

THE W TNESS: And maybe | ess than
t hat, but, yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Do you have a cost,
or is there -- back up.

|s there extra dollars being provided
by AltaGas to conmplete those |last 12 nont hs?

THE W TNESS: Not that |'ve seen
t hrough this conm t ment. No, it's not in this
comm t ment .

CHAI RMAN KANE: So if you're
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when did you start this project?

THE WTNESS: |It's probably in the
year we started it,

CHAI RMAN KANE: And you've --

THE W TNESS: -- 2016.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And you've got anot her
to go?

THE W TNESS: Yeah. Probably just

under a year to go, yeah.

And this is part of our capital

comm tment, too, so it's an exanple of a capital

item

i ncl

has

our

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's already
uded in the capital plan that the Comm ssion
approved?

THE W TNESS: Well, 1t's part of

capital plan that AltaGas is commtted to

fundi ng, yes.

t hat
what

dol |

CHAl RMAN KANE: You're getting back to

guestion of funding again, because that's
| ' m asking, are they providing extra
ars to -- does this commtnment include extra
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dollars from AltaGas that will not be passed

onto ratepayers to do the last year of the
mobi |l e mapping -- | eak survey nobil e mappi ng
progr anf

THE W TNESS: That wasn't how this was
written.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That was not how it
was written, okay.

So you would go ahead and do that
anyway; is that correct?

THE W TNESS: Correct, yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Thank you.

On mappi ng, do you have any ot her

plans in addition -- | don't know what | eak
mappi ng -- |eak mapping is, what, you go around
with a survey. It's nobile?

THE W TNESS: We woul d translate the
survey results inmmediately onto an el ectronic
format .

CHAI RMAN KANE: Onto, like, an
el ectronic map?

THE W TNESS: | nto a dat abase.

www.Capital ReportingCompany.com
202-857-3376



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Proposed Merger of Altagas LTD And WGL Holdings, IDecember 12, 2017

Page 1737

And then it provides the opportunity, then, to

present that information for analysis in many
different ways. So part of these commtnments is
to ook at it by ward and then by the type of

pi pe, mains versus services, and then the --

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ckay. One of the
t hi ngs that we have, it's on the public record
in other issues, in ternms of sone of the damage
t hat has occurred, has sonetines occurred
because the maps have not been updated?

THE W TNESS: Correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. |Is there
anything in these commtnents that would assi st
Washi ngton Gas with the cost of updating its
overal |l maps, not just the |eaks?

THE W TNESS: Not with the cost.

Part of the comm tnments, particularly Nunmber 11,
where we have currently a program can be part of
our settlement in trying to address those

mappi ng-rel ated issues. So if we have -- |
think there were two conponents to that. One

was specifically related to damage -- at |east a
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-- a -- an individual who was -- didn't cause a
damage, but there was a m ss-mark, and so we're
using that type of information to make sure that
we're focusing on follow ng up on those.

In the past, if there wasn't a damage,
we probably wouldn't have done the research or
done the followup. We're going to continue to
do that. So that's exanples of comm tnments
under either settlenments that we've had as part
of cases that we have before the Conm ssion.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And by settl enment
you nmean for the Comm ssion's notice of
potential probable violation, not the Maryl and
settlement, --

THE W TNESS: Correct. The District
settl ement.

CHAI RMAN KANE: -- which settl enment
you're referring to?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

CHAI RMAN KANE: But, again, that is an
ongoi ng effort ordered by the Comm ssion, and ny

gquestion is, again, let nme be clear, there's no
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extra dollars provided by AltaGas as part of the
merger in order to update the maps?

THE W TNESS: No

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. Thank you.

Let ne see if there's anything nore.
Let nme doubl e-check before |I |eave the issue of
| eak mtigation and | eaks and safety.

Ckay. Let me ask you a coupl e of
guesti ons now about the rate credit and the
cal cul ation of that.

You indicated the revised -- in answer
to particular questions to Ms. Francis, the
proposed and alternate where the credit
cal cul ation for the nonresidential custoners
woul d be volunmetric?

THE W TNESS: That's correct. That
was an alternative arrangenment, yeah.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Why have you not
proposed a volumetric credit for residential
customers?

THE WTNESS: It was back to the issue

around the honogeneity of the customer cl ass.
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So residential custoners' usage, while there is
variation, it's generally within a narrow band.
W thin each of the nonresidential custoner
cl asses, there's greater variation in usage,
custonmer versus custonmer, in those cl asses.

And so the question had been, if you have just
one single credit for a subclass, such as
comercial and industrial greater than 3,075
therms, then you may be providing a |large credit
for the smaller custoner in that class, which
may be a nmuch smaller relative credit for a

| arger custonmer in that class. So the
volumetric driver created some variation that
aligned the credit with the size of the

cust oner.

For residential custoners, that
variation is not so great, and so $50 was
going to be neaningful for the vast mpjority of
residential customers. So we just |ooked at it
as to the variation in the usage of custoners
and, therefore, the bill for customers wthin

each custonmer cl ass.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: The rate credit would
go agai nst the distribution portion of the bill?

THE W TNESS: It certainly could be

seen as that. It would be a credit on the bill,
so it wouldn't be -- in my mnd, it wasn't going
to be applicable only to that. |If they had a

di stribution charge and they had a purchase gas
charge, if they were a bundle custoner they'd
get a $50 credit off of that conmbined bill. If
they were a delivery customer, using a retail
choice conmpetitive supplier, they would only

have a Washi ngton Gas delivery charge. They

woul d still get -- as a residential heating
custonmer, they would still get the $50 credit
of f that bill.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Even if their
di stribution charge was nmuch | ess than $50?
THE W TNESS: Yeah. Yeah. Mm hmm
CHAI RMAN KANE: Ckay. On
interruptible customers, again, on this JA2D-1,
how many interruptions were reported in the

2014/ 2015 winter and 2015/ 2016 w nter,
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respectively?
THE WTNESS: |'d have to get you that
information. | don't have it inmmediately. We

can provide it.

CHAI RMAN KANE: And the second one
probably will be, too. Wre there any current
interruptible custonmers who failed to interrupt,
but were supposed to interrupt in 2014/'15 and
2015/'16 winter, and, if so, please provide the
nunber of custonmers for each of those seasons
separately.

THE WTNESS: We will do so.

CHAl RMAN KANE: Okay. How do you know
if soneone's a heating customer, a residenti al
custonmer ?

THE W TNESS: When they request -- if
they're a brand new custonmer and we've not
served them before, then we're usually sizing
the service based on their demands. And so
we'll have a question of the custoner or their
contractor or the devel oper to say, what burner

tips will you have in the house? So will you
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have a furnace or a boiler? Mst likely for a

new home it would be a furnace. And so that's
the driver behind that classification.
CHAI RMAN KANE: For new construction?
THE W TNESS: The deci sion usually
conmes from new construction or, potentially, a
renodel that -- where we disconnect service and
t hen have to reconnect service after a nore

robust renodeling my be done.

So we'll ask them what their uses
of natural gas will be and that guides us as to
what the size of the service will be and that

ultimately drives the what rate classification
will be.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So is it based on size
of service or, actually, whether they're heating
with gas?

THE W TNESS: Well, certainly, the
first question is, do they have a heating
appliance and that drives, primarily, the heat.

CHAI RMAN KANE: So Mrs. Jones buys a

house -- existing house, and Ms. Jones buys a
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house that has a ol d-fashi oned gas boiler.

Ms. Kane buys a house that has an ol d-fashi oned
coal conversion. It still had the coal chute

t here.

THE W TNESS: Wow.

CHAI RMAN KANE: It had a big boiler,
but it was converted. And over the 50 years --
46 years Ms. Kane's owned that house, she has
gone through four furnaces, the nobst recent
bei ng highly-efficient, but Ms. Kane could have
put in electric heat, how would you know t hat
Ms. Kane was no |onger a -- you know, maybe she
just disconnected the boiler and put in electric
heat and the baseboards?

THE W TNESS: Certainly, |ooking
at the usage we'd start to see significantly
reduced wi nter usage, and that, potentially,
could drive a question for the custoner as to
whet her they should be reclassified.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Okay. How often does
t hat happen?

THE W TNESS: | don't know.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: And this same question
came up with our electric -- our |last electric
di stribution rate case, where we actually nmade a
decision, |I'mnot getting into rate case issues
here, but | was just curious since you have such
a difference in the credit that is proposed and
in the numbers that you're tal king about heating
and cooling versus non-heating and cooling
residential custonmers, $15 dollars versus $50,
how you -- how often does that change happen,
how does it happen, and whether is this an
appropriate way, were there to be a credit,
to be dividing it up into flat rates for
t hose two, rather than it gets back to ny other
guestion on usage. A custonmer who does a | ot of
cooki ng, m ght have a gas dryer, m ght have a
gas water heater, could, certainly, be using as
much gas as soneone who's got an electric stove,
an electric dryer and a very efficient boiler,
ri ght?

THE W TNESS: It certainly does

bl end toget her what we now call the residential
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non- heati ng/ ot her versus what could be
residential heating. And | apol ogize, |
don't know whether our tariff drives us to
make sonme of those assessnents and make sone
i nvestigations, Chairman Kane. | just don't
remenber .

CHAI RMAN KANE: | don't ask that --
that will be in the next gas rate case, but ny
guestion was, using that as a basis -- those two
categories as a basis for determ ning how the
credit would be used rather than were there
to be a credit, and I don't want this to be
interpreted as any particular view on that, were
there to be a credit for residential custoners
categorical versus volunetric, okay.

| think that may finishes ny
gquestions. Yeah. Thank you very much.

Ckay. Redirect?

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, Your Honor.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. BUCKLEY:

Q M . Chapman, just a couple of matters.
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If I can get you to stick with the
rate credit chart for just a nonent?

A. Certainly.

Q And just for clarity of the record, do
you see that there's some proposed difference in
the credit level for the residential heating and
t he residential non-heating?

A. Yes, | do.

Q And could you just state those for the
record, please?

A. Fifty dollars is the proposed credit
for the residential heating custoner.

Resi denti al non-heating/other is $34, and then
a residential non-heating individually nmetered
apartnment is $15.

Q. Ckay. Ms. Francis for AOBA, once
agai n, asked you a good nunber of questions
regarding the derivation of sonme of the rate
credit material on your exhibit. Do you recal
t hat AOBA asked any data requests regarding the
derivation of those nunbers?

A. No. | do recall that they did not.
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Q. And, secondly, Ms. Francis pointed you
to an exhibit fromthe prior rate case, which
had a date of 2015 for the test year. So that
woul d have -- even though you identified in
your testinony that there was a different tine
period, it is over two different -- two
different -- excuse nme, the difference in the
years was nore than two years, correct?

A. Yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: That's all | have, Your
Honor, but | would like to clarify the bench
request before M. Chapman gets excused, just in
case there's further questions.

| have four. | have one listed as the
identifying which Virginia safety comm tnments
are applicable to the District; number two is
the cost-per-mle of replacenments in the
District; nunmber three, is the nunber of --

CHAI RMAN KANE: But that was,
specifically, in the context of project
pi pes, --

MR. BUCKLEY: Thank you.
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CHAI RMAN KANE: -- which is cast iron
and bare steel.

MR. BUCKLEY: Thanks.

Nunmber 3, the nunmber of interruptions
from 2014 forward, and also identify, to the
extent we have information on it, any
interruptible custoners that failed to interrupt
in response to calls for interruptions.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yeah. Two years in
the two wi nter seasons, 2014/'15 and 2015/' 16.

MR. BUCKLEY: And lastly, Your Honor,
| think we can actually obtain this for you, the
routi ne survey of our gas usage. You asked
M. Chapman how often do we nonitor gas usage,
and | believe we can get you sone information on
t hat qui ckly.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Thank you. | know
it's a lot of data, but, if it's there, we woul d
l'i ke that as soon as possible.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, mR'am

CHAI RMAN KANE: Ckay.

MR. BUCKLEY: That's all we have.
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M. Chapman's rebuttal, as well as his
exhibits, are already entered into the record.

MS. PATEL: DCG would like to nove in
Exhi bits 30, 31 and 32.

CHAI RMAN KANE: They are noved in.

(Exhibit No. DCG 30 admitted.)

(Exhibit No. DCG 31 admtted.)

(Exhibit No. DCG 32 admitted.)

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. All right.
Ckay, M. Chapman, you are excused.

M. Anmmann, mny indication is that
OPC s got about 30 m nutes for M. Anmann and
AOBA has about 30 m nutes for M. Ammann and |
think the Comm ssion -- we just have a couple
t hat were deferred by M. Harris or M. O Brien
to M. Ammann.

Yes. | think rather than starting
with the new wi tness, who we would probably --
m ght not get through at |east in a reasonable
time tonight, we will start tonmorrow with
M. Ammann. The Conm ssion -- my understanding

is that federal governnent has resol ved and does
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not have questions for M. Reed; is that

correct?

MS. MEDLYN: That's correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: That's correct.
And the Conmmi ssion, | think, has gotten its

guestions answered that we were going to ask
him so we do not have any questions. M. Reed
will not need to appear. You can stipulate to
his --

MR. BUCKLEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

CHAI RMAN KANE: All right. Let me get
t he order for tonorrow, then, yeah.

So we'll start with M. Ammann,

M. Toivanen, Selway, M. Reed we will not need,
Ms. Menaker, M. Hibbard, M. Lyons and Ms.
Starring, correct?

One to two hours?

Again, we do have tine estimtes from
the parties for sone -- nobst of them are short,
but perhaps now that we've gone through sone of
t he questions, they may be shortened, you may

realize they've been answered. But if you can
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updat e general counsel in any changes there.

don't want to cut anybody short, but hopefully
maybe we can conplete this tonmorrow.

MR. SEARS: Chairman, with Wtness
Reed bei ng excused, we would |like to note
that there are still some docunents that we had
outstanding with the Joint Applicants that we're
seeking to have sti pul at ed.

CHAI RMAN KANE: It woul d be dependent
on the stipulation for docunents.

MR. SEARS: Correct.

CHAI RMAN KANE: Yeah.

MR. SEARS: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN KANE: But hopefully you w |
get those settled and M. Reed will not need to
appear sinply for the purpose of identifying
t hese docunents.

All right. It's going to be cold
toni ght, turn on your gas furnaces, and we'l/|
see you in the norning.

(Hearing suspended -- 4:59 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

| do hereby certify that the aforesaid
testi nony was taken before me, pursuant to
notice, at the time and place indicated; that
sai d deponent was by me duly sworn to tell the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth; that the testinony of said deponent was
correctly recorded in machi ne shorthand by ne
and thereafter transcri bed under my supervision
with computer-aided transcription; that the
deposition is a true and correct record of the
testinony given by the witness; and that | am
neit her of counsel nor kin to any party in said

action, nor interested in the outconme thereof.

W TNESS nmy hand and official seal this

13t h day of Decenber 2017.

B¢

Ryan K. Bl ack
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